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Financial Highlights and Calendar
MBHER Y B

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBHE

Year ended 31 March
HE=A=1+—HI1tFE

Revenue

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Total assets

Net assets

Basic earnings per share

Interim and final dividends per share

Net assets per share

YA
RABIBEFEA
FEAE 5 F
BERE

BEAE

BREAR G

ST GRE ISRl 45N
BREEFE

2024
—EBoNEF
HK$'000
FET

8,691,449
330,454

6,513,924
2,910,513
HK$0.57 #& ¢
HK57 cents &1l
HK$4.97 % T

2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FET

8,024,044
110,353

7,175,340
2,792,063
HK$0.1978 7T
HK38 cents 1l
HK$4.77 % 7T

Change
%
Bt

8.3
199.5

(9.2)
4.2
200
50
4.2

FINANCIAL CALENDAR
Zl-i% H ET

Announcement of Interim Results

28 November 2023

FERRE N S D s AN =

Announcement of Annual Results 17 June 2024

EFEE R —ENFRATEH

Dividends Interim dividend: HK15 cents per share paid on 22 December 2023
AR 2 RHARR S, BRASEIN  ERZZE=F+ A=+ ZHIE[

Proposed final dividend:

HK42 cents per share payable on 24 September 2024

ELARNEARRE B 4280 R=ZE-_NFNA =+ AIK
Annual General Meeting (“AGM") 5 September 2024
BERBEAFAE —“E-NFNARA

Closure of Register of Members
TiEmERN B &R

2 September 2024 to 5 September 2024 (both days inclusive)
(for determining eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM)

—EMFEAAZRE_Z_NFENAALR (BRMABEER)
(AREE hJE MR REFASRENER)

12 September 2024

(for determining entitlement to the final dividend)

—ZoFEAATZH

(CAREE WK BAR SR B 1K)
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Chairman’s Message

The year under review saw the full recovery of the Group’s business in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, and a return to steady, disciplined growth in
profit margins and network penetration.

The management team delivered strong performance, with growth in
margins and our network despite a slower-than-expected recovery in our
operating markets. | am pleased to report that the Group delivered revenue
of HK$8,691.4 million and profit attributable to shareholders of HK$330.5
million for the year ended 31 March 2024.

A shift in our geopolitical structure is currently affecting economies and lives,
with impacts in the form of volatile financial markets and armed conflicts
around the world. While it may take some time for the global situation to
settle, we will eventually reach a new state of equilibrium. And this is where
Hong Kong — with its deeply ingrained entrepreneurial spirit — has always
thrived.

I am confident in the Group’s continued success. Our commitment to
continuous internal improvement in operations, marketing and network
expansion have delivered growth in profit margins, and a steady increase
in network penetration — even despite a slow local economy hampered by
changing dining habits and the allure of dining and lifestyle options across
the border.

A NEW ERA OF LEADERSHIP

The appointment of our new Chief Executive Officer marks the completion
of a decade-long succession programme, transitioning from owner
management to a more sustainable leadership model. The previous
generation of senior executives have handed the reins over to a talented,
proven and enthusiastic team of managers — and we look forward to a new
era of sustainable growth in our business.

| must thank our outgoing CEO, Peter Lo, for his leadership and
contributions to the Group. Guiding our business through the challenging
years of the pandemic, Peter’s sharp insight and quick thinking successfully
navigated through some of the most difficult economic conditions in recent
memory. We are delighted that Peter will remain on the Board of Directors,
where his wisdom and experience will continue to benefit our shareholders
and our business.
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I would also like to welcome Piony Leung to her new role as CEO. Having
proved her leadership skills during the past few difficult years, | am more
than confident in her ability to grow the business as market conditions
return to normal. On behalf of the Board, we wish her every success in her
new role, and look forward to seeing the fruits of her leadership.

At the same time, | must express my gratitude to James Yang, our Managing
Director for Mainland China, for achieving solid, sustainable business results
in a trying market. With strong growth in profit margins and a record
number of new store openings last year, | am certain James will continue to
lead the business to new heights in the Greater Bay Area (GBA).

POSITIONED FOR GBA GROWTH

Building on 20 years of experience in the GBA, we opened a record 22 new
stores in Mainland China last year while maintaining overall profit margins —
an especially impressive achievement considering the challenging operating
environment over the past twelve months. Today, with nearly 550 outlets
across Hong Kong and the GBA, we look forward to the Group’s future
development in this powerhouse regional economy.
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This past December, the Board of Directors visited several of our stores in
the GBA to see its exciting potential first-hand, and align their commitment
to growth in the GBA. During the year, we opened a record number of new
stores — and | have personally visited all 22 of them. The possibilities of this
dynamic market continue to inspire our future.

As Hong Kong's economy becomes more deeply integrated within the GBA,
we expect to see further benefits not only in revenue, but also in terms
of cost optimisation and access to human talent. With access to broader,
deeper pools of suppliers and labour, the Group will be able to optimise
costs while building frontline and management bench strength to fuel long-
term, sustainable growth.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

As always, | sincerely thank our management and staff for their dedication
and loyalty during the year — their hard work has helped us return to solid
growth despite a sluggish economic recovery. | must also thank our Board
of Directors, investors, business partners and customers for their continued
support.

With the roots of economic recovery in place, and the enthusiasm of a
fresh management team, we are already beginning to reap the benefits
of sustainable growth. With the right people, the right business and the
right conditions in place, | remain fully confident in the Group’s long-term
prospects and future success.

LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 June 2024
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Business Highlights
*IFBE

The Group's revenue for the year increased to HK$8,691.4 million
(FY2022/23: HK$8,024.0 million). Profit attributable to shareholders
amounted to HK$330.5 million (FY2022/23: HK$110.4 million).
Excluding government pandemic subsidies received last year, profit
attributable to shareholders was approximately 4.8 times that of last
year.

The Group delivered significantly improved results for the financial year
amidst the challenging operating environment in both Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Gross profit margin increased substantially to 11.4%
(FY2022/23: 8.8%), attributable to our ongoing focus on fine-tuning
business models and operations.

All business segments in Hong Kong — Quick Service Restaurants (QSR),
Casual Dining and Institutional Catering — recorded better results than
in the previous year. QSR raised its performance through product
design and promotional offerings, branding campaigns and marketing
promotions. Effective cost control, enhanced manpower productivity,
digitalisation and automation also contributed to profit margin

improvement during the year.

The Mainland China business recovered significantly, with strong same
store sales growth and healthy operating margins. Continuous network
expansion led to a record number of new shop openings during the
year, establishing a solid platform to sustain further business growth
throughout the Greater Bay Area.

A final dividend of HK42 cents per share is recommended (FY2022/23:
HK28 cents), with a total dividend payout ratio of 101.0% for the year.
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e Against headwinds caused by slower-than-expected recoveries in o $ERLEE T AEIRE A 185 878 4

the economy and inbound tourism, as well as a northbound shift in g - MEMERIEEEBEAZ - YOk
consumer spending patterns, the Group recognises the increasingly FETHFENEERBERNES - REESG
challenging environment in the second half of the financial year. The hE - SEHREERISARIFESE - K5
Group remains optimistic about its long-term growth, and continues BrTEERAERNHDRIARF I EBE
to fine-tune its improved business models that have proven themselves %

during difficult times.

Financial Performance — Net Profit & Earnings per Share
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Café de Coral Group Key Strategic Businesses

ARLEEEERREMER

ina

KA

‘mixian sense

&

Hong Kong
Quick Service Restaurants
EBERER
- bR

99.1%

Hong Kong Institutional Catering — Others

BERERR

Hith

Aﬂwﬁczif L2 550N 1.7 0/ o

1.7%

250

200

150

100

50

0

Revenue Distribution
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
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Total Operating Units: 551

EEENEY
(As of 31 March 2024)
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No. of new shops (Since 1 April 2023): 46
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s New shops
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DM

INTRODUCTION AND HIGHLIGHTS

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 March 2024 increased by
8.3% to HK$8,691.4 million. Profit attributable to shareholders amounted
to HK$330.5 million, compared to that of HK$110.4 million for the year
ended 31 March 2023. The Group did not receive any COVID-19 subsidies
from the government during the year under review (FY2022/23: HK$40.9
million). Excluding pandemic subsidies, the Group’s profit attributable to
shareholders was approximately 4.8 times that of FY2022/23.

With the succession of the Group’s Chief Executive Officer effective 1 April
2024, we have completed the final step in our 10-year succession plan,
transitioning from owner management to a more sustainable leadership
model, supported by a vibrant and enthusiastic senior management
transition across business units.

The Group delivered significantly improved results for the full financial year
amidst the challenging operating environment in both Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Our ongoing focus on fine-tuning business models and
operations continued to enhance profit margins across the Group, and gross
profit margin for the year under review increased substantially to 11.4%
(FY2022/23: 8.8%).

In Hong Kong, all business segments — Quick Service Restaurants (QSR),
Casual Dining and Institutional Catering — recorded improved results amid
slower-than-expected recoveries in the economy and inbound tourism, as
well as a northbound shift in consumer spending patterns. QSR raised its
performance through product design and promotional offerings, branding
campaigns and marketing promotions. Effective cost control, manpower
productivity enhancement, digitalisation and automation also contributed to
profit margin improvement during the year.

The Casual Dining business adapted to changing consumer dining preferences,
attracting diners with menu offerings and marketing promotions. The
Institutional Catering business has fully returned to normal operations and
growth, and remains the clear market leader in Hong Kong.

1
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The Group’s business in the wider Greater Bay Area (GBA) continued to
recover with healthy margins, overcoming slower conditions in the local
economy during the year with strong same store sales growth. Existing
shops maintained healthy performance and stable operations. Building on
this solid foundation, the Group opened a record number of 22 new shops
in the GBA during the year while maintaining steady profit margins.

This year, we received industry recognition for achievements across the
business spectrum. Acknowledging our work in brand building, the Group
was honoured as a “Prestigious Brand” at East Week magazine’s “Hong
Kong Classic Brand Awards 2023". Our Group brand campaign “&
AR FLEKFE (A Taste of Togetherness)” “World Curry Delights”
series won two awards at the “Kam Fan Awards 2023" organised by The
Association of Accredited Advertising Agencies of Hong Kong. Adapting
from the same brand campaign platform, our mainland campaign “ 3K ¢
LRTEBRFREE (Enjoy Happiness at Café de Coral)” won three awards
at the “14th (2022-2023) Tiger Roar Awards”
marketing awards in Mainland China. Confirming our focus on service

, the most renowned digital

quality, The Spaghetti House was named one of the “Quality Service
Retailers of the Year” by the Hong Kong Retail Management Association for
the eighth consecutive year; and eight of our brands took home awards at
the "Hong Kong Service Awards 2024" organised by East Week. The Group
was also selected as an “Employer of Choice” by JobMarket for the third
year, recognising our efforts to create a dynamic and rewarding working
environment for all employees.

Affirming our commitment to sustainability, the Group was selected as a
constituent of the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index
with an “AA" rating for the ninth consecutive year. Working toward our
long-term sustainability goals, we reduced use of single-use plastic in
preparation for the Disposable Plastic Ban which took effect in Hong Kong
in April 2024. As an additional behaviour change driver towards a plastic-
free lifestyle, our six restaurant brands joined hands to reduce the use of
plastic through the launch of our “Love the Earth” campaign, offering
limited edition Hello Kitty themed sets of reusable cutlery and accessories.
We also continued our “Bon Appetit Café” food assistance programme
for the second year, providing HK$12 million worth of food assistance to
4,000 beneficiaries. Introducing a new element to this year's programme, a
Lunar New Year celebration feast was held for beneficiaries at Super Super
Congee & Noodles, spreading warmth and holiday cheer throughout the
community.
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Against headwinds caused by slower-than-expected recoveries in the
economy and inbound tourism, as well as a northbound shift in consumer
spending patterns, the Group recognises the increasingly challenging
environment in the second half of the financial year. The Group remains
optimistic about its long-term growth, and continues to fine-tune its
improved business models that have proven themselves during difficult
times. Our ongoing focus on internal cost/efficiency/manpower optimisation
will continue to bolster margins, amplified by steady, disciplined growth
in our store network — supported by our refined business models and
integrated branding across the GBA.

RESULTS OVERVIEW

Revenue
For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group recorded revenue of
HK$8,691.4 million, a 8.3% increase as compared to HK$8,024.0 million in
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FY2022/23. Revenue by business division is set out below: F 8,024.0 B EATLIEMNG 3% - KB AILE
EALEHINAT -
FY2023/24 FY2022/23
—E-=/Z9 —E-— /== Change
FE FE =
HKS$’'m HK$’m %
BEET A&8T B
Hong Kong o
Quick Service Restaurants RRER 5,138.1 4,808.4 6.9
Casual Dining REER 879.2 857.8 2.5
Institutional Catering SR 1,019.6 863.9 18.0
Others* H b * 139.2 170.4 (18.3)
Subtotal INEF 7,176.1 6,700.5 7.1
Mainland China B Ay dth 1,515.3 1,323.5 14.5
Group 58 8,691.4 8,024.0 8.3
*  Mainly represents income from food processing and distribution and rental income * FERRMMIMSHEARBSEA
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Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit margin increased to 11.4% during the year (FY2022/23:
8.8%), primarily due to effective cost control and manpower productivity
enhancement.

Administrative Expenses
Administrative expenses increased by 3.5% to HK$503.2 million (FY2022/23:
HK$486.1 million).

ER=
EMNERERNLAENALA%(ZE = /==
F[E:88%) TBHMNKATHEENUKLE
TAENREF -

THEH

THBREIMN35%E5032688 B T(=%
T/ C=EE 4861 BEBTT) °

Key Costs FERAR
The breakdown of major expenses is set out below: FERHSNAT
FY2023/24 FY2022/23
ZBCI= CNEE B =FE
HK$'m % of revenue HK$'m % of revenue
BEEET WAL (%) 5T WA (%)
Cost of raw materials RAR R B EE AR
and packing 2,384.6 27.4 2,307.3 28.8
Staff cost ALK 2,914.7 33.5 2,701.2 33.7
Rental costs* MBI * 959.3 11.0 913.3 1.4

* Includes rental related depreciation in right-of-use assets, finance cost of lease liabilities, rental
costs of short-term lease and low-value leases, as well as turnover rent and gain on modification
and termination of leases

Other Income and Other Losses, Net

Other income and other losses, net increased by HK$20.5 million, mainly
because the Group did not receive any COVID-19 subsidies from the
government during the year (FY2022/23: HK$40.9 million).

Income Tax Expense
Income tax expense increased by 70.7% to HK$56.3 million (FY2022/23:
HK$33.0 million).

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders

The Group's profit attributable to equity holders increased 199.5%
to HK$330.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2024 (FY2022/23:
HK$110.4 million), primarily due to improvement of profit margin through
effective cost control and manpower productivity enhancement. Excluding
government COVID-19 subsidies, the Group’s profit attributable to equity
holders increased by 376.1%.
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FY2023/24 FY2022/23
—E=-=/=-m e Change
FE FE BE
HKS$'m HK$'m %
BEET B&E%T B
Profit Attributable to Equity Holders ARIEFE B A1 5 A 330.5 110.4 199.5
If excluding: fiai R -
COVID-19 subsidies R KR IEE B - (40.9)
Adjusted net profit RAREFE 330.5 69.5 376.1
If excluding: fiai BBk -
Fair value loss on investment WEME 2 N THEEE
properties 31.9 20.1
362.4 89.6 304.8
Segment Results ’J}E% g

Hong Kong segment results increased 32.0% to HK$618.9 million in
FY2023/24 (FY2022/23: HK$468.8 million) and Mainland China segment
results increased 42.2% to HK$179.4 million (FY2022/23: HK$126.2 million)
during the year.

Basic Earnings Per Share
The Group's basic earnings per share increased 200.0% to HK57 cents for
the year ended 31 March 2024 (FY2022/23: HK19 cents).

Dividend

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK42 cents
per share to shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2024 (FY2022/23:
HK28 cents). Together with the interim dividend of HK15 cents per share
paid during the year, the dividend payout ratio for the year is 101.0%,
maintaining a traditionally high level reflecting the Group’s sustainable,
healthy operations and strong financial position.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

As of 31 March 2024, the Group had a network of 380 stores in Hong
Kong (31 March 2023: 376) and 171 stores in Mainland China (31 March
2023: 153).

Hong Kong Retail Operations

Quick Service Restaurants (QSR)

Revenue from the QSR division increased by 6.9% to HK$5,138.1 million
during FY2023/24 (FY2022/23: HK$4,808.4 million). Focusing on mass-
market appeal with value meals, limited time offers, well-received Hero
products, as well as high perceived value ranges and new target segmenting,
Café de Coral fast food and Super Super Congee & Noodles continued
to deliver same store sales growth of 3% and 6%, respectively. The business
contributed 59.1% of the Group’s total revenue for the reporting year,
operating 219 total shops at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: 216).

During the year under review, daytime business at Café de Coral fast food
fully recovered to pre-pandemic levels. Popular campaigns for healthy oat
milk eggs and international curry dishes drew strong public response, while
innovative new items including baked salted-egg BBQ pork rice became the
talk of the town with their East-meets-West flavour concepts, renovating our
Hero Baked Rice Series. Offering solid value for customers in an uncertain
economy, we introduced “flash” promotions throughout the year to drive
transactions, including highly popular winter melon promotions riding on
the July 1st Establishment Day and October 1st National Day holidays.

Dinner service recorded positive year-on-year growth, although at a
relatively slower pace due to changing dining preferences — building on a
highly successful sizzling plate series during the summer season, as well as a
hotpot promotion during the winter season.
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Successful brand building efforts, including our award-winning “HAZX &t
BARZKE (A Taste of Togetherness)” campaign, celebrated our local roots
and unique Hong Kong-style fast food to achieve top-of-mind awareness
in dining preferences. As part of our integrated marketing strategy, the
campaign has been adapted to support the latest Baked Rice campaign
for the launch of salted-egg BBQ pork rice, and has also been extended to
address younger generations with a distinct spin-off in creative style and
approach for the “World Curry Delights” series. Our brand campaign was
a finalist in the “Effie Awards Greater China 2023", and the “World Curry
Delights” campaign earned two Bronze awards at the “Kam Fan Awards
2023" hosted by the Association of Accredited Advertising Agencies of
Hong Kong.

The business continued to adjust and fine-tune operating models with
a focus on manpower efficiency, food cost, direct manufacturing cost,
packaging cost and other areas — resulting in significant cost savings while
maintaining our customer experience.

Enhancements in digitalisation and automation saw ordering kiosks installed
in 95% of all shops, with a steady uptake in customer usage. Robots have
been deployed at larger stores, which lower manpower cost and free up
staff to focus on providing a better customer experience.

Enrolment in our Club 100 membership programme reached 1.6 million
registered users this year. During the year, our mobile ordering app was
integrated with the Club 100 app, providing a frictionless user experience
for customers. At the same time, trials in reaching out to members in
different segments through our Customer Data Platform have generated
positive results to further uplift customers’ digital experience. Reinforcing
the programme’s success, Club 100 earned two Silver awards at the “Loyalty
Engagement Awards 2023", as well as the “Best Use of Mobile Strategy”
Award at “Digital Ex 2023" hosted by Metro Finance. We have also created
joint promotions with membership programmes of companies in different
industries, including the transportation and financial sectors. The Group also
began accepting mobile orders through WeChat China, making ordering
and payment more convenient for customers from Mainland China.
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Leveraging technology to address a tight labour market, we digitised
operations and communications between stores and back office, freeing up
staff on the sales floor to serve our customers better — resulting in a record
high score in AC Nielsen’s mystery shopper survey in 2024,

Super Super Congee & Noodles focused on driving brand awareness and
sales growth by highlighting their variety of Hero products — congee dishes,
claypot dishes and claypot rice. Combined with value-for-money offers such
as a Hainan chicken rice promotion, refreshed media and communication
strategies with key influencers have successfully targeted younger customer
segments. At the same time, in-store activation initiatives and seasonal items
including a chicken mascot tour, wonton lucky draw campaign, claypot-
rice-man performances and red packet premiums and events have driven
additional sales.

Café de Coral fast food opened 7 new stores, ending the year with 172
stores (31 March 2023: 169). Super Super Congee & Noodles opened 1
new store, operating 47 stores at the end of the financial year (31 March
2023: 47). At present, 8 new QSR shops are in the pipeline. Branch re-
imaging is also in progress to vitalise our brand image, and 9 branches have
been renovated this year with more scheduled for completion in the coming
months.
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Casual Dining
The Casual Dining business has returned to growth. Revenue increased by
2.5% during the year to HK$879.2 million (FY2022/23: HK$857.8 million).

Management has been refining the core business and driving margin
improvement across all brands, with strategic menu design to keep
food costs competitive, introducing and tapping into new segments like
vegetarian and meat-alternative offerings, focusing on Hero product
promotions and increasing digitalisation to boost operational efficiency.
In addition to product promotional campaigns, Shanghai Lao Lao
received positive response for the launch of its first television commercial
— highlighting the brand’s dedication to craftsmanship, and its deep
relationships with customers. These efforts have continued to drive business
performance, despite a challenging market facing changes in consumer
dining habits, a slower-than expected recovery in inbound tourism and a
northbound shift in consumer spending patterns.

After rationalising the branch portfolio to focus on high-performing
locations, the division operated 62 shops at the end of the financial year (31
March 2023: 66). Mixian Sense opened 3 new shops, and together with
Shanghai Lao Lao the two brands operated 18 and 12 stores, respectively,
as of 31 March 2024. The Spaghetti House operated 7 shops at the
end of the year (31 March 2023: 8), while Oliver's Super Sandwiches
operated 20 stores at the financial year end (31 March 2023: 21).
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Institutional Catering

The Institutional Catering business saw a return to normal operations and
growth during the year under review, with revenue increasing by 18.0% to
HK$1,019.6 million (FY2022/23: HK$863.9 million). Leveraging its market
leadership position as a preferred strategic partner to build scale, Asia
Pacific Catering ended the year with 99 operating units (31 March 2023:
94).

Normal operating conditions have returned to the school sector. Expanded
market share in international school and primary/secondary school networks
as well as resumption of visitor dine-in service at hospitals contributed to
significant business improvement during the year. The global economic
downturn has impacted the government/public/private institutions sector, as
key business partners such as shipping and air freight operators face volatile
market conditions.

The business successfully renewed most of its major contracts and signed
a number of new contracts during the year under review. Building on its
strength as the clear leader in the institutional catering segment, the Group
will continue to grow market share by providing a wide range of high-value
menu offerings and customer-focused service.

As the largest school lunch supplier in Hong Kong, Luncheon Star has
earned the trust and support of customers over many years. With a clear
focus on food safety, we are dedicated to providing hygienic, nutritionally
balanced and delicious lunches to growing students.

Building on its scale and reputation in the industry, the Group is confident
in growing the institutional catering business over the long term. We will
place new focus on polishing our customer experience to drive more in-
store traffic, while increasing sales through menu management and joint
customer promaotions.
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Mainland China Operations

Marking a solid return to pre-pandemic performance levels, revenue from
Mainland China operations increased by 14.5% to HK$1,515.3 million
(FY2022/23: HK$1,323.5 million). Revenue from the South China fast food
business increased by 20.6% to RMB1,352.0 million, with same store sales
growth of 11%. The Renminbi depreciated against the Hong Kong Dollar
by approximately 4% during the year.

Although Mainland China’s economy experienced challenges, the Group’s
business recovered significantly, and performance continued to improve
throughout the year. The business benefitted from its focus on the vast
mass-market segment in the GBA. In addition, branding efforts contributed
to healthy growth in guest numbers, while efficiency programmes helped to
optimise margins across all stores.

A key strategic focus is the continuous expansion of our store network
in the GBA. Despite the pre-opening costs and slower operating margins
associated with opening new stores, the Group was able to maintain
healthy operating margins while opening a record number of 22 stores.
This represents net growth of 18 stores during the year, expanding our
branch network to 171 stores (31 March 2023: 153) while building on a
steady foundation of stable performance from existing stores. We have also
made great progress in reducing store capex investment through design
optimisation and standardisation. With 12 new shops in the pipeline, we
continue to seek prime locations for network expansion throughout the
GBA.

Striving for constant innovation in our core products, we have introduced
new products targeting younger customers, as well as Hero products and
limited time offers for “Spicy Hainan Chicken”, “Cage Steamed Rice”
and other new dinner items that proved popular with diners. Kids" meals
featuring popular licensed characters helped to solidify our position in the

family segment.
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The breakfast segment continued to grow, building strong momentum.
Positioning the brand as a neighbouring gathering spot for breakfast has
attracted a large and loyal customer base that continues to expand. We
have also targeted busy workers, offering unique take-away breakfast
products paired with convenient mobile ordering services, creating a popular
online-to-offline channel for breakfast.

Adapting the Group’s "B AR HAEKKE (A Taste of Togetherness)”
campaign for the local market, we have run the “E0K « R FHEAE AKX
%% | (Enjoy Happiness at Café de Coral)” campaign since 2022, which has
rejuvenated the brand with over 200 million views on TikTok. The campaign
boosted brand awareness and drove sales, and also won three awards at
the “14th (2022-2023) Tiger Roar Awards”, the most renowned digital
marketing awards in Mainland China, as well as the “2024 12th TopDigital
Innovative Marketing Award-Special”.
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Margin improvement is being driven through constant enhancements
in pricing strategy, menu management, strategic sourcing and food cost
controls. Similarly, long-term efforts in automation and digitalisation
continue to improve efficiency and productivity. As digital channels now
account for around 60% of orders, we upgraded our mobile ordering
system to enhance the user experience, and are constantly exploring
opportunities to optimise and streamline processes around digital orders.

Since launching our membership programme in Mainland China in 2022,
we have enrolled more than 4.6 million members, who now contribute
a significant portion of total sales revenue. Our Customer Relationship
Management platform allows us to address specific customer segments
with targeted marketing campaigns.

The Group’s consistent focus on food safety has examined and improved
nearly every aspect of the supply chain in recent years — from suppliers’
sourcing and central processing to store delivery and restaurant preparation
— earning strong, positive feedback from customers.

Internally, our efforts to improve organisational efficiency, streamline
processing flows and control overhead through digitalisation continued to
deliver results. The Group won the “Best Digital Practice Award for National
Human Resources 2023" in recognition of our efforts to improve efficiency
through office automation and develop staff capabilities to support long-
term, sustainable growth.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Position

The Group’s financial position remained healthy during the year under
review. As of 31 March 2024, the Group had cash of approximately
HK$1,261 million, with HK$1,081 million in available banking facilities. The
Group’s current ratio as of the same date was 0.9 (31 March 2023: 0.8) and
the cash ratio was 0.7 (31 March 2023: 0.6). The Group had borrowings of
HK$385 million (31 March 2023: HK$980 million) and a gearing ratio of nil
(ratio of total borrowing less cash and cash equivalents to total equity) (31
March 2023: nil).

Capital Expenditure and Commitment

During the year under review, the Group’s capital expenditure (excluding
right-of-use assets) was HK$318 million (FY2022/23: HK$465 million). As
at 31 March 2024, the Group's outstanding capital commitments were
HK$516 million (31 March 2023: HK$531 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As of 31 March 2024, the Company provided guarantees of approximately
HK$1,920 million (31 March 2023: HK$2,226 million) to financial
institutions in connection with banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries.
The Group had no charge on assets as of 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023:
nil).

Financial Risk Management

With regard to foreign exchange fluctuations, the Group earned revenue
and incurred costs and expenses mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars,
while those of our Mainland China businesses were in Renminbi. Foreign
currency exposure did not pose a significant risk for the Group, but we will
remain vigilant and closely monitor our exposure to movements in relevant
currencies.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 31 March 2024, the Group had a workforce of 19,569 employees (31
March 2023: 19,555).

Being part of the Group’s transitioning from owner management to a
more sustainable professional model, senior management transition at
leadership level and across business units has been successfully completed.
This is crucial for the Group’s long-term development and growth. For the
rest of the team, a systematic selection and promotion mechanism is well-
established to identify and develop future leaders.

Extensive training is provided to staff to raise workforce competitiveness
and to differentiate the Group as an employer of choice. Qualifications
Framework accredited training on shift and store management is provided
to potential branch managers. Tailored mindset and management training
such as situational leadership and positive leadership, is provided to
regional and branch managers. Current and important topics including Al
transformation, anti-deception, IT security, anti-bribery and corruption are
offered to staff to boost awareness and knowledge.

The Group reviews internal equity and market benchmarking on pay level
regularly. Remuneration at all staff levels is based on individual experience,
qualifications, duties and responsibilities. Qualified employees are entitled
to participate in profit-sharing bonus and performance incentive plans, and
Long-Term Incentive schemes to reward staff for their contributions and
achievements.
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A journey of process improvement and technology adaptation is continuously
improving organisational efficiency and staff work experience. Internal processes
are challenged and streamlined, while workflows have been digitalised
especially between branches and head office. Meanwhile, smart office and
HR systems are continuously being upgraded and improved.

The staff fun club is stepping into its ninth year, supported by volunteer
members from all business units and departments. It was set up to unite our
workforce across a wide geographic span and vastly different roles. A broad
range of activities are organised to promote staff engagement and well-
being, including team building, recreational and entertainment events or
classes. Staff of different backgrounds and ethnicities are embraced through
these fun activities, which also build engagement and support in their daily
work environment.

Faced with structural shrinkage of the labour force in Hong Kong, the
Group has continued to focus on resourcing, with effective mechanisms to
support recruitment like promotions at job fairs, forming partnership with
NGOs and internally promoting staff referrals through our bonus scheme.

The Group has been recognised with a number of awards for our efforts
to build a positive, safe and diverse workplace that fosters personal and
professional growth. 2023/24 marked the fifth year we received a “Happy
Company Label” by the Promoting Happiness Index Foundation and the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, the third year we were
recognised at the “Best HR Awards 2023" organised by CTgoodjobs and
the “Employer of Choice Award"” organised by JobMarket.
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SUSTAINABILITY

The Group remains strongly committed to ESG (Environmental, Social and
Governance) initiatives as a core component of our strategy and operations.
We have been a constituent of the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability
Benchmark Index for nine consecutive years with an “AA” rating. Our
efforts were recognised at the “ESG Excellence Awards 2023", organised by
EDigest and The Chinese University of Hong Kong Business School; and the
Group also brought home the Diamond Award and won the “Outstanding
Performance in ESG Governance” category at this year’s “ESG Benchmark
Awards” organised by the Institute of ESG & Benchmark. In May 2024,
one of our QSR outlets won the highest-level “Three Leaf” award in Swire
Properties” Green Kitchen Initiative, marking a significant achievement in
green operations for the Group.

The Group's Hong Kong operations surpassed our annual sustainability
targets this year, already meeting 2024/25 reduction goals for energy
consumption, greenhouse gas emissions, water usage and food waste —
one year ahead of the original timeline.

Since implementing food waste segregation at all our outlets in 2020/21,
we have been actively seeking recycling opportunities. During the year
under review, we expanded our recycling network, increasing the recycling
rate of food waste produced from our Hong Kong operations from 27% to
40%, equivalent to 2,643 tonnes of food waste.

BON APPETIT CAFE 2023
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Through a coordinated strategy to reduce single-use plastic, the Group
discontinued the use of plastic utensils for takeaway meals at all dining
outlets a full week before the Disposable Plastic Ban in effect on 22 April
2024. Secondly, six of our restaurant brands joined hands with Hello Kitty
to launch the “Love the Earth” campaign, a reusable cutlery redemption
programme encouraging customers to reduce reliance on single-use
utensils. The campaign drew massive publicity and awareness to the Group’s
efforts in this area. Taking the programme a step beyond non-plastic cutlery,
we also introduced a “Bring Your Own Cup” pilot programme, inviting
customers to bring their own reusable cups for takeaway beverages.

Expanding the scope of our “Bon Appetit Café” food assistance programme
for its second year, the Group reached out to 4,000 beneficiaries with
an emphasis on caregivers — providing a total of HK$12 million in food
assistance to support the underprivileged. Introducing a new element to
this year's programme, a Lunar New Year celebration feast was held for
beneficiaries at Super Super Congee & Noodles, spreading warmth and
holiday cheer throughout the community.

Full details of our sustainability programmes can be found in the Group’s
Sustainability Report 2023/24.
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OUTLOOK

Against headwinds caused by slower-than-expected recoveries in the
economy and inbound tourism, as well as a northbound shift in consumer
spending patterns, the Group recognises the increasingly challenging
environment in the second half of the financial year. The Group remains
optimistic about its long-term growth, and continues to fine-tune its
improved business models that have proven themselves during difficult
times.

In Hong Kong, we are actively exploring strategies that thrive under
challenging market conditions. We will continue to highlight perceived
value for money through limited time special offers, value meals and other
customer reward promotions, supported by multi-channel brand building
campaigns showcasing signature dishes.

Putting technology into action, the Group will focus on digitalisation as a
key strategy to build brand affiliation; enhance our customer experience and
service; effectively target new, younger customer segments through new
products like meat-alternative, high protein and low carbohydrate offerings;
and generate online sales revenue through kiosks and mobile ordering apps.
We will continue to leverage our ecommerce channel, eatCDC.com, and
other partner platforms to support seasonal holidays such as Christmas, the
Mid-Autumn Festival and Winter Solstice, as well as promotional offers for
consumers.

Margin optimisation remains the key to driving profit. Against the backdrop
of a slower-than-expected economic recovery, labour, food and supply
chain costs have risen — placing additional pressure on margins. Moving
proactively, we have set up a task force to address food costs through
strategic sourcing, menu and product offerings, business planning and
execution. Taking advantage of improved business models, the two fast
food brands will continue to expand their networks in Hong Kong, as
the current adjustment in the property market presents opportunities for
network growth and penetration.
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Our Club 100 membership strategy has yielded positive results, deepening
customer relationships, brand affiliation and engagement. Strengthening
our VIP programmes with an enhanced customer journey and additional
features will be pivotal in driving this strategy forward, and taking
membership levels to new heights.

In Mainland China, the Group’s strategic focus remains firmly on the
disciplined and sustainable expansion of the store network. We remain
confident that our positioning in the fast-casual dining sector will give us
room to grow as the market continues to develop. The Group is committed
to growth in our natural home market of Guangdong — the largest
provincial economy in Mainland China — and building on this competitive
edge to expand throughout the GBA.

We will continue to add value by enhancing efficiency and productivity
to reduce operating costs and grow margins, improving training to boost
quality and customer service, supported by effective marketing to drive
sales — increasing our competitiveness for the future. We are confident that
our diversified business and multi-brand platform offer a wide range of
dining options catering to different customer segments, providing a solid
foundation for sustainable business growth in Hong Kong and Mainland
China.
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Directors and Senior Management

EERSAETEAR

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chairman

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, aged 68, is the Chairman of the Company and
a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr Lo joined the Group in 1982
and had been an Executive Director since 1990 until his re-designation as
a Non-executive Director in April 2016. He was the Managing Director of
the Company from December 1997 to March 2012 and the Chief Executive
Officer from April 2012 to March 2016. As Chairman, Mr Lo is responsible
for leading and managing the Board to ensure that the Board effectively
operates and fully discharges its responsibilities. Mr Lo holds a Master’s
Degree in Chemical Engineering from Stanford University.

Mr Lo is the brother of Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, and a relative of Mr Chan
Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan,
all of whom are Directors of the Company. He is a director of Victor Reach
Investments Limited which has discloseable interests in the shares of the
Company under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, aged 71, joined the Group in 1982. Ms Lo has been
an Executive Director of the Company since 1990 except the period from
September 2016 to December 2017 which she was re-designated as a Non-
executive Director. She ceased to be an Executive Director in April 2019 and
is currently a Non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee.
Ms Lo has more than 40 years of experience in the fast food industry. She
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences from The University of Hong
Kong.

Ms Lo is the sister of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, and a relative of Mr Chan

Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all
of whom are Directors of the Company.
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Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 72, joined the Group in 1984 and
was appointed as a Director of the Company in 1988. Mr Chan led the
Group as Managing Director from 1989 to 1997 and served as the Executive
Chairman from 1997 to 2012. He was re-designated as a Non-executive
Director in April 2012 and served as the Chairman of the Company
from April 2012 to March 2016. Mr Chan is currently a member of the
Remuneration Committee. Having worked as a professional town planner
for various government bodies in Hong Kong and Canada, Mr Chan has
considerable experience in planning and management. Mr Chan holds a
Degree in Sociology and Political Science, a Master’s Degree in City Planning
from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree in
Business Administration, and an Honorary Fellow from Lingnan University.

Mr Chan is the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of
Marketing, the Advisor of the Quality Tourism Services Association and an
Adjunct Professor of The Hang Seng University of Hong Kong.

In past years, Mr Chan was personally bestowed with the “The Stars of
Asia Awards”, the “Executive of the Year Awards”, the “Bauhinia Cup
Outstanding Entrepreneur Awards”, the “Directors of the Year Awards”,
the Honoree, Beta Gamma Sigma of The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and “Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year”.

Mr Chan is currently an independent non-executive director of Starlite
Holdings Limited, Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited, Modern Dental Group Limited and Human Health
Holdings Limited and a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr Chan is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr

Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all of whom are Directors of
the Company.
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Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel, aged 70, joined the Group in 1984 and
has been a Non-executive Director of the Company since 1997. Mr Hui
is currently a member of the Audit Committee. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Social Sciences from The University of Hong Kong and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the Brunel University in the United
Kingdom.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey, aged 74, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 1994 and is the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee. Mr Li is Chairman of IAM Family Office
Limited, a Hong Kong-based investment firm, and has extensive experience
in the fields of investment banking, merchant banking and capital
markets. He is a non-executive director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited,
and an independent non-executive director of Kowloon Development
Company Limited and Pokfulam Development Company Limited. The
shares of all these companies are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr Li holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Columbia University and a Bachelor’s Degree of Science
in Civil Engineering from Brown University.

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, SBS, JP, aged 68, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since July 2004 and is a member of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr Kwok is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong, and is a Partner
of Kwok Yih & Chan (“KYC"), Solicitors. Prior to founding KYC, he worked
in a number of international law firms, including Baker & McKenzie,
Simmons & Simmons (Partner), Andersen Legal (Managing Partner, Greater
China), Mallesons Stephen Jaques (Managing Partner, Mainland China and
Hong Kong) and King & Wood Mallesons (Managing Partner, Asia Strategy
& Markets). Mr Kwok graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia
with combined Degrees in accounting/economics and laws respectively
as well as a Master’s Degree in laws. He also obtained the Advanced
Management Program diploma from the Harvard Business School. He is
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qualified to practise as a solicitor in Hong Kong, Australia, England and
Wales and Singapore. He is also qualified as a Chartered Accountant in
England and Wales and a CPA in Hong Kong and Australia. Mr Kwok
has served regularly on Government boards and committees. Previously,
he was Chairman of the Transport Advisory Committee, Chairman of
the Independent Police Complaints Council, Convenor of the Disciplinary
Appeals Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
Chairman of the Traffic Accident Victims Assistance Advisory Committee,
Chairman of the Appeal Board of the Criminal & Law Enforcement Injuries
Compensation Boards, Vice-Chairman of the Consumer Council and
Deputy Chairman of the Appeal Board under the Consumer Goods Safety
Ordinance. Currently, he is a Chairman of the Buildings Appeal Tribunal
Panel and an arbitrator of the Shenzhen Court of International Arbitration.

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert, BBS, aged 73, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since January 2013 and is the Chairman
of the Audit Committee. Mr Au is the Honorary Chairman of BDO Limited,
the Hong Kong member firm of BDO International Limited. He has more
than 45 years of experience in the accountancy profession. Mr Au was
the President of the Council of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants from December 2007 to December 2008. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.

Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine, aged 56, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since January 2023 and is the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Ms Fang is a director and Chief Executive
Officer of Fang Brothers Holdings Limited. She has been in the garment
industry for over 18 years with extensive knowledge and experience in the
retail markets in Hong Kong, the United Kingdom and the United States. Ms
Fang also has over 14 years of experience in banking and investment and
she was the Head of the Middle Markets Division of ABN AMRO Bank prior
to joining Fang Brothers Holdings Limited.
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Ms Fang is currently a Member of the Election Committee, a Committee
Member of the Nantong City Chinese People's Political Consultative
Conference, the Chairlady of the Garment Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council, a Member of the Advisory Committee
on Hong Kong Polytechnic University School of Fashion and Textiles, a
Member of the Clothing Industry Training Authority and the Chairman of
its Committee on Staff Establishment, a Member of the Board of Trustees
of Yau Yat Chuen School, and the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Woollen &
Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’ Association. Ms Fang graduated from the
Wellesley College of the United States and obtained a Bachelor's Degree in
Economics and Mathematics.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, aged 62, is an Executive Director of the Company
and a director of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lo joined the Group in
1996 and has been an Executive Director since 1998. Mr Lo was appointed
as the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company in September
2015 and had been the Chief Executive Officer from April 2016 to March
2024. Mr Lo is responsible for corporate activities to support the Board in
enhancing shareholder value. Mr Lo had been playing an important role in
crafting the Group’s long-term strategic plan and overseeing the Group's
business development and operations. Mr Lo holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Electronic Engineering & Physics from the Loughborough University
of Technology, a Master’s Degree in Medical Physics from the University
of Surrey, a Doctorate’s Degree in Medical Physics from the University of
London and an Honorary Fellow from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr Lo is currently a non-executive director and a member of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee of Vitasoy International Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a member of the Executive
Committee of Hong Kong Retail Management Association.

Mr Lo is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all of whom are
Directors of the Company. He is a director of Wandels Investment Limited,
Verdant Success Holdings Limited and Sky Bright International Limited, each
of which has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the
provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, aged 50, is an Executive Director of the Company
and a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr Lo also serves as a
director of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lo was a Non-executive Director
of the Company from 2010 until his re-designation as an Executive Director
in March 2016. Mr Lo is responsible for corporate activities to support the
Board in enhancing shareholder value. Mr Lo was in charge of property and
branch development, project and facilities management, quantity surveying
and business analysis of the Group during March 2016 to March 2022. He
had served as Advisor (Special Projects) and Manager (Food Manufacturing)
of the Group from November 2003 to June 2009. Mr Lo holds a Bachelor’s
Degree of Arts, specialist in Economics from University of Toronto and an
Executive Master of Business Administration Degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

Mr Lo is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, all of whom are
Directors of the Company. He is a director of LBK Holding Corporation and
MMW Holding Corporation, each of which has discloseable interests in the
shares of the Company under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chief Executive Officer

Ms Leung Ho Ting, Piony, aged 53, joined the Group in February 2019
and is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group. She also serves as a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. As the Chief Executive Officer,
Ms Leung oversees the business in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
providing visionary leadership to set the strategic direction of the Group for
sustainable growth and profitability. Furthermore, she is also responsible
for the overall management of the organisation, providing oversight of all
operational aspects of the Group and driving its overall success. Ms Leung
has over 25 years of experience in retail and fast moving consumer goods
industries across Asia Pacific region. Prior to joining the Group, Ms Leung
held senior management positions with leading multinational corporations
with extensive experience in general management, brand marketing as well
as strategic business development. She holds a Bachelor's Degree of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong.
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Mr Yang Bin, James, aged 53, joined the Group in February 2016 and is
the Managing Director (Mainland China) of the Group. He also serves as a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Yang is responsible
for strategic planning, business operation and market development of
the Group’s catering businesses in Mainland China and Macau. He is also
in charge of the administrative functions of Mainland China operations,
including finance, information technology, legal and human resources.
Mr Yang has over 20 years of rich management experience gained from
various international corporations where he was responsible for leading
corporate strategic business development, formulating operation direction
and expanding business in Asia Pacific region. Mr Yang holds a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration jointly from the J.L. Kellogg School of
Management of Northwestern University and the School of Business and
Management of The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

Mr Tsang Yin Chiu, Stanley, aged 50, joined the Group in October 2012
and is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group. He also serves as a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Tsang is responsible for financial
strategy and management as well as corporate compliance of the Group.
He is also in charge of branch development and project management of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Tsang held financial management
positions in various listed companies with businesses in different industries.
Mr Tsang holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong, and is a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a Chartered Financial
Analyst.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERWRE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and management
aspire to a high standard of corporate governance and constantly strive
for a responsible and value-driven management focusing on safeguarding
and enhancing interest and value of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) as well as the long-term sustainability of the Group.

Shareholders &
Stakeholders
BRREFNDE

Sustainability &
Growth
A EEE SR Board & Board
Committees
EERREER
BTZEE

People & Planning
ANERRHE
Management Board
B

Risk Management
[\ i 3

Corporate
Management
EEER

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

Adhering to the principles of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code") set out in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), the Directors’ Handbook of
Corporate Governance adopted by the Board guides the Group’s corporate
governance framework and practices. For the year ended 31 March 2024,
the Company complied with all code provisions of the CG Code and
adopted the recommended best practices of the CG Code insofar as they
are relevant and practicable.
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OUR PURPOSE, CORE VALUES, STRATEGY AND
CULTURE

The Board is responsible for setting out the Group’s purpose, values and
strategy; and ensuring their alignment with our corporate culture.

Café de Coral Group pioneered the concept of Chinese fast food,
integrating both Chinese and Western culinary traditions to build our
reputation as “Hongkonger’s canteen”. We are committed to spreading
this spirit throughout the region, fulfilling our role as a community dining
hall by offering delicious, nutritious and hygienic food at reasonable prices —
with the goal of bringing happiness to our customers, employees and
shareholders.

Our corporate culture is built around a dedication to continuous learning
and improvement, which compels us to innovate and adapt to the
changing environment. Applying these principles, we approach setbacks
with a positive attitude, and learn from adversity to better face the
challenges of the future.

Committed to the highest standards of governance, transparency and
integrity, our management team leads by personal example, setting
a high bar for business ethics by living up to our core values: Pursuit of
Excellence, People-Oriented, Integrity, Keeping Up with the Times and
Creating Sustainable Value.

Pursuit of

Excellence
‘ BREH ’

We balance the needs of customers,

employees, society and the environment

to create sustainable value.
TEEHE  REEE
HEMREE MR -

8T

Creating
Sustainable Value
HETWRHEEE
Core Values
R AR%MEE

\We embrace innovation, have a long-

Keeping Up with
term vision, adopt technology and ping e
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Integrity

We prioritise food quality and excellent service
to meet the needs of our customers.
BIRYGH - REMRYS - mEERR

PEs

People-Oriented
BARZ

We respect and care for

every partner, share our
achievements and help each
other grow.
NEENBEERSZNE BT

o fIRBHDZRR - HBEMT

/We uphold honesty and integrity in all our
actions.

improve efficiency. Ll BT R A RS -
BEED - BAAFERE - . 4

HRFH I -
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The Board ensures these values are embedded throughout the Group,
shaping our corporate culture and forming the foundation of the Group’s
business models and long-term success. The Group's operating practices,
workplace policies and stakeholder relationships give us the opportunity
to bring our culture and values to life, supported by a strong governance
framework, disciplined risk management and effective internal controls,
which create long-term value for Shareholders through continued,
sustainable business development.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by the Board which assumes the responsibility for
leadership and control and be collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

Directors

The Board currently comprises ten members, including four Non-executive
Directors, four Independent Non-executive Directors and two Executive
Directors (collectively, the “Directors”) as follows:

Non-executive Directors
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine

Executive Directors
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter Mot
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan

Note: Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter retired as Chief Executive Officer on 1 April 2024.
Biographies, including relationships between members of the Board (if

any) are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section of the
Company’s Annual Report 2023/24.
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The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and Non-executive
Directors with each Director having sound knowledge, experience and
expertise contributing to the successful performance and development
of the Group. All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the Shareholders and have exercised their duties of care,
skill and diligence. In situation where certain areas of expertise/advice are
required, external advisers or consultants shall be engaged to advise the
Directors at the Company’s expenses. Comprehensive liability insurance
coverage is in place to provide protection to the Company, the Directors and
senior management.

The Board conducts periodically evaluation of its performance with a view
to enhancing the Board’s effectiveness and corporate governance. The
last Board evaluation assisted by an external professional advisor helped
the Board in identifying and strengthened areas for improvement of the
Board's operations, including extra focus on corporate vision and strategy,
management succession plan, Directors’ involvement, as well as better
collaboration and communication with management.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr Lo Hoi
Kwong, Sunny and Ms Leung Ho Ting, Piony (“Ms Leung”) respectively. Ms
Leung has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer to succeed Mr Lo Tak
Shing, Peter from 1 April 2024. Her biography is set out in the “Directors
and Senior Management” section of the Company’s Annual Report
2023/24. There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships) between the Chairman and the Chief

Executive Officer.
Responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly

established and set out in the charter adopted by the Board (the “Board
Charter™”).
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The Chairman, being a Non-executive Director, provides leadership for the
Board and is accountable to the Board ultimately. The Chairman takes the
lead to encourage Directors to make active contribution to the Board's
affairs and ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company.

The Chief Executive Officer represents the management of the Company
and is accountable to the Board. Her main responsibilities include overseeing
the implementation of the Group’s strategies, objectives and policies as
well as monitoring day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses and
operations.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors
give the Board the benefit of their skills, expertise, varied background
and experiences. Through active participation in Board meetings and
serving on various Board Committees, the Non-executive Directors and the
Independent Non-executive Directors bring in independent judgment and
make valuable contributions to the effective direction and strategic decision-
making of the Group.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors under the guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee has
assessed the independence of each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors during the year and considered them still independent.

The Board reviews from time to time its mechanisms of ensuring
independent views and inputs are available to the Board and considers them
effective. A summary of the established mechanisms is set out below:

o Structure of the Board and its Committees

v/ The Board maintains a balanced composition of Executive, Non-
executive and Independent Non-executive Directors to ensure a
strong independent element in the Board.

v All Board Committees are chaired by Independent Non-
executive Directors and majority members of the Committees are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

v The Nomination Committee reviews the Board’s structure, size
and composition annually.
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Appointment process of Independent Non-executive Directors

v Assessment of suitability of candidates is based on the Board
adopted procedures, including consideration of background and
personality, integrity and reputation, other commitments, etc.

The Nomination Committee conducts annual review of Independent

Non-executive Directors’ independence, taking into account the

following criteria:

v Fulfilment of independence criteria required by the Listing Rules;

v Possession of required character, integrity, perspective, skills and
experience to fulfil the role of an independent director; and

v Expression of objective views, provision of independent advice
and guidance, as well as exercise of independent judgement
relating to the affairs of the Board and the Company.

The Board conducts evaluation of its performance periodically
for Directors to express their views for ongoing enhancement of

operations of the Board and its Committees.

The Chairman of the Board meets regularly with Independent Non-
executive Directors outside the boardroom.

Directors are entitled to seek in-house and independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense where appropriate.

Independent Non-executive Directors are remunerated by fixed fee
and have not participated in the Company’s share schemes.
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Diversity

The Company’s Board Diversity Policy sets out its approach to achieve and
maintain its diversity through consideration of a number of measurable
objectives in terms of skills, professional experience, cultural and educational
background, gender, age, as well as other attributes and strengths that are
required for the Company’s business from time to time. Board appointments
are made on a merit basis and candidates are considered against objective
selection criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. The Board has delegated the Nomination Committee to review the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy on an annual
basis, make recommendations on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity of the Board as appropriate and monitor the progress on achieving
the objectives.

The Board embraces gender diversity of directors. Currently, the Board has
two female members out of ten Directors. In the annual review conducted
by the Nomination Committee, the Nomination Committee was of the
view that the current structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
is suitable for leading the Group’s development and recommendation
on setting targets for further Board diversity would be considered when
appropriate. The Nomination Committee also considered that the
implementation of the existing Board Diversity Policy remains effective for
the Board and the Company.

As of 31 March 2024, the gender ratio for the Group’s workforce in Hong
Kong is 74.6% female and 25.4% male, and in Mainland China 64.5%
female and 35.5% male. These ratios reflect the local job market supply
and the industry pattern. Our current workforce is diverse in terms of race,
ethnicity, age or religions. The Group is committed to fostering diversity and
inclusion in the workforce and has developed policies around an inclusive
workplace including non-discriminatory people processes.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted specific procedures for identifying, assessing and
nominating suitable candidates to the Board for appointment as a new
director of the Company in addition to the incumbents or to fill a vacancy.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for conducting search for
candidates, including potential nominees from the target pool developed by
the Board from time to time, recommendations from Directors and senior
management and engagement of external consultancies or utilisation of
services of professional bodies. Nomination to the Board shall be based
on merit and consideration of objective selection criteria developed by the
Nomination Committee in light of the needs and desires of the Board as
well as the Company’s business and strategies. Selected individuals shall be
evaluated against the desired criteria with consideration of the following

factors:

o skills and knowledge

o related business / financial acumen and experience

o leadership and communication capabilities

o cultural background and personality

° integrity and reputation

o other commitments, including directorships in other listed companies
and public organisations

o independence criteria of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (applicable
for appointment of independent non-executive directors)

o other attributes and strengths, as appropriate

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

In compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules and the Bye-
laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws"), (i) any Director who is appointed
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board is subject to election
by Shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment; and (ii) all
Directors should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and are eligible for re-election.

There is no specific term of appointment for Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company for they are all
subject to retirement by rotation as required by the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules.

45

REHER
AABIERWEFERRF - SAIEMES=NEAM
EZRERYE  FERREERABAR - 25
ZESRAEYBEREN  BREXBEZREITE
BIYMATE BREELREREEABZS
RS SRR A A S A B X BIB RIS P
BNEERIERA - EFRERARAAET R
RA- ME2EZHRAZBERESTRARA
A G M RRGAI T MBI E 2 FEUEBER - &
BEABBIZEMFLEANLEZ B N IIRREK
FERHE

. HERRBENANE

. HER%E / SR SRR
. RES B MIBREET

. XAEE F R MR

. HIEREE

. HipfEes  BREREM ETRRRAR

gz =R
. BB 2 B R CERR R EIEL
FEMITES)

il

. Hip B REERS (HEE)

ZERERES

MR ETRAIR AR MALZBE - (VEMRE
FEEUEBERERAEREERIER
8 AREZEAEEREAS LERRE
2 RTAEEARIE=FHESTE—
R WIFEEEERE -

ARBBEAITES MBI FATESTARER
AARI R ETMRRAIZ RERESE  WERE
BEEEED



Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Development
Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction package
to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the operations,
business and governance policies of the Group. In addition, our external
legal adviser meets with the new Director to ensure that he/she is fully
aware of the responsibilities as a director under statute and common
law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal requirements and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors recognise that continuous professional development is critical
for them to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains relevant. Directors receive
from senior management and the Company Secretary regular updates
and presentations on developments to the Group’s business and changes
to the statutory and regulatory requirements to facilitate the Directors’
discharge of their responsibilities. The Company organises training and
briefing sessions regularly for the Directors to help them keep abreast with
the Group’s business and operation as well as developments of regulatory
and compliance requirements. Directors are also encouraged to participate
in continuous improvement programmes held by external bodies at the
expense of the Company.
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All Directors are required to provide the Company with their training record
on a regular basis. Summary of Directors’ training records for the year is set

FrEESYATERARARRIEERKREZHFIL
% - FRESFHIILEMINT -

out below:

Directors

Non-executive Directors

E=x

SEHITEE

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman) EFRNTE (FE)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita BREBLL
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRIA S
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel FHRZE S

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUIHTEF

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FEESE

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry MBS L

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert &M A&

Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine FIREZ+
Executive Directors HITES

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter BIBASLSE

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan EEAESTE

Note:  Training relating to (a) business development update of the Group; (b) business environment BT

/ management; (c) corporate governance / risk management; (d) Environmental, Social and

Training Areas "%
13 B ()

a, b
ab
a,b,cde
a, b

a,b,cdefg
a,b,cdefqg
a, b
a, b

a, b
a, b

BIARY R (@) AEEEBRNER  OFHERE/
EE(OREER/RBRER ()RR LERER
BE ERAEBE KRR OIRIT &5

Governance Reporting; (e) legal or regulatory update; (f) banking / accounting / financial
reporting / taxation; and (g) information technology

THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board Charter sets out the duties and powers of the Board as well as
the roles and responsibilities of the Directors, the Chairman of the Board,
the Chief Executive Officer and the Management Board.
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The Board is vested with duties and accountability to Shareholders
regarding management of the Group in addition to those powers and
authorities conferred upon it under the Bye-laws. The role of the Board is to
provide overall strategic direction for the Group and effective oversight of
management. The Board Charter sets out a schedule of matters reserved to
the Board which mainly include the following:

o Approval of strategic and business plans and financial budget of the
Group;
o Succession planning, appointment and remuneration of Directors,

Chief Executive Officer and senior management;

o Approval of significant transactions and investments and major
financial matters;

o Ensuring risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, including material risks relating to environment, social and
governance (“"ESG");

o Approval of Company’s announcements, circulars and reports,
including interim and annual results announcements and reports;
and

o Appointment or removal of external auditor.
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The Board has delegated to the Management Board the authority to
manage the day-to-day affairs of the Group. The Management Board is
headed by the Chief Executive Officer and its members include the Executive
Directors, the Chief Financial Officer and such other senior executives of the
Group as nominated by the Chief Executive Officer and agreed by the Board.
When the Board delegates aspects of its management and administration
functions to management, clear directions are given as to the limits of the
authority delegated, in particular, the circumstances where management
should report to the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board reviews its delegation
of responsibilities to the Management Board from time to time to ensure
that they remain appropriate to the need of the Group and its business.
Principal functions that are delegated to the Management Board include the
following:

o Development and implementation of corporate strategy, business
plans and financial budgets;

o Approval of transactions, investments and financial matters within
the limit delegated by the Board;

o Management of day-to-day operations of the Group;

o Development, implementation and monitoring of risk management
and internal control, including ESG related risks;

o Development of human resources policies and succession planning
of executives; and

o Ensuring the Board and its Committees are provided with sufficient

and relevant information on a timely basis in relation to the Group’s
business and financial performance.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee to assist the Board to discharge its
functions. Each Committee has specific written terms of reference which
sets out clearly the Committee’s duties and authority. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are published on the websites of the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties, including the management support and engagement of independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense. The Committees report to
the Board on their decisions or recommendations and maintain an effective
and constructive communication with the Board.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee currently comprises the following five Directors
with majority members being Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey
(Chairman of the Committee)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 15 June 2023)

Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny Non-executive Director and Chairman

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan Executive Director

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board with due regard of diversity of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year when the
following key issues were reviewed and considered and recommendations
were made to the Board where appropriate:

o The structure, size and composition of the Board with due regard of
the Board Diversity Policy;

o Implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy;
o Independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors;
o Directors for Shareholders’ re-election at the annual general meeting

of the Company held on 7 September 2023;

o Implementation and effectiveness of the Board’s mechanisms to
ensure independent views and inputs are available; and

° Succession of the Chief Executive Officer.
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises the following four
Directors with majority members being Independent Non-executive

Directors:

Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine Independent Non-executive Director
(Chairman of the Committee) (Appointed on 15 June 2023)

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael Non-executive Director
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The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s policy and structure
for remuneration of Directors and senior management and the specific
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior management.
Remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined
with reference to duties and responsibilities of the role, experience and
performance of the individuals as well as the prevailing market conditions.
Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) are
remunerated with fixed fee and have not been granted any equity-based
remuneration with performance-related elements.

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the
year when the following key issues were reviewed and considered and
recommendations were made to the Board where appropriate:

o Remuneration package of Chairman, Executive Directors, Chief
Executive Officer and other senior management members based on
individual performance appraisal;

o Grant of share awards under the Company’s Share Award Scheme;
o Renewal of the Company’s Share Award Scheme; and
o Grant of share options under the Company’s Share Option Scheme.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee currently comprises the following six Directors with
majority members being Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert
(Chairman of the Committee)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey
Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine

Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 17 June 2024)

Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 15 June 2023)

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel Non-executive Director
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The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the financial
information of the Company and overseeing the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems as well as corporate
governance functions.

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year when the
following key issues were reviewed and considered and recommendations

were made to the Board where appropriate:

o Engagement of external auditor, independence and remuneration of
external auditor;

o Audit findings by external auditor and related management
responses, as well as development in accounting standards and its

effects on the Group;

o Financial reporting system, accounting policies and practices, annual
and interim results announcements and financial statements;

o Engagement of external auditors for provision of non-audit services;

o Internal audit plan and findings, performance of risk management
and internal control systems and their effectiveness;

o Corporate governance practices and policies, compliance with CG
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report;

o Internal audit relating to the Company’s ESG reporting;

o Annual review of the Group’s continuing connected transactions;
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o Renewal of Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy; and

o Adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s internal audit, accounting
and financial reporting functions, as well as those relating to ESG
performance and reporting.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two private sessions with the
external auditor and external internal audit consultant respectively without
the presence of management.

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Regular Board and Board Committee meetings are scheduled a year ahead
to facilitate maximum attendance by the Directors. Formal notices of at
least 14 clear calendar days are given in respect of regular meetings and
arrangement is in place to invite Directors to include matters in the agenda.
For special Board or Board Committee meetings, reasonable notices are
given.

Agenda of the meetings and the accompanying papers for regular Board
and Board Committee meetings are sent in full to Directors at least three
clear calendar days before the date of the meetings.

Minutes of Board and Board Committee meetings record in sufficient
details the matters considered and decision reached, including any concern
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions
of minutes are sent to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after the meetings and kept by the Company Secretaries.
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The Board held four regular meetings at approximately quarterly intervals ~ R EE BN E T — K HE BTN K FE H
during the year. Directors’ attendance of the Board Meetings, Board # < REZENHE T _MWFE=A=+—H
Committee Meetings, Annual General Meeting and other meetings HFERT2EEZRTH EZRETZES
delegated by the Board held during the year ended 31 March 2024 are set % - REREAFAShHEGBEEFIRESHZ
out below: [E4EEIINT -

Number of meetings attended/held during the year
FRME/ BRZEERY

Budget
Deliberation
Nomination Remuneration Audit Working Annual
Board Committee  Committee ~ Committee Group General

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EER REZEE FMZEEE ELZES HEESIFA4 RRAE

g3 =E ] - 23 =f N -

Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny ERALE 4/4 11 N/AE N/A R 1 11

(Chairman) (£E)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita @ BEBL LY 4/4 NAZE R N/ATER 3/3 il 0N
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael Bt EE 44 NAZE R 22 NATER il 0N
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel FRELE 44 N/ATE A N/ATNER 44 1" 1
Independent Non-executive Directors &3 JE8i{TE S
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey TEERE 4/4 171 212 4/4 N/ANER "
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry PHERE 4/4 n 22 44 NATHER 17N
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert BEMLLE 44 NAZE R NATER 4/4 N/ATER 1
Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine ® B ZL® 44 NATER o NANER  NATER 1N
Executive Directors H1ES
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter BER%E 44 NATHER  NATER  NATHES 17 7N
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BEARE 4/4 on N/A R N/ARER 1 11
Notes: BT
(@) Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee on 15 June 2023. (@ BEBLIR-_Z_=F A THERZEREZEES

KE o

(b) Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine was appointed as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee b) ARBZTR _ZE_=FA A THRARZIATMNEES
and a member of the Nomination Committee on 15 June 2023. FRRIREEEGKE -

55



Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Group’s
financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the reporting period.
The Board is aware that its responsibilities to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim reports, reports to
regulators, other inside information and financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules as well as information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

Management provides the Board and its Committees with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before the Board
for approval. Each Director has separate and independent access to the

Company’s senior management for inquiries and additional information.

External Auditor
A statement by the external auditor about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report contained in the Company’s
Annual Report 2023/24.

The Company has adopted a non-assurance services concurrence policy on
engagement of external auditor for non-audit services. The external auditor
may provide non-audit services to the Group as permitted under the policy
provided that the external auditor’s independence of audit work shall not be
impaired. The Audit Committee reviews the nature, size and proportion of
non-audit service fees as to the total service fees of the external auditor on
an annual basis.

For the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:

ISR AR

ESERNSAEERUARE 2B HHRE
NEEMAIE M RRAE BN ERRRE 2 5%
RRA R RAE IR G RBANN  SLFERHH
HE RAEEERIZHE  RELTHRAR
EATHRBEZEMAREMMTBER - AR
RIBZEGIREATREZEN  EERANTH
AR BW R SNIERHIERT -

EREERMEERMEETZEGRHTRR
B MREFAUMERTESRIEZVE
KEMERHELFMIEFE - SEZATBTEE
RRBZ2REEAE  UEHE R LB
—HEH

SIS B
SNEBIZ BRI B 2 R ¥R A (E1E L 2 B AR #E D
AR A] 202324 FH 2 B ZEEVRE A

RRRE RN —IRA BRSNS BN R 1 3F
ZBIRTS 2 FHBOR o SMNBAZBRED AT FEBUR
B E N E IR - TR EEREMH
SERBR 2Bt - ERZESFF R
BB Rt 2 SERBRE ZIEE - RER
HEEEEREEANVKRELH -

REBEFA - AT REENEZRIGES
RSS2 B #IT

Fee paid/payable

Type of services AR5 38 5l 2 EAER
HK$’000

FET

Audit services ZERTE 3,701
Non-audit services* IERZEARTE * 1,904
Total 4t 5,605

*  Include mainly advisory services on information system, ESG and taxation
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Maintaining sound risk management and internal control systems is pivotal
to the fulfilment of the Group’s business objectives and its long-term
sustainable growth. The Board has an overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks according to the Board’s
risk appetite in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard Shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. To this end, the Board continuously
reviews and makes improvements in its risk management and internal
control systems.

Risk Management Structure and Process

The risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
founded on internationally recognised standard and designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives of
the Group and can provide reasonable, but no absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The systems are made of by two essential
features - the risk governance structure and risk management process.

Risk Governance Structure — The Group's risk governance structure
is based on the “3 lines of defence” model comprised of day-to-day
operational management and control, risk and compliance oversight, and
independent assurance. The enterprise risk management (“ERM”) policy
formalised by the Group clearly defines the roles and responsibilities of
each of the multiple layers of the structure, including the Board, Audit
Committee, Management Board, department and operation heads as well
as Internal Audit.

Board
BEER

1st Line of Defense:

Risk Content and Accountability
B

EEAETREE

Department and operation heads
BPAREELE

— Day-to-day management control
and internal control measures
AEEREE R AT

2nd Line of Defense:

Risk Process and Accountability
EERR

ERBEREE

Management Board chaired by the
Chief Executive Officer
HEFHTEFENERR

— Risk and compliance oversight
R KA REEE
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The Audit Committee, delegated by the Board, provides oversight and
review on risk management, financial reporting and internal control system.

The Company’s Internal Audit team, co-sourced with external consultant,
is an independent function reporting directly to the Audit Committee. It
provides independent, objective, assurance and consulting services on risk
management and internal control.

Risk Management Process — The Group’s ERM approach is a structured
mechanism and a continuous process of identifying, evaluating, prioritising,
managing and monitoring of the risks that the Group faces. The risks
are categorised into strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and
compliance risks. The key process of the Group’s ERM is illustrated below:

Risk Identification

2 B

BERZECHEERETEN  HRARERE
PR ERE R BR SR R E L B MR B

RRB 2 AEBEINMARB I BeE - EINERR
AUNAEERERRABRZESER - AHE
HEREREERABEEEREBY T
B~ OREE NS SARTS o

mEEEREF — ANEBZCERBERT
EREBD R ZEG - FERR - JHh - 28
BREREEAF BELERAKEFMEEH2E
b2 o Rla 0 RAREER  2ERE  MBE
BhERER AEEECXREREE CEER
FRHIlRENT

pommmemonen- D Identify potential risks of key processes ~ ----------- DSEEEEEEEEEES

at least annually
SLEFHFFEEHE EERR
Annual Review

FERH

Conduct annual review on the
effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems
%ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ%&*%%z*ﬁ
LYk

Strategic and
Operational

Objectives

A FHREERE

Risk Reporting
B B BEE 3R

Submit risk monitoring and
management reports on a regular basis Risk Monitorin
ERER AR R E RS apEn D

Risk Assessment

[ B FP A

Evaluate and prioritise the risks
at least annually

RO EFE R EL TS R
BIEBRIERF

v

Risk Response

JeB Pz 3

Formulate risk mitigation plan for the
significant risks identified
TP 2 B KR\ B 1 R T L Bk g =t

Define risk indicators and set acceptable

indicator levels for monitoring the
significant risks identified

WESHEPT E Z EAR R FUE R R IER

R DGR RARE AT 2 R
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The ERM adopted by the Group is embedded in our strategy development,
business planning and day-to-day operations. The Group adopts a control
and risk self-assessment methodology and continuously assesses and
manages its risk profile on a regular basis. The ERM system uses risk
indicators and red flags to monitor the priority risks identified. Risk owners
are required to submit risk alerts with risk mitigation plan promptly and
regular risk reports are presented to the Management Board and Audit
Committee for ongoing review and monitoring. The key risks identified,
managed and monitored during the year included food safety, supply chain
management, site acquisition, project management and human resources
management. Sustainability-related risks are under ongoing monitoring
and managed by the Group’s ERM framework. Climate change is currently
considered an emerging risk to the Group and further actions will be taken
if such risk becomes a significant threat to our business operations.

Annual Review of System Effectiveness

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2024. The review covered all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls. Heads of
key business units and functional departments are required to confirm the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system of their
responsible areas during the year. The Board has received a confirmation
from the Management Board on the effectiveness of the systems. No
significant areas of concern have been identified and the Board considered
the systems effective and adequate.

During the annual review, the Audit Committee has also considered
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s internal audit, accounting and
financial reporting functions, as well as those relating to ESG performance
and reporting.
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Inside Information

The Company takes seriously of its obligations under the Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules with respect
to procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of
inside information. The Group’s Disclosure Policy sets out guidelines and
procedures to the Directors and officers of the Group to ensure inside
information of the Group is disseminated to the public in equal and timely
manner. Under the Disclosure Policy, the Company’s Disclosure Team
comprising the Executive Directors and members of senior management,
has the overall delegated authority to decide whether the information
reported is inside information and requires disclosure and to refer the
subject matter to the Board for approval. Measures are in place to preserve
confidentiality of inside information and to ensure that its recipients
recognise their obligations to maintain it confidential. In communicating
with external parties, only designated officers are authorised to respond to
enquiries in allocated areas of issues. Communication is held regularly for
officers to facilitate their understanding and compliance with the policy.

Anti-corruption and Whistleblowing

The Group seeks to conduct its business honestly and with integrity at all
times. Anti-corruption and whistleblowing are essential to establishing a
healthy corporate culture and promoting high ethical standards within the
organisation.

The Group has adopted its Best Practice and Guideline on Occupational
Code of Ethics, setting clear anti-corruption policy that supports anti-
corruption laws and regulations as well as to promote an anti-corruption
culture within the organisation. The Code provides guidelines on handling
conflicts of interests and restrictions on acceptance of advantages from
business partners. Anti-corruption training is provided as part of the
onboarding process and on an ongoing basis to ensure the Company’s
expectations are effectively communicated to all levels of staff.
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A Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and Investigation is in place to provide
guidance to our employees and business partners who may, from time to
time, need to raise issues relating to the Group in confidence and to ensure
that they can raise any matters of genuine concern, in the knowledge
that they will be taken seriously and that the matters will be investigated
appropriately and regarded as confidential. Under the Group’s Protocol on
Malpractice Reporting and Investigation, employees and business partners
may raise their concern by sending their malpractice reports to the Head of
Internal Audit who reports directly to the Audit Committee on receipt and
investigation of malpractice reports. For malpractice reports concerning any
member of the Management Board, informants may make direct reports to
the Chairman of Audit Committee.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix C3 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of Directors of the Company, all
Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2024.

The Board has also adopted written guidelines based on the Model Code
for relevant employees of the Group in respect of their dealings in the
Company’s securities.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Company Secretaries of the Company report to the Board and also to the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer on day-to-day duties
and responsibilities. Company Secretaries are responsible for supporting
and advising the Board on governance matters. All Directors have access
to the advice and service of the Company Secretaries to ensure that Board
procedures, all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The Company Secretaries complied with the professional training
requirement under the Listing Rules during the year.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Dividend Policy

The Company endeavours to enhance returns on Shareholders’ investment
by way of, inter alia, distribution of regular and stable dividends. Guided
by the Dividend Policy adopted by the Board, the Company’s dividend
payout amount and frequency shall be based on the Group’s profit available
for distribution and shall make reference to historical payout ratios and
amounts to achieve consistency in dividend distribution. The Board shall take
into account all relevant circumstances when it decides on the Company’s
dividend distribution, including but not limited to, the Group’s business
performance, operating results, cash flow, working capital requirement and
business development plans as well as general market condition and other
internal and external factors that the Board may consider relevant. Dividend
payment shall normally be in the form of cash, unless the Board resolves
otherwise.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has established Shareholders” Communication Policy to
ensure effective communication with Shareholders by providing balanced
and understandable information about the Group in a factual and timely
manner. The Policy also serves to govern the Company’s open and regular
dialogue with Shareholders, fund managers, analysts and the media through
effective corporate communication system covering various communication
channels including Shareholders’ meetings, corporate’s publications and
website, press and analyst conferences. During the year, comments and
areas of concern solicited from investors and analysts were reported to the
Board by management regularly to facilitate the Board’s understanding of
the investment community. Implementation of the Policy was also reviewed
during the year and the Policy is considered effective.
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Shareholders’ Meeting

At the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 7 September
2023, the Chairman of the Board and majority of the Board members,
including Chairmen and representatives of the Board Committees as well as
senior management and the external auditor were present to communicate
with Shareholders. Procedures for the poll voting on the proposed
resolutions were explained at the meeting by the Chairman. The Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, acted as scrutineer to ensure the votes were properly
counted and the poll results of the meeting were published on both the
websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Except for the annual general meeting, the Company did not convene any
other Shareholders’ meeting during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Shareholders’ Rights

Subject to the applicable laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and the Bye-
laws, Shareholders may convene general meetings of the Company and put
forward proposals at general meetings. The procedures for Shareholders to
convene a special general meeting, put forward proposals at Shareholders’
meetings and propose a person for election as a director of the Company
are available on the website of the Company at www.cafedecoral.com.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concern to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the Company at the
Company's head office at 10th Floor, Café de Coral Centre, 5 Wo Shui
Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also
make enquiries to the Board directly at general meetings.

Important shareholders’ dates in respect of the financial year ended 31

March 2024 are set out in the “Financial Highlights and Calendar” section
of the Company’s Annual Report 2023/24.
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Constitutional Documents

A special resolution was passed by the Shareholders at the last annual
general meeting of the Company held on 7 September 2023 approving
the adoption of the new Bye-laws in order to, among other things, (i)
bring the bye-laws of the Company in line with the Core Shareholder
Protection Standards set out in Appendix A1 to the Listing Rules; (ii)
reflect certain amendments made to the Listing Rules and the applicable
laws and procedures of Bermuda; and (iii) make other consequential and
housekeeping changes. The Company’s Memorandum of Association and
Bye-laws are available on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

Investor Relations

Management of the Company meets with institutional investors, financial
analysts or media from time to time and provides updates on the business
progress and recent developments of the Company. The Company also
participates in investor summits or corporate days when appropriate, to
enhance communication with the investment community. Investors are
welcomed to send their enquiries to our Investor Relations Department
at ir@cafedecoral.com or browse the Company’s website for the latest
information of the Group.

64

HEEREXT
ARBR-F_=FNALBETZ LERR
BERE DRBREE — B BRE RN
REHR - B (EFERE) () ARE 2 AR
BIFFE _Er AR IR EE A BT 2 iR DB IR SRR F&
K () R ET AR N B REE RDAD] K A2
Fr2&5] + R (ii) YEHH EL AR FE R FGERT » A
N2 BBERAM S AR AR AT AR R
BB AR -

REEBIZR

RAARIBEEIRG AEEBIRESE B
B REFBEAQAREBERRERE
NZER e RARMNEELHKREE RSN
¥H B ERALZER  REEWNE
ERER - JEBEAREEIREE BRI -
B E I UE A ir@cafedecoral.com 8B AR A4
U - BEBAKERFEM °



ARBEBEBFRAR 2023/24 G5

Shareholding as at 31 March 2024

According to the register of members maintained by the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong, the Company had 546 registered shareholders as at
31 March 2024.

R-ZB-_ME=HF=+—B8ERAR
i

BREBEARREFEREERNELBFEZIRRES
ft - KRR ZZE-_WFE=A=+—BHHA
546 ZERCHER o

% of Aggregate % of total

Number of registered number of issued shares

registered shareholders shares held IHE 84T

Size of registered BRERRE shareholders BRBRR BEZRHG i3 4858
shareholdings BRE BREREHE ZADLE B ZBEDL
0-1,000 0-1,000 135 24.725 10,252 0.002
1,001 - 5,000 1,001 - 5,000 244 44.689 638,645 0.109
5,001 - 10,000 5,001 - 10,000 62 11.355 521,800 0.089
10,001 - 100,000 10,001 — 100,000 80 14.652 2,586,937 0.442
100,001 or over 100,001 8¢ A £ 25 4.579 581,946,399 99.358
Total gt 546* 100 585,704,033 100

*  This number did not include shareholders whose shares were held by HKSCC Nominees Limited
as an intermediary, which holds an aggregate of 403,210,198 shares of the Company as at 31
March 2024.

Based on public information available and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained the required 25% public float
throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of
this report.

Details of shareholdings of the Directors and substantial shareholders of the

Company are disclosed in the Directors’ Report contained in the Company’s
Annual Report 2023/24.

On behalf of the Board
LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 June 2024
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Directors’ Report

EER®RE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial

statements of Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group is
principally engaged in operation of quick service restaurants, casual dining
chains, institutional catering, as well as food processing and distribution in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. The activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group delivered significantly improved results for the full financial year
amidst the challenging operating environment in both Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Our ongoing focus on fine-tuning business models and
operations continued to enhance profit margins across the Group.

In Hong Kong, all business segments — Quick Service Restaurants (QSR),
Casual Dining and Institutional Catering — recorded improved results amid
slower-than-expected recoveries in the economy and inbound tourism, as
well as a northbound shift in consumer spending patterns. QSR raised its
performance through product design and promotional offerings, branding
campaigns and marketing promotions. Effective cost control, manpower
productivity enhancement, digitalisation and automation also contributed to
profit margin improvement during the year.

The Casual Dining business adapted to changing consumer dining
preferences, attracting diners with menu offerings and marketing
promotions. The Institutional Catering business has fully returned to normal
operations and growth, and remains the clear market leader in Hong Kong.

The Group’s business in the wider Greater Bay Area (GBA) continued to
recover with healthy margins, overcoming slower conditions in the local
economy during the year with strong same store sales growth. Existing
shops maintained healthy performance and stable operations. Building on
this solid foundation, the Group opened a record number of new shops in
the GBA during the year while maintaining steady profit margins.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

A fair review of the Group’s business for the year with analysis using
financial key performance indicators as well as discussion on principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group subsequent to the financial year end, if any, and future
development of the Group’s business are provided in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section in the Company’s Annual Report 2023/24.

Together with the Annual Report 2023/24, the Company publishes its
standalone Sustainability Report on the websites of the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
which discloses the Group’s sustainability performance for the reporting
year in four key pillars, namely, Catering to Customers, Empowering our
Employees, Focusing on Food and Preserving the Planet. The report discusses
in detail the Company’s environmental policies and performance as well as
our relationship and continuous engagement through various channels with
our customers, employees, suppliers and other key stakeholders who have a
significant impact on the Group.

The Group conducts its business in compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations and integrates industry best practices into our operations
where appropriate. Details of the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s business and
operations are set out in the Sustainability Report 2023/24 as well as the
Corporate Governance Report in the Annual Report 2023/24.

The abovementioned discussions in the Company’s Annual Report and

Sustainability Report for the year ended 31 March 2024 form part of this
Directors’ Report.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 99 of the Company’s Annual Report 2023/24.

During the year, an interim dividend of HK15 cents per share was paid. The
board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK42 cents per share, totalling approximately
HK$245,996,000 to the shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company on 12 September 2024. The proposed final
dividend is subject to approval by shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 5 September 2024
("AGM"). Details of dividends for the year ended 31 March 2024 are set
out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2024, pursuant
to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to approximately
HK$1,061,645,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the percentage of sales or purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers was less than
30%.

PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes of the Group
are set out on pages 232 to 233 of the Company’s Annual Report 2023/24.

PRINCIPAL SELF-USED PROPERTIES

Details of the principal self-used properties of the Group are set out on
pages 234 to 237 of the Company’s Annual Report 2023/24.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totalling
HK$275,000.
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SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, no shares of the Company were issued on exercise of
share options under the Company’s Share Option Scheme. Details of the
movements of share capital of the Company during the year are set out in
Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Company’s Share Option Scheme disclosed in this report,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 238 to 240 of the Company’s
Annual Report 2023/24.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2024, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed the Company’s listed securities.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS
OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme described in this report, the Company
had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
as at 31 March 2024. Save as disclosed in this report, there has been no
issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar
rights during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Non-executive Directors
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine

Executive Directors
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter Mot
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan

Note:  Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter retired as Chief Executive Officer on 1 April 2024.

In accordance with Bye-law 84(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, (i) Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel, Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert
and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan shall retire by rotation at the AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM; and (i) Mr Li Kwok
Sing, Aubrey (“Mr Li") shall also retire at the AGM. Mr Li has informed the
Board that he will not stand for re-election as a Director at the AGM and
will retire from office with effect from the conclusion of the AGM.

Information on Directors proposed for re-election will be set out in the
circular to shareholders of the Company accompanying the resolutions to
re-elect them at the AGM.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors and officers
of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.
Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors and the officers
of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets of the Company which may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duties. The
Company has maintained liability insurance to provide appropriate cover for
the directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report and “Related Party Transactions” in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2024 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a new share option scheme upon the passing of

a shareholders’ resolution on 8 September 2022 (the “2022 Share Option

Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2022 Share Option Scheme, the Board may

grant options to eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the

Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. Summary

of details of the 2022 Share Option Scheme is as follows:

Purpose

Participants

Total number of ordinary
shares available for issue and
the percentage of the

issued shares that it
represents as at the date

of this report

Maximum entitlement

of each participant

Period within which the

options may be exercised

To attract and retain the best quality
personnel for the development of the
Group’s businesses, provide additional
incentives or rewards to selected eligible
participants for their contribution to the
creation of the Company’s value and
promote the long term financial success
of the Group by aligning the interest of
grantees to those of the shareholders of
the Company

Employees and directors of any member
of the Group

58,570,403 ordinary shares representing
10% of the issued shares as at the date
of this report

Shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue in any 12-month period

Such period shall be determined by the
Board, provided that it shall not exceed
ten years from the date of grant of the
relevant option.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Vesting period of options
granted

Amount payable on
acceptance of the options
and the period within which
payments must be made

Basis of determining the

exercise price of options
granted

Remaining life of the scheme

The Board may, in its discretion, determine
the time or period when the right to
exercise the option in respect of all or
some of the shares the subject of the
option shall be vested.

HK$1.00; payment must be made upon
acceptance of the option which is open
for a period of 28 days from the date of
grant

Not less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant, which must be a business day;
(ii) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Company’s share

The 2022 Share Option Scheme will
remain in force until 7 September 2032
unless otherwise terminated under the
terms of the scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

RirHAgEsT 8 ()
[SE ) qripili ok

Movement of Share Options Granted

Details of movements of the share options granted under the 2022 Share

Option Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2024 were as follows:

BE_T_NF=-A=t—HLEFERN &=
7__¢hﬁ¥%ﬁ%5&ﬁ2hﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

BN
Number of options®
okl ER
Exercise price Outstanding at Outstanding at
per option 1 April 31 March
ke 2023 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2024
HRGEE Exercise RZ8==% during during duing ~ R-Z-RE
Grantees Date of grant HK$ period mA-A the year the year the year =B=1-A
ERA it B & A 2] HAITE QR R EREN WA
Director
Bz
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan 301212022 149 31712025 - 800,000 - - - 800,000
BaAst 29/122032°
Other employees of the Group
AEEEMES
Five highest paid individuals 301212022 149 317712025 - 4,800,000 - - - 4,800,000
(excluding Directors) 2912120329
(in aggregate) ©
n4EREMAL
(E8)
(A3t) ©
Other employees 301212022 14.9 310712025 - 18,370,000 - - (1,100,000) 17,270,000
(excluding five highest 29/1220329
paid individuals)
(in aggregate)
=
(REREHFHALIN
(A3f)
23,170,000 - - (1,100,000) 22,070,000
Total
4 23,970,000 - - (1,100,000) 22,870,000
Notes: fisT -
(a) Number of options refers to the number of underlying shares of the Company covered by the (a) B BB E T RIE— T — — F RO B IR D
options under the 2022 Share Option Scheme. A BRHEFTS o 2 AN R RIABRERR D8R
(b) These options shall vest in 5 equal tranches as follows: 20% on 31 July 2025, 20% on 31 (b) ZEBROBEURAENEATREEE 200N _%
July 2026, 20% on 31 July 2027, 20% on 31 July 2028 and the remaining 20% on 31 July THFEA=ZTH 20N ZFERFLEA=T—
2029 and are exercisable for the period commencing the respective dates of vesting to 29 B 20T -tFLA=1— E' C20% M =F
December 2032, being ten years from the date of grant. All options granted are subject ZNFLAZ+-ARFBPR-_F-_AEFLA
to achievement of personal performance target based on the Company’s Performance =t—H &Eﬁﬂéﬁ ERBERHEE_"F —iiJF%E
Management System before the options can be vested. Zt+hBEERTFABETF) RITE - ABRD
ZIROBEFTRIBEANRENERZFERBEARR
BESAERE -
© Of these five highest paid individuals, one is a Director whose options are disclosed above. (© ZhEBERHFHALH -—BREE EROBEKE
ME-
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Movement of Share Options Granted (Continued)
The number of shares available for grant under the 2022 Share Option
Scheme at 1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 were 34,600,403 shares and
35,700,403 shares, respectively.

The number of shares that may be issued in respect of options granted
under the 2022 Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 March
2024 divided by the weighted average of the Company’s shares in issue for
the year is 3.94%.

Save as disclosed above, no share options were granted, exercised, lapsed or
cancelled during the year ended 31 March 2024.

SHARE AWARD SCHEMES
2013 Scheme

A share award scheme (the “2013 Share Award Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company on 27 August 2013, under which any individual being an
existing director, employee, officer, supplier, customer, consultant, adviser
or manager of any member of the Group is entitled to participate as
selected participant who may be granted an award of restricted shares and/
or performance shares of the Company. The purpose of the 2013 Share
Award Scheme is to recognise and reward selected participants for their
contributions to the business and development of the Group. It also aims
to provide a competitive remuneration and/or incentive package in order
to attract and retain talent for the development of the Group’s business,
and to promote long term success of the Group by aligning the interests of
selected participants and shareholders.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

2013 Scheme (Continued)

The 2013 Share Award Scheme is funded by existing shares of the
Company. The award period for shares granted under the 2013 Share
Award Scheme commenced on its adoption date and ended on 26 August
2023, being the day immediately prior to the 10th anniversary date of its
adoption date. The vesting period of award shares granted under the 2013
Share Award Scheme was determined by the Board from time to time.
The total number of shares awarded under the 2013 Share Award Scheme
shall not exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares of the Company
from time to time. The maximum number of shares awarded to a selected
participant but unvested under the 2013 Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares of the Company from time
to time. The 2013 Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
term of 15 years from its adoption date and is administrated by the Board
and the trustee of the scheme.

2023 Scheme

A new share award scheme (the “2023 Share Award Scheme” or the
"Scheme”) was adopted by the Company on 27 August 2023 (the
“Adoption Date”), under which any individual being an existing director or
employee of any member of the Group is entitled to participate as selected
participant who may be granted an award of shares of the Company. The
purpose of the 2023 Share Award Scheme is to recognise and reward
selected participants for their contributions to the business and development
of the Group. It also aims to provide a competitive remuneration and/or
incentive package in order to attract and retain talent for the development
of the Group’s business, and to promote long term success of the Group by
aligning the interests of selected participants and shareholders.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

2023 Scheme (Continued)

The 2023 Share Award Scheme is funded by existing shares of the
Company. Under the Scheme, awards of shares may be granted during
the period commencing on its Adoption Date and ending on the day
immediately prior to the 10th anniversary date of the Adoption Date with
such vesting period(s) to be determined by the Board from time to time.
The total number of shares can be awarded under the 2023 Share Award
Scheme shall not exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company from time to time. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected participant but unvested under the Scheme shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares of the Company from
time to time. The 2023 Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a term of ten years from the Adoption Date and is administrated by the
Board and the trustee of the Scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, no shares were awarded to selected
participants pursuant to the 2023 Share Award Scheme.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
Movement of Award Shares

Details of movements of award shares under the 2013 Share Award Scheme
during the year were as follows:

Grantees
AR A

Director & substantial
shareholder

EERIERR

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter
BERTE

Director

Bz

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan
BEASE

M4 B2 Bt 8 (48)
LR 2 %
BE—T—
RZEBHENT -
Number of shares
RHEE
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
Date of 2023 during during during 2024
grant R-B-=F the year the year the year R=Z=-F
Rl A mA—H RERRE RERER RERXY ZA=t-H
31/7/12020 19,027 - (19,027) - -
2/8/2021 37,754 - (18,595) - 19,159
31/7/2023 © - 85,045 - - 85,045
31/7/2020 6,796 - (6,796) - -
2/8/2021 13,484 - (6,640) - 6,844
31/7/12023 © - 30,606 - - 30,606
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (CONTINUED) Iz 17 22 B st 8l (&)
Movement of Award Shares (Continued) RERD 22 (E)
Number of shares
RAHE
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
Date of 2023 during during during 2024 Vesting
Grantees grant R-B==F theyear  theyear  theyear R=ZT-F period @
SUN gHEH MA—H RERRE REREE RERAW ZA=t-H BEHe
Five highest paid individuals 31/7/12020 23,883 - (23,883) - - 31/7/2021 -
(excluding Directors) 31/7/2023
(in aggregate) ©
LEREHFMAL 2/8/2021 47,386 - (23,338) - 24,048 31712022 -
(BE=RM) 317712024
(gFhw
31/7/2023 © - 188,326 - - 188,326 31/7/2024 -
317712026
Other employees of the Group ~ 31/7/2020 385,762 - (384,263) (1,499) - 31/7/2021 -
(excluding five highest 31/7/2023
paid individuals)
(in aggregate) 2/8/2021 813,805 - (412,580) (23,805) 377,420 31/7/2022 -
rEEHMES 317712024
(EEBSHMALERM)
(&%) 1/8/2022 697,188 - (229,958) (33,164) 434,066 31/7/2023 -
317712025
31/7/2023 © - 2,756,106 (24,074) (152,824) 2,579,208 31/7/2024 -
317712026
Total
sy 2,045,085 3,060,083 @ (1,149,154)©@ (211,292) 3,744,722
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
Movement of Award Shares (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

)

The award shares are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 33% of the award shares
respectively on the first and second anniversary dates of the grant date and the balance
of the remaining award shares on the third anniversary date of the grant date. In case
such anniversary date is not a business date, the date of vesting shall be the business day
immediately thereafter.

The grant of the award shares was subject to achievement of financial performance target of
the Group.

Of these five highest paid individuals, two are Directors whose award shares are disclosed
above.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the date of grant of these
award shares was HK$10.26. The fair value of the award shares at the date of grant was
HK$29,523,000 and the relevant accounting policy and standard adopted are set out in
Notes 2 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the dates on
which these award shares were vested was HK$10.26.

All award shares were granted at nil purchase price.

Since the Adoption Date, a total of 22,984,595 shares had been awarded
under the 2013 Share Award Scheme, representing approximately 3.92%

of the total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2024.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2024, the interests of each Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO™)), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
were as follows:

EERFEITHRAERKRS - 1868
BROREBEZP 2ERRAR

RZZEZMFE=A=+—0 ' ARAREZS
BB GG (TEH R EAE G ) 352 kim iz
BEoEwMAraesr  SRE EMRAIMEERC3
iz LM RARESHEITESRR HIIRESTH
(MELESFA| ) BITHE AR T RBEBBAA -
AR EEEREFENITERARQ T RE B
FEE(REBFRIEGROIIEXVEZEE) 2K
% BERD RES 2 ESHTOT

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company (long positions)

ANBEER HRROBE (FR)

Personal Family Corporate
Name of Directors interests interests interests
EEnA B AR Rk NE R
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny 23,450,500 - 37,983,394@
BRNEE
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita 14,039,928 - -
BETL
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael 7,419,407 9,614,500 @ -
BRI& A
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel 25,837 - -
RIS A
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey 55,000®@ - -
ZTEERE
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter 641,192 200,000® -
BEALE
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan 173,777 - -
EZHETE

*  The percentage is calculated based on 585,704,033 shares of the Company in issue as at 31
March 2024.
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% of total
issued
Equity shares *
Other derivatives Total EER1T
interests [N interests fR1n 4858

Hfth s fT£TH EEAH ZEDTL*

3,000,000 ® - 64,433,894 11.001%

3,000,000 - 17,039,928 2.909%

- - 17,033,907 2.908%

- - 25,837 0.004%

- - 55,000 0.009%

94,330,213 @ 104,204 95,275,609 16.267%

- 837,4500 1,011,227 0.173%

* BAWDNER-ToNE= A=+ AAQREBTEN
585,704,033 l%5HE -
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@) These shares were held by Victor Reach Investments Limited which was wholly-owned by Mr
Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny.

(b) These shares were held by a foundation in which Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny is a trustee.

() These shares were held by a foundation in which Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita is a trustee.

(d) Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael was deemed to be interested in these shares through interests
of his spouse, of which 3,000,000 shares were held by a foundation in which his spouse is a
trustee.

(e) These shares were held by Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey jointly with his spouse.

(f) Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter was deemed to be interested in these shares through interests of his
spouse.

(9 These shares were held by Wandels Investment Limited (“Wandels”). Wandels was 50%
owned by Sky Bright International Limited (" Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by Verdant Success
Holdings Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both of Sky Bright and Verdant Success were wholly-
owned by Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited, a trustee of two discretionary family trusts.
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter was deemed to be interested in these shares by virtue of his being
beneficiary of one of the family trusts.

(h) These represented interests in unvested shares granted under the Company’s 2013 Share
Award Scheme.

(i) These represented interests in 800,000 options granted under the Company’s 2022 Share

Option Scheme and 37,450 unvested shares granted under the Company’s 2013 Share
Award Scheme.

All the above interests in shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives
of the Company were long positions. None of the Directors held any short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, none of the Directors and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company or their respective associates had or
was deemed to have any interest or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
recorded in the register kept under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of every person,

other than a Director of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares

of the Company, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital,

as recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 336 of the

SFO were as follows:

Name of
substantial shareholders

TERRHE BB

Ms Ng Yuen Han
REFWL L

Wandels Investment Limited

Sky Bright International Limited
Verdant Success Holdings Limited
Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited

Ms Tso Po Ping
BEYaL

Victor Reach Investments Limited

Mr Lo Hoi Chun
ERBEE

Ms Man Bo King
XERLL

LBK Holding Corporation

MMW Holding Corporation

FTERREDR

RZZFZMF=A=+—08 ' KRAREZH
REAE1EHIZE 336 GRTF2EREMAT - 5
BARREIRGD RABBR GO ERIORE 2 AL (B
EARRTDBEITRAS% A F) (BARQFE

EINFINT

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company (long positions)

ARAEER HHEROEE (FR)

Personal
interests

(PN

200,000

37,983,394 @

132,000

35,969,133@

31,911,701 ®

Family
interests
EiY

95,075,609 @

64,433,894

68,012,834

Corporate
interests
NRER

67,880,834

*  The percentage is calculated based on 585,704,033 shares of the Company in issue as at 31

March 2024.
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Other Total
interests interests
Hit R EREy

- 95,275,609
94,330,213® 94,330,213
94,330,213® 94,330,213
94,330,213® 94,330,213
94,330,213® 94,330,213
- 64,433,894

- 37,983,394

© - 68,012,834
- 68,012,834

- 35,969,133

- 31,911,701

% of total
issued
shares

HE BT
IR 1D #4258
ZBEZH

16.267%

16.105%

16.105%

16.105%

16.105%

11.001%

6.485%

11.612%

11.612%

6.141%

5.448%

*

*

* BAWDNER-T_ME=A=+—AXRRSETERN

585,704,033 fXEtE o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) Ms Ng Yuen Han was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interests of her
spouse, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter.

(b) These interests were held by Wandels Investment Limited (“Wandels”). Wandels was 50%
owned by Sky Bright International Limited (“Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by Verdant Success
Holdings Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both of Sky Bright and Verdant Success were wholly-
owned by Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited, a trustee of two discretionary family trusts. Mr
Lo Tak Shing, Peter, being a Director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in these
shares by virtue of his being beneficiary of one of the family trusts.

(0) Ms Tso Po Ping was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interests of her
spouse, Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny.

(d) These shares were held by Victor Reach Investments Limited which was wholly-owned by Mr
Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny.

(e) Mr Lo Hoi Chun was deemed to be interested in these shares which were held, as to
35,969,133 shares, by LBK Holding Corporation (“LBK"”) and, as to 31,911,701 shares, by
MMW Holding Corporation (“MMW"). Both of LBK and MMW were wholly-owned by Mr
Lo Hoi Chun.

() Ms Man Bo King was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interests of her
spouse, Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

(9 These interests were held by LBK which was wholly-owned by Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

(h) These interests were held by MMW which was wholly-owned by Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
were long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO recorded no other
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Framework Agreement with Fung Yuen

On 22 March 2023, the Company and Fung Yuen Engineering Company
Limited (“Fung Yuen"”) entered into a new framework agreement (“2023
Framework Agreement”) which governs the terms upon which Fung Yuen
and its subsidiaries (“Fung Yuen Group”) would continue to be engaged
by the Group to provide interior decoration, renovation, maintenance and/
or related services to the shops operated or managed by the Group in Hong
Kong, Macau and Guangdong Province in the People’s Republic of China (the
“Renovation Works") for a further term of three years from 1 April 2023 to
31 March 2026 subject to the following annual caps:

1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024 HK$10,000,000
1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 HK$10,000,000
1 April 2025 to 31 March 2026 HK$10,000,000

Fung Yuen Group is a deemed connected person of the Company as Mr
Ng Lam To, the cousin of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny and Ms Lo Pik Ling,
Anita (both being Directors of the Company), has a majority control in Fung
Yuen Group together with his wife. Thus the Renovation Works constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the 2023 Framework Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 22 March 2023.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the aggregate value in respect of the

Renovation Works under the 2023 Framework Agreement amounted to
approximately HK$84,000 and did not exceed the annual cap for the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Annual Review

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions under the 2023 Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 March 2024 and confirmed that the
transactions were entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(© according to the relevant agreement(s) governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s
shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its
ungualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
above continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements (other than the transactions relating to the operating
lease rentals paid to a related party, which constituted a connected
transaction but was exempted from the reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules due to de minimis) did
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The changes in information of Directors are set out below pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

(Non-executive Director)

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael has been appointed as a court member of
Hong Kong Metropolitan University from 1 January 2024.

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry’s position in Heep Hong Society has been
changed from vice-chairman to honorary treasurer effective from 15
December 2023.

Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine has been appointed as chief executive officer
of Fang Brothers Holdings Limited from 1 January 2024. She was also
appointed as chairman of the Committee on Staff Establishment of the
Clothing Industry Training Authority on 5 September 2023.

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter

(Executive Director)

Effective from 1 April 2024, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter’s remuneration for
serving as an Executive Director of the Company includes a fixed annual
salary of HK$960,000. His entitlement to an annual director’s fee of
HK$50,000 remains unchanged.

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan

(Executive Director)

Effective from 1 April 2024, Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan’s remuneration for
serving as an Executive Director of the Company includes a fixed annual
salary of HK$960,000. His entitlement to an annual director’s fee of
HK$50,000 remains unchanged.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
shares were held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AGM.

By order of the Board
LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 June 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 B Eh R
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To the Shareholders HARREEEERATRER
of Café de Coral Holdings Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REREFMETHERAF])
Opinion =R

What we have audited R HBTHAR

The consolidated financial statements of Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited (the ~ ARZEE AR A F (A TEBE [ERF]]) IHE
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages B AR (LA THRBEIEEE ) IHNEITE
97 to 231, comprise: 231 EMfRE MK - B3

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March ~ ® RZZEZMF=A=1+—HBHZEEHE
2024; R

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended; . HEZBIFEFEMEZEABRE

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year HEZALFENGZE2ERARE
then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ~ ® HEZALFENGEERZEE
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended:; . HEZAIFENGERERER &

and
. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include ~ ® REMBmEWNT  BRERGTHE
material accounting policies and other explanatory information. =R REMEREER
© PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong BEFOGBSHNESET - BAPRAFAE221E
T. +852 2289 8888, TG+ +852 2289 8888 -
F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com f5H : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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Opinion (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matter is the matters that, in our professional judgment, was of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current year. The matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on the matter. Key audit
matter identified in our audit is revenue recognition.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

B Rk E

BREETSE (E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

RRETER
Revenue recognition

LN

Refer to note 2.20 for the Group’s accounting policies on
revenue recognition and note 22 for the analysis of revenue
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024.

A2 220 EXREABRAERBHNGETBOR MM
22 BEEENBE_Z_MF=A=+—HILFENHRA
DHT

The Group recognised revenue of HK$8,691.4 million for the
year ended 31 March 2024.
EXEEREBE T _ME=A=1T—HILFE
86914BEETT -

RIA

We focused on revenue recognition in particular for
sales of food and beverage due to its magnitude and the
characteristics of the Group’s industry nature. The recording
of revenue involves high volume of transactions through
various systems. Any errors arising from capturing of data
or interfaces of data amongst the various systems may have
significant impact on revenue. Therefore it required significant
time and resource to audit this area.

REKREBORER EEEMESFTEEENRRE
N BALHEINEERY KRR mE R ATER » WA
P RAEBEBTIRRGETHNR S - EEREIERE
FimEEE O EENEAEE - HreHRABKE
AFE At ZBRHETFTEAERFENER

RMHBJA MR ERARETER

We understood, evaluated and tested management’s key
internal controls over the revenue recognition process.
B - FHERBEEEENERABIBEPHTE
BB o

We involved Information Technology specialists to evaluate
the design of the relevant controls (including automated
controls) over revenue recognition and tested the operating
effectiveness of those controls.

BAIR BB MBS B R A s YA TR T AR AT AR R 12
(BREaEES) - WARHZ SRR EERX -

We performed analytical procedures on revenue by
comparing the actual result of the current year with that of
the prior year.

BAEBEBEAFENERERE FFENERER - i
WA DA HT o

We tested samples of sales transactions by tracing to bank
receipts and other relevant evidence.

BB BEPRITRELEMEREEREHER S -

We tested samples of journal entries posted to revenue
accounts selected on risk based criteria.

BAREREEME Tt ARABRM BECHRE ©

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that

the sales transactions being tested were supported by the

available evidence.

;Eﬁ%‘i-ﬁfr%ﬂﬁﬂﬁif% C BPIRREARNHER HREER
FFo
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
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Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Lam Chun Yee, Johnny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17 June 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e ISR R

As at 31 March 2024 W= -_WE=A=+—H

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
i N
—E-MEF —E-=F
=H=F—H =ZA=+—H
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B aE FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EMENEEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WEKEE 6 1,552,675 1,617,702
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 6 2,366,096 2,413,162
Investment properties WEMZE 7 440,300 559,200
Intangible assets | EE 8 1,116 1,153
Deferred income tax assets RIETIREE 16 66,214 62,955
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEIAEMEEEA
other comprehensive income ZEMEE 10 74,499 86,746
Retirement benefit assets RIRSEMNEE 15 4,208 3,098
Non-current prepayments and deposits  JERBITE( 71BN & 11 301,550 303,725
4,806,658 5,047,741
Current assets mENEE
Inventories FE 12 230,288 268,243
Trade and other receivables e N E A FEURERIA 13 152,510 138,036
Prepayments and deposits AN RIERIES 13 62,808 44,832
Current income tax recoverable BNEA ] U Bl §7 18 712 4,510
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReFEEER 14 1,260,948 1,671,978
1,707,266 2,127,599
Total assets EEHAE 6,513,924 7,175,340
EQUITY B R
Capital and reserves attributable to RARIRERAEA
equity holders of the Company eI IS K (&t
Share capital [N 20 58,570 58,570
Share premium 10w B 21 621,122 621,122
Shares held for share award scheme I SRR BB 2 IR 21 (73,722) (98,979)
Other reserves HAbfEE 21 547,402 522,679
Retained earnings REBREM 21
— Proposed dividends — BRA% B 245,996 163,997
— Others - Hfty 1,500,480 1,516,205
2,899,848 2,783,594
Non-controlling interests FEF2= ) 1 A 10,665 8,469
Total equity fRiEBERE 2,910,513 2,792,063

97



Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e ISR R

As at 31 March 2024 W= -_WE=A=+—H

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
—E-NUF —EC-=%F
=B=+—H =A=+—H
Note HK$’000 HK$000
5T FET FET
LIABILITIES =L+
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Deferred income tax liabilities FERIBEE 16 32,860 32,946
Provision for long service payments REARG S BE 15 68,398 62,080
Lease liabilities HEAE 6(d) 1,289,060 1,508,455
Long-term borrowings RHEIER 19 305,000 -
1,695,318 1,603,481
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade payables L ETARIA 17 210,767 225,881
Other creditors and accrued liabilities HEa SRR ETER 18 804,370 798,895
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFIE B & 38,889 14,441
Lease liabilities HEAE 6(d) 774,067 760,629
Current portion of long-term borrowings  REAEZHIBIEAZR 5 19 80,000 899,950
Short-term borrowings HHIER 19 - 80,000
1,908,093 2,779,796
Total liabilities EEHE 3,603,411 4,383,277
Total equity and liabilities RENEBEHEZE 6,513,924 7,175,340
Net current liabilities REEEFHE (200,827) (652,197)
Total assets less current liabilities EEATERABER 4,605,831 4,395,544

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in ~ il4RE BITEAR LR P& BRBEMT 2 fi 5 —GFBIRE o
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 97 to 231 were approved £ 97 £231 B2 AW BHRERLEETRN =

by the Board of Directors on 17 June 2024 and were signed on its behalf. TIMERATEARERREKRESERESE -
LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY LO TAK SHING, PETER
‘X EEE
Chairman Executive Director
*E HITEF
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Consolidated Income Statement- By Function of Expense
REIEMIR - puEEs R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HE—Z -G =A=+—HIEFE

2024 2023
—ECNEF —T=5F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FET FET
Revenue A 22 8,691,449 8,024,044
Cost of sales SHERAR 24 (7,702,163) (7,321,395)
Gross profit EA 989,286 702,649
Other income and other HAUA R EAtb
(losses)/gains, net F(E518) %A 23 (33,257) (12,733)
Administrative expenses THE R 24 (503,213) (486,079)
Operating profit LB 452,816 203,837
Finance income BT U A 25 45,304 38,847
Finance costs EURID RN 25 (108,592) (98,508)
Profit before income tax B AR B Al 389,528 144,176
Income tax expense TSt & A 26 (56,313) (32,989)
Profit for the year NG A 333,215 111,187
Profit attributable to: FEAL = F -
Equity holders of the Company RARIRIERE A 330,454 110,353
Non-controlling interests P RS 2,761 834
333,215 111,187
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings per share for profit attributable ZNA BIf&#ER A ARl
to the equity holders of the Company % F 2 & B%F
Basic S IN 28 0.57 0.19
Diluted e 28 0.57 0.19
The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction ~ _L3ifi4 o 7 FE B BT 2 P 5 — GBI E

with the accompanying notes.
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e EEBARR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HE—Z —NF=A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E-ME —T-=F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Profit for the year AREE R A 333,215 111,187
Other comprehensive income: EfE2EWA -
Item that may be reclassified AEBEF BB EHE
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising from BRI B AR BN =
translation of foreign subsidiaries (22,223) (35,710)
Items that will not be reclassified TEEF BB HE
to profit or loss:
Revaluation surplus of property, EAREYERNTE - BERK
plant and equipment and right-of-use AR fEREEESGRLR
assets prior to transferring to
investment properties 35,971 53,447
Remeasurement of retirement benefit B ERREENEER
liabilities and provision for long KRR & B
service payments (2,509) (10,471)
Fair value loss on financial assets at BATFEIIAREMEEEAZ
fair value through other EHREENNTEEE
comprehensive income (12,247) (9,185)
Total comprehensive income AEELBEEBA
for the year 332,207 109,268
Total comprehensive income EBhEAEEAEZERA :
for the year attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company - RREIRERFE A 329,446 108,434
— Non-controlling interests — FEPE M 2,761 834
332,207 109,268

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
n‘/_\/EI\*Eﬁ_ﬁ"‘ﬁEb%‘:z

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HE—Z —NF=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RAFRERE AL

Shares

held for

share

award Non-

scheme controlling
Share Share  RGEE Other  Retained interests Total
capital  premium  FEH$E  reserves  earnings Total  FiRmM equity

kx  RoaE ZRfy  Eftféle  RERN 3 ki REAR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FE7x TEn Térn A7 TéErn TéErn FEr TéErn

i

Balance as at 1 April 2023 WZZE-=FNA—-B&% 58570 621,122 (98,979) 522,679 1,680,202 2,783,594 8,469 2,792,063
Profit for the year TEERR - - - - 330454 330,454 2,761 333215
Other comprehensive income: Eth2EMA :
Exchange differences arising from BRBINIEARZ

translation of foreign subsidiaries EHER - - - (22,223) - (22,223) - (22,23)
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair ~ RAFENIALMZE

value through other comprehensive WAz SREERND

income TERE - - - (12247) - (1227) - (12247)
Revaluation surplus of property, AREMEINE

plant and equipment and B E I

right-of-use assets prior to EAESHRY

transferring to investment properties - - - 35,971 - 35971 - 35,971
Remeasurement of retirement benefit ~ Efi:t ERKEEHE

liabilities and provision for long ERRARESEE

service payments - - - - (2,509) (2,509) - (2,509)
Total comprehensive income B2EKRA - - - 1,501 327,945 329,446 2,761 332,207
Employee share award scheme EERIA R 2

- value of employee services - EEREER - - - 18,077 - 18,077 - 18,077
Employee share option scheme EERIAHE 2]

- value of employee services - EERBER - - - 18,823 - 18,823 - 18,823
Veesting of shares of share R SR E R

award scheme BE - - 25,257 (15,408) (9,849) - - -
Transfer to statutory reserves SR EERE - - - 1,730 (1,730) - - -
Dividends ke - - - - (250,092)  (250,092) (565)  (250,657)

- - 25,257 23222 (261,671)  (213,192) (565)  (213,757)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 RZE-ME=A=1-A
% 58,570 621,122 (73,722) 547,402 1,746,476 2,899,848 10,665 2,910,513
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n‘/_\/EI\*Eﬁ_Zé"‘%Eb %‘:Z

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HE—Z —NF=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARARIERE AELE

Shares
held for
share
award Non-
scheme controlling
Share Share  Ixfn #2R) Other  Retained interests Total
capital ~ premium  FEHSE  reserves  eamings Total  FEEERIM equity
Bx  BRAOEE Bl EftRE  REER B35 B REEE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FE&r  FEr  FEr  FErT  FEr  FEr FAT FEn
Balance as at 1 April 2022 WZE-—#NA—B#&EH 58,570 621,122 (130,939) 515,201 1,754,787 2,818,741 7,635 2,826,376
Profit for the year TEERR - - - - 110353 110353 834 111,187
Other comprehensive income: HthZEHA -
Exchange differences arising from BREINNERRZ
translation of foreign subsidiaries EHERE = = = (35,710) = (35,710) = (35,710)
Fair value loss on financial assets at far X ATEFAZ M2
value through other comprehensive BAZEREER
income NYEEE = = = (9,185) - (9,185) - (9,185)
Revaluation surplus of property, AREMEANE
plant and equipment and B REEARER
right-of-use assets prior o RAEEREHS
transferring to investment properties - - - 53,447 - 53,447 - 53,447
Remeasurement of retirement benefit ~ EXTFFERNEERNE
liabilities and provision for long ERRARE SRR
service payments - - - - (10,471) (10,471) - (10,471)
Total comprehensive income B2EKRA = - - 8,552 99,882 108,434 834 109,268
Employee share award scheme EERID R E
- value of employee services -EERHBER = = = 14,544 = 14,544 = 14,544
Employee share option scheme EERIAHE 2]
- value of employee services -EERKERE = = = 4992 = 4,992 = 4,992
Vesting of shares of share e RELE)
award scheme %E - = 31,960 (21,898)  (10,062) S = =
Transfer to statutory reserves BREELTRE - - = 1,288 (1,288) = = =
Dividends BRE - = - - (183,117)  (163,117) - (163,117)
- - 31,960 (1,074)  (174,467)  (143,581) - (143,581)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 RZZ-=F=f=1-H
% 58,570 621,122 (98,979) 522,679 1,680,202  2,783,59% 8469 2,792,063

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
llv_\é\iﬁﬁiﬁ%'%%

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HE—Z —NF=A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E-IMEF ZT=F
Note HK$’000 HK$000
liEsg FET FEor
Cash flows from operating activities R&EFBHHESHRE
Net cash generated from operations EEEHXZFRS 31(a) 1,694,297 1,726,611
Hong Kong profits tax paid B2 BEBNER (16,776) (19,212)
Overseas taxation paid B 25N TE (14,367) (8,514)
Net cash generated from operating KEEBEEFHRE
activities 1,663,154 1,698,885
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHZHREHRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment RE W% - WiE k& (316,358) (461,671)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEMZE - BEREZEMERIE
plant and equipment 31(b) 1,925 9,350
Dividend received from listed investments 24 MR & E 6,123 6,123
Interest received Bz FE 45,304 38,847
Net cash used in investing activities REETHFAZFES (263,006) (407,351)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEFHBELSRE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERZ 508 31(c) 400,000 =
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER 31(c) (995,000) (100,000)
Dividends paid B E (250,657) (163,117)
Payment of lease liabilities TREEARE 31(c) (933,062) (899,672)
Interest paid BEAFE 31(c) (23,758) (29,873)
Net cash used in financing BMEEBAAFRS
activities (1,802,477) (1,192,662)
Net (decrease)/increase in RekBReEEERZ
cash and cash equivalents S CRL) /18N (402,329) 98,872
Cash and cash equivalents FVRekReEEIEAR
at the beginning of the year 1,671,978 1,585,586
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes JNETE Regit 7 222 (8,701) (12,480)
Cash and cash equivalents FRE2FREFMBEIER
at the end of the year 14 1,260,948 1,671,978

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in PR IR M E R E M 2 M FE—O3E o
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2.1

General Information

Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda with limited liability on 1 October 1990. The
address of its registered office is Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in operation of quick
service restaurants, casual dining chains, institutional catering as
well as food processing and distribution business in Hong Kong and
Mainland China.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HK$), unless otherwise stated, and have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 17 June 2024.

Summary of Material Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of investment properties, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and defined benefit scheme plan
assets, which are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.1

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4.

The Group's management regularly monitors current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate amount of banking facilities are available to meet the
Group’s liquidity requirements in the short and long term. As at
31 March 2024, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by HK$200,827,000 (2023: HK$652,197,000). This net
current liabilities position was mainly attributable to the recognition
of lease liabilities of HK$774,067,000 (2023: HK$760,629,000) in
current liabilities and HK$1,289,060,000 (2023: HK$1,508,455,000)
in non-current liabilities, while the associated right-of-use assets of
HK$2,366,096,000 (2023: HK$2,413,162,000) were recognised
in non-current assets accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”.
Management believes that there is no significant liquidity risk in view
of the available bank facilities and cash and cash equivalents held.
In addition, the directors regularly review the liquidity position of the
Group to ensure all covenants with banks are compiled with at all
times. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis.
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2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following new and amended standards
for its annual reporting period commencing on 1 April 2023:

° Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
“Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

o Amendments to HKAS 8 “Definition of Accounting
Estimates”

o Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single transaction”

o Amendments to HKAS 12 “International Tax Reform — Pillar
Two Model Rules”

o HKFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” and the related
Amendments

o HKFRS 17 “Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 —
Comparative Information”

The adoption listed above did not have any impact on the amount
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly
affect the current or future periods.
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2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i) New and amended standards and interpretation not yet
adopted by the Group
Certain amendments to accounting standards and interpretations
have been published that are not mandatory for 31 March 2024
reporting period and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 1
or Non-current
ERSEERE 15 2 185]
Amendments to HKAS 1
ERGTHERE 15 2 185]
Amendments to HKFRS 16
BAVBRELENFE 1658 21857
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)

ERMERCHERRE

BaEIBEARENIERE
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
WHERFE 2 IEREEE

Lease Liabilities in a Sale and Leaseback

2 EBEASHHERHEGE)

2.1 wmEREE(GHE)

(i) SR ARERAN 2 # 5] R AT 2
) SEER e
BE-T - MF=A=+—BLLRES
B BT R LRSI AR REE Hb
{B3E 30 HIBR M + T 2K % B 78 R 4R A 4R
o

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after
FEHERS
RZEEN

Classification of Liabilities as Current

1 January 2024
—ET-WFE—RF—H
1 January 2024
—TNE—-A—H
1 January 2024
—T-NFE—-A—H

Presentation of Financial Statements —

Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment

on Demand Clause
BEREE 5% (KIERT)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7
ERBSEERIETH R
EEUERMELERF 7R 21ER]
Amendments to HKAS 21
BEGFTERISE 2158 2185]
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

HEmBE b

BRZ A] R

BB TEIEERE 1058 )

BB GRS 2857 ZEFT MEBEEHEIEE

Lack of Exchangeability

1 January 2024

BMigHmKR 227 - ERAHBEEEK
BRIEX 2 ARER 2 HHE
Supplier Finance Arrangements

—E-pUF—HF—H
1 January 2024
—ET-WFE—RF—H

1 January 2025
—ZE-RF—HA—H

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
B EEERE N E) sk

To be determined

BERAZME

fFEEE

The Group has commenced an assessment of the impact of these
new and amended standards and interpretation, but is yet in a
position to state whether they would have significant impacts on its
results of operations and financial position.
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2.2

(a)

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
March.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amount of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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2.2
(a)

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost is
adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the
total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred.

When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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2.2
(b)

2.3

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, a
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments has
been identified as the Chief Executive Officer who makes strategic
decisions.
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2.4
(a)

(b)

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges or qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated income
statement within ‘finance income and finance costs’. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2.4
(@]

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement item are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate
component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign operations are taken to shareholder’s
equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.4
(@]

2.5

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies (Continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
group's ownership interest in associates or joint ventures that do
not result in the group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for freehold land, are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Freehold land is stated at historical cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

113

2.4
(©

2.5

EXSHTHRRBE (&)

SNEERE (4E)

EEQF (&)

BRI NGB ER B R H RIS
LR ERRMIEHENBOLE - K
SEERFTEAEZBTNLANEEN
FEBNIEEGIE R B N RS E
R o HRAAAE Ay 1 E (A EE
fERRHAERBTHNAERERD
WAL TN ERAREBERRBATZERHS
RIEHRE) - AREERFELEETH
Pl S EE 8 -

RWBEINERMEEZBHENAFE
HE - ORIERZRIBERBZEERA
BRIE WAEBRmENERTE -
ELEMEN ZRERET AR -

Yz~ BERRE

WE - B KR CRAZERLILRIN)
Y9 LA S AR A1 RAE AT RORERSIR
T NI o KA SEHE L M0 A S AR AR 1R
SEABBBREAR - BLRARES
EZSARMERIHNER -

HZRARBHERZIAR B ARKE
BEH A A ERANEE - MZEB H
FRANBER] SERTER - T BREBEMNRK
HEXEISBLEE(WER) - B8
BE D R AREEE WA MR - PTAE
i 18 I AR 28 PRS2 2 B A 0 B U
MRARAIERR S ©



Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

2.5

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
No provision for depreciation is made on freehold land. Depreciation
of other property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

2.5%
Shorter of remaining period of the

Building

Leasehold improvements
lease or useful life

10%

Furniture and other equipment 12.5% —33.3%

Plant and machinery

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in the consolidated income
statement.

For property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
which becomes an investment property, the Group revalues such
property on the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is dealt with in assets revaluation reserve.

The fair value at the date of the change in use is the deemed cost
for subsequent accounting as investment properties. On disposal of
the property, revaluation reserve is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.

114

2

2.5

EXSHTHRRBE (&)

MR ~ M= R dE ()
KARBIHWBAFERE ALY
% BB MREHUERENE G A
ERFHABERRDEEERHREE
R EITE - FIRBOITERAT

B¥F 2.5%
HEBFEE BT A A EA
FHZRRE
55 B M 2% 10%
FEMREAMERE  12.5%-33.3%

RBERRRTBEENFREERAE
REH - WFHEERNRHE -

EEEMNERESREMGTKE S
B - HERE(EBRDEHMUR = nT Uk el & 58 (B
$¥28) e

HE 2 A K B 18 T35 B L B P 1S sk
REEMET @ I AGEEER
WO

RAEEEAIERRYEmERE LK
BEMENMENS - AEEREE RS
EREM[RAEYE  MaxMERZAW
FREEEAFEZRANEAERAAR
EBGEHE -

BEREEANAFEDRIELRAR
JIREBEMEORAN - REEZWE

REE A ©



ARLEEBFR AR 2023/24 F3#

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=R e e

2.6

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment properties
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises leasehold land and buildings. Right-
of-use assets of the leasehold land that meet the definition of
investment property are classified and accounted for as investment

property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed
in accordance with Valuation Standards on Properties issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and are reviewed annually by
external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.
The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the property. Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liability, others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the period in
which they are incurred.
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2.6

2.7
(a)

(b)

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)
Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the
fair value of the Group’s share in net fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary or joint venture or associate at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of joint
ventures or associates is included in investments in joint venture or
associates and is tested for impairment as part of the overall balance.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for impairment
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses on goodwiill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs") for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those CGUs
or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets with definite useful lives and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
costs of other intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of 5
to 20 years.
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2.8

29
(a)

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, but are at least tested annually for impairment. Assets
which are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that were
impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

Financial assets

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income, or through profit or
loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for equity investments at
FVOCI.
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2.9
(b)

(©

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or
loss.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to the profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in “other income and other (losses)/
gains, net” in the consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.
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2.9
(d)

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

2.11

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position where
the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group
has also entered into arrangements that do not meet the criteria
for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The
cost comprises costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable selling expenses.
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2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or

services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade and other receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See Note 2.9 for further information about the Group’s accounting
for trade and other receivables and Note 3.1(d) for a description of

the Group's impairment policies.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject

to an insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdraft.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where the Company purchases its equity share capital (treasury
shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is

included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.15 Trade payables and other creditors and
accrued liabilities
Trade payables and other creditors and accrued liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges in respect
of borrowings and lease liabilities, and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. The exchange gains and
losses that are an adjustment to interest costs include the interest
rate differential between borrowing costs that would be incurred
if the entity had borrowed funds in its functional currency, and the
borrowing costs actually incurred on foreign currency borrowings.
Such amounts are estimated based on interest rates on similar
borrowings in the entity’s functional currency.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

(a)

(b)

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there
is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole.

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with

respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.19 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used
to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2.20 Revenue recognition

(i)

(iii)

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sales of goods and services in the ordinary course
of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of discounts.

Revenue is recognised when, or as, the control of the goods or
services is transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms
of the contract and the laws applicable, control of the goods
and services may be transferred over time or at a point in time.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration of the type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of food and beverages

Sales of food and beverages are recognised in the consolidated
income statement at the point of sale to customers or when a group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised in the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Management and service fee income
Management and service fee income is recognised over the time
when services are rendered.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.21 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at FVOCI.
Dividends are recognised as other income in the consolidated income
statement when the right to receive payment is established.

2.22 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value when
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Income grants are presented as “other income” in the consolidated
income statement.

2.23 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

2.24 Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognised as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to be

settled within twelve months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

Pension obligations

The Group operates various pension schemes. The schemes are
generally funded through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial
calculations. The Group has both defined benefit and defined
contribution plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans typically
define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as
age, years of service and compensation.

The liability or asset recognised in the statement of financial position
in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value
of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the income
statement. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Remeasurement arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Long service payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service payments to its
employees upon the termination of their employment or retirement
when the employee fulfills certain circumstances under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method,
discounted to present value and reduced by entitlements accrued
under the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The discount rate is the yield
at the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds which have
terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability.

Remeasurement are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(v)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments of the Company.
These plans comprise share option schemes and a share award
scheme.

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options and the awarded shares is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options or the awarded shares
as at the date of grant: (i) including any market performance
conditions; (ii) excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets); and (iii) including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to save or
holding shares for a specified period of time). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options
or awarded shares that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options or awarded shares that are expected to vest based on
the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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2

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(v)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

For the share award scheme, the Group may purchase its own
shares through the trustee of the share award scheme from the
open market for the shares to be vested under the share award
scheme. The shares purchased by the Group that are not yet vested
for this share award scheme were recorded as treasury shares and
recorded as “Shares held for share award scheme” as a deduction
under equity. Upon vesting of the awarded shares, the related costs
of the purchased shares are reduced from the “Shares held for share
award scheme”, and the related fair value of the awarded shares
are debited to share-based compensation reserve with the difference
charged/credited to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.

2.25 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivables;

o variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate;

o amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual
value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

Lease payments are allocated between the liability and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to income statement over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;
° any initial direct costs; and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in the income statement. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

131

2 EARSHEEREE(E)

2.25 HE (&)
EREESERRATE  BEUTS

18 :

HEBBENVRTESRE
RFE B HASk 2 Bi{E L MY E R AE
ENFREEMNEKREEE
=

ERTIEEERAE Kk

BB ©

£ A EE Ty A Pl A A B S AR A (A
BRERE) NEETEITE -

B HHEA BN TIRER AR B
RPERLSAT  EREEREEBS
ToEAASR+ —EAMHEE -

7T & AT - ARERKHEEER
ER—HERHEARK

XIETUE BRI — TR A L4
MEENEREREAHESRE
P54

MEREZMNNSEAENHLE
BAHENEBER  NWELAR
BRATTE & K0V B T 4 BB (E S
TEHEEMEE AR -



Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position based on their nature.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

2.27 Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at
the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at
fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

o the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.27 Financial guarantees (Continued)

3.1

(a)

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the
present value of the difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the Group.
Because of the simplicity of the financial structure and the current
operations of the Group, no hedging activities are undertaken by the
management.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi (“RMB").
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3.1
(a)

(b)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risks against their respective functional
currencies. It mainly includes managing the exposures arisen from
sales and purchases made by relevant group companies in currencies
other than their own functional currencies. The Group also manages
its foreign exchange risk by performing regular reviews of the
Group’s net foreign exchange exposure. The Group has not used any
hedging arrangement to hedge its foreign exchange risk exposure.

As the assets and liabilities of each company within the Group are
mainly denominated in the respective company’s functional currency,
the directors are of the opinion that the Group's volatility of its profits
against changes in exchange rates of foreign currencies would not
be significant.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets except for bank
deposits and bank borrowings, the income and operating cash flows
of which are substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates.

Interest rate risk mainly arises from bank deposits and bank
borrowings at variable interest rates which are subject to cash flow
interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2024, if interest rates had been increased/decreased
by 0.5% with all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year would have been decreased/increased by HK$1,607,000
(2023: HK$4,091,000) and increased/decreased by HK$2,493,000
(2023: HK$2,750,000), as a result of the changes in the interest
expenses on bank borrowings and interest income on bank deposits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Price risk
The Group is exposed to securities price risk because investments
held by the Group are classified on the consolidated statement of
financial position as financial assets at FVOCI. The Group has not
mitigated its price risk arising from these financial assets.

For the Group’s financial assets that are publicly traded, the fair
value is determined with reference to quoted market prices. For the
Group’s financial assets that are not publicly traded, the Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the reporting
date.

As at 31 March 2024, if the price of the listed equity securities
(financial assets at FVOCI) had increased/decreased by 10% with all
other variables being held constant, the Group’s FVOCI investment
reserve would have increased/decreased by HK$7,450,000 (2023:
HK$8,675,000).

(d) Credit risk

(i) Risk management
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual
cash flows of debt instruments carried at amortised cost, deposits
with bank and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
customers and debtors, including trade and other receivables.
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=R e e

3.1
(d)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management (Continued)

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Majority of the Group’s bank
balances and deposits are placed in banks and financial institutions
which are independently rated with investment grade credit rating
(Moody’s: Baa3 or above; Standard & Poor’s: BBB- or above; Fitch:
BBB- or above). Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these banks and financial institutions as they have
no default history in the past. Therefore, expected credit loss rate of
cash at bank is assessed to be nominal and no provision was made
as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

The credit quality of the landlords is assessed based on the financial
position of the landlords as well as past experience of the Group in
dealing with the respective landlords. The Group has policies in place
to ensure rental deposits are placed to landlords with appropriate
credit histories and credit terms are granted to reliable debtors. The
Group's historical experience in collection of deposits and other
receivables falls within the recorded allowance and the directors
are of the opinion that expected credit loss rate of these balances is
nominal and no provision was made as at 31 March 2024 and 31
March 2023.

There is no concentration of credit risk as the Group’s bank balances
and deposits are deposited in over ten financial institutions with
investment grade credit ratings, and the Group has a large number
of counterparties for rental deposits, trade and other receivables.
Management does not expect any losses from non-performance by
these financial institutions and counterparties.
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3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets
The Group has three main types of financial assets that are subject to
the expected credit loss model:
(1) Cash and cash equivalents;

(2) Trade receivables; and

(3) Other financial assets measured at amortised costs (including
deposits and other receivables)

(1) Cash and cash equivalents
While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, as all financial

institutions are rated with investment grade credit rating, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.
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3.1
(d)
(ii)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

@)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables of the Group are subject to the expected
credit loss model. The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses, which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on the nature of customer accounts,
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are calculated using a “roll rate”
method based on the probability of a receivable progressing
through successive stages of delinquency to write-off. Roll
rates are calculated separately for exposures in different
segments based on the common credit risk characteristics.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
The group has identified the gross domestic product and the
fixed investment growth rate of Hong Kong and Mainland
China to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts
the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these
factors.
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AREEBEFRAT 2023/24 533

3  Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HBERER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HBEREE (E)
(d)  Credit risk (Continued) (d) EEmRk(E)
(i)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) SHEEREBEGE)
(2)  Trade receivables (Continued) 2) ERENFEE)
On the basis, expected loss rate of trade receivables is RUEEE RZT-WFE=A
assessed to be close to zero, as at 31 March 2024 and = +—BkKZZZFE=-_=Z=%F=H
31 March 2023. In respect of trade receivables, the loss =+—H  &FEWKKREATEL
allowance as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 was BEERWHATEAEOLT - pEHx
determined as follows: BUWEREMmMS  R_ZE_WF=
A=+—BAk=ZE=_=%=H
—t+—HRSEBEETNT ¢
31 March 2024 0-30days 31-60days 61-90days 91-365days Over 365 days Total
“E-ME=A=1-H 0£30H 31260 H 61290 H 91£365H #1365 A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TR TAT TET FET
Gross carrying amount BEREE
- Trade receivables - BERWERE 68,980 12,262 4217 3,971 83 89,513
Loss allowance BiERE - - - - (83) (83)
31 March 2023 0-30days  31-60days  61-90days  91-365days  Over 365 days Total
“F-=F#=A=t-H 0Z30H 312608 61290H 91Z365H #365A @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FAT FET FAT
Gross carrying amount BEEE
- Trade receivables - BEEKRE 51,900 14,409 4724 4,837 74 75,944
Loss allowance BiERE - - - 2) (74) (76)
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3.1
(d)
(ii)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

@)

Trade receivables (Continued)

A credit-impaired financial asset is when the counterparty
fails to make contractual payments within 90 days of when
they fall due or it becomes probable the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy. A default on a financial asset is when
the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within
120 days of when they fall due. Trade and other receivables
are written off where there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor
to engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and a failure
to make contractual payments for a period of greater than
120 days past due. Impairment losses on trade and other
receivables are presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the same line item.
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3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1
(d) Credit risk (Continued) (d)
(i)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i)

(3)  Other financial assets measured at amortised costs (including
deposits and other receivables)

Other financial assets at amortised costs include the deposits
and other receivables excluding prepayments. The credit
quality of other financial assets at amortised costs has been
assessed with reference to historical information about the
counterparties default rates and financial position of the
counterparties. Other financial assets at amortised costs are
considered to be low credit risk where they have a low risk
of default and the counterparties have strong capacities to
meet their contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.
Management compares the risk of a default occurring on the
assets as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition and considers that their credit
risks have not increased significantly since initial recognition.
Management is of the opinion that the risk of default by
these counterparties is not significant and does not expect
any losses from non-performance by the counterparties.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of the other financial
assets at amortised costs is assessed to be nominal and no
provision was made as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March
2023.
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3.1
(e)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management, after considering the expected
market conditions, implies maintaining sufficient cash and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of available
credit facilities. The Group continues to maintain a healthy net
cash position by keeping credit lines available and to maintain
flexibility in future funding. As at 31 March 2024, the Group had
total banking facilities amounting to HK$1,627,459,000 (2023:
HK$2,016,350,000) of which HK$546,783,000 were utilised
(2023: HK$1,143,460,000). As at 31 March 2024, the Group had
available unutilised banking facilities of HK$1,080,676,000 (2023:
HK$872,890,000).

The Group's primary cash requirements are payments for trade
payables, other creditors and accrued liabilities and operating
expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through internal resources and borrowings from
financial institutions.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial

liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturities.
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3  Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HBERER(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiisREbREE (F)
(e)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) ARBELREP:(E)
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted RPBRENSERAANRUBATR &N
cash flows. Balances due within twelve months equal their carrying 2 ARUBBNFET FEXR - At
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. T A AR SRR E N AR &
B o
Total
Within undiscounted
oneyearor Betweenone Between two More than  cash outflows
ondemand andtwo years and five years five years AERBS
—ERHEER -ZRER MELER BENE REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
A7 FE7 FEx FE7 FET
At 31 March 2024 R=2-mE=R=+-A
Trade payables BEENEER 210,767 - - - 210,767
Other creditors and accrued  Eft BB RIEF B
liabilties (excluding (TRiEFLRER)
non-financial liabilities) 570,915 - - - 570,915
Lease liabilities REAR 843,009 601,660 710,840 55,758 2,211,267
Bank borrowings RITER 87,007 85,349 226,987 - 399,343
1,711,698 687,009 937,827 55,758 3,392,292
Total
Within undiscounted
oneyearor  Betweenone  Between two More than  cash outflows
ondemand  andtwoyears  and five years five years FERHRE
—ERHRER —EWERN MERER RERE nEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&L FET &L FET FET
At 31 March 2023 R=B==§¥=f=+-H
Trade payables EEREMRE 225,881 - - - 225,881
Other creditors and accrued  HAtE(BRIBR B £
liabilities (excluding (TBEEERER)
non-financial liabilities) 580,099 = = = 580,099
Lease liabilities 58E 838,402 640,692 881,941 77,629 2,438,664
Bank borrowings RTER 994,135 = = = 994,135
2,638,517 640,692 881,941 77,629 4,238,779
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3.2

3.3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group monitor capital on
basis of gearing ratio, which is calculated based on total borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity.

As at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, as the Group is in a net
cash position of HK$875,948,000 and HK$692,028,000 respectively,
management considers that the Group’s capital risk is minimal.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that

are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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3.3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2024:

Assets BE

Financial assets at fair value through BRATEIIAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ eREE
— Listed equity investments* - AR E *

3.3

B EREE (&)

NEGET ()
AREBPR-—T-_WME=A=+—HEKEA
FEFFENESHEERIINTX :

Level 1 Total
F— #at
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
74,499 74,499

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2023:

Assets BE

Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEIAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ 2R EE
— Listed equity investments* - AR A *

ARER_F_=F=A=1+—HER
FEFENGRAEMIIRN T -

Level 1 Total
F—1 45t
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
86,746 86,746

* Amount represented the equity investment in Tao Heung
Holdings Limited.
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3.3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. These
instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The carrying values less loss allowance of trade and other receivables
and payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments. There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3
during the year.
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4

(a)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined based
on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to
sell calculations. The calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates.
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4

(a)

(b)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets (Continued)

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
in assessing: (i) whether an event, including the outbreak of
COVID-19, has occurred that may indicate that the related asset
values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the
higher of fair value less costs to sell and net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections, which include
among others, consideration of the present and expected market
conditions including the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak and
the expected pace of recovery; and whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets.
The estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation and amortisation charges where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives. It will write off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable
and amortisable lives and therefore affect the depreciation and
amortisation charges in future periods.
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(@

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. The Group recognises liabilities or anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

The Group also has significant tax losses carried forward not
recognised as deferred income tax assets. Deferred income tax
assets in respect of tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. No deferred income
tax assets are recognised when it is uncertain whether there are
sufficient future taxable profits available before such tax losses expire
where the final outcome of these uncertainties are different from
the estimation, such differences will impact the carrying amount of
deferred income tax assets in the period in which such determination
is made.

Judgement is required in determining the provision for withholding
tax on the undistributed retained profits of the Mainland China
subsidiaries. The Group assesses its needs to make distribution out of
its subsidiaries. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised on the
undistributed retained profits that are expected to be distributed by
the Group in the future.
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(d)

(e)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Fair values of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value with changes
in the fair values recognised in consolidated income statement.
The Group obtains independent valuations at least annually. At
the end of each reporting period, the management update their
assessment of the fair value of each property, taking into account
the most recent independent valuations. In making the assessment,
consideration is given to assumptions based on market conditions,
such as actual market data and latest transactions for comparable
properties, existing at the end of the financial reporting period.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments of the Company.
These plans comprise share option schemes and a share award
scheme. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options or shares is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options or shares granted as at the date of grant:
(i) including any market performance conditions; (ii) excluding
the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets); and (iii)
including the impact of any non-market vesting conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options or shares that are expected to vest. At the
end of each financial reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options or shares that are expected to vest based
on the non-market vesting conditions, taking into account the
Group’s latest business performance, current market condition and
the future business outlook.
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(f)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Determination of lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the
lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the most

relevant:

o If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend),
the Group is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not
terminate).

o If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a

significant remaining value, the Group is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate).

o Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including
historical lease durations and the costs and business
disruption required to replace the leased asset.

The lease term is reassessed when an option is actually exercised
(or not exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not
exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is revised when
a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs,
which affects this assessment and that is within the control of the
Group.

151

(f)

RN SEHEE R ¥ i (&)

EEEH

RETHYE BEESEZRMERBK
REFENEERERATEEHEEE
BRTTEEIDEEE - EEHERS
BRELER (AT ERRLL)E - ERE
B (SRR DR B2 RAOER) 77 A E
ATHE] -

UTHRE—REMEAER SR

. a4 (R AER) @ X EKE
R BIREE-REERELR
(HAEHLE) »

. WEMEAEEETREKAEA
BEXFSHEER ARE KA
EEFLER (R TERL)

. TR AEEHEREMEASR
BRELSHENRALEAEE
BEMB AN EGHE -

EEERER L DEITE (RRETE)
AARKEEREITEKAITE)EE
- ReEMAGEY ERLEERSE
HEBEREBELEERNE LN EZAF
it YRASEZGEE AR T8
ER] BB MEE RS -



Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

4

(9)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Estimation of long service payment

The present value of the long service payment depends on a number
of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number
of assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the
carrying amount of long service payment.

Details of key assumptions and impact of possible changes in key
assumptions are disclosed in note 15.

Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of quick service
restaurants, casual dining chains, institutional catering, as well as
food processing and distribution business.

The Chief Executive Officer of the Group reviews the Group's internal
reporting in order to allocate resources amongst different segments,
and assesses the business principally from a geographical perspective,
including Hong Kong and Mainland China. Segment results as
presented below represent operating profit excluding fair value
changes on investment properties, depreciation and amortisation
(excluding depreciation for right-of-use assets-properties), and
reversal of impairment loss and impairment loss of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets; and including finance cost of
lease liabilities.
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 Z2¥&ERGE)
Segment information of the Group for the current year and AEBAFENDBENNMLRETE
comparative figures are as follows: HEATS -
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
BE FR A it AEEH
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET
Year ended 31 March 2024 BE—Z-_MFE=A=+—H
IFEE
Total segment revenue DI A LBEE 7,181,814 1,625,812 8,807,626
Inter-segment revenue (Note /) NEB D EBURA (HTaET) (5,746) (110,431) (116,177)

Revenue (from external revenue) WA (3R B NEBURA)

(Note i) (Hiatii) 7,176,068 1,515,381 8,691,449
Represented by timing of revenue WA HERFFEIERR -

recognition:

— At a point in time - EXE KR 7,143,692 1,515,373 8,659,065

— Over time - EXE-BEEA 32,376 8 32,384

7,176,068 1,515,381 8,691,449

Segment results (Note iii) DABEELE (KTt i) 618,894 179,421 798,315
Depreciation and amortisation e g

(excluding depreciation of (EREEE-DEZFE

right-of-use assets — properties) BRI (314,809) (79,381) (394,190)
Fair value loss on investment properties % & 1% 2 A F(EF1E (31,900) - (31,900)
Reversal of impairment loss of property, #1% - 5B M&E 2

plant and equipment REE B D 4,320 - 4,320
Impairment loss of property, mE - BEEREZ

plant and equipment BEEE (6,223) - (6,223)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets & F#E& & < EEE (2,290) - (2,290)
Finance income BSUA 43,486 1,818 45,304
Finance cost on bank borrowings RITER WA (23,808) - (23,808)
Income tax expense FriSHi & A (31,879) (24,434) (56,313)
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5

Segment Information (Continued)

5 28ERE)

Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
B Hr B A rEE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FHT
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-—E_=F=H=+—H
IHEE
Total segment revenue DA LB 6,704,615 1,429,472 8,134,087
Inter-segment revenue (Note /) WEE A FBWA (HaET) (4,098) (105,945) (110,043)
Revenue (from external revenue) WA (2R 8 SNERUA)
(Note ii) (Kazii) 6,700,517 1,323,527 8,024,044
Represented by timing of revenue  #ZUWW A HERBFFREIER R -
recognition:
— At a point in time - EXE R 6,655,471 1,323,527 7,978,998
— Qver time - EX—EREERA 45,046 = 45,046
6,700,517 1,323,527 8,024,044
Segment results (Note jii) DERREE (Mt i) 468,828 126,163 594,991
Depreciation and amortisation EREHE
(excluding depreciation of (ERAREE-MEZTE
right-of-use assets — properties) BRI (313,008) (81,766) (394,774)
Fair value loss on investment properties 1% & 4%~ A (A K18 (20,100) = (20,100)
Impairment loss of property, M - BEREEZ
plant and equipment JREETE (15,623) (6,301) (21,924)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets {5 A& &= 2w (EE 18 (13,973) (8,758) (22,731)
Finance income BRI 37,597 1,250 38,847
Finance cost on bank borrowings IRITER 2 A (30,133) - (30,133)
Income tax expense FisHi & (24,166) (8,823) (32,989)
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 28
0) Inter-segment transactions were entered into in the normal (i)
course of business.

(if)

(iif)

The Group has a large number of customers. For the (ii)

years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, no revenue was

derived from transactions with a single external customer

representing 10% or more of the Group's total revenue.

Information of segment results

(iif)

(a) The following items are included in the measure

¥ ()

wk
\P

PR Z IR IER X158

nnr okr

H N

Ak
]
AEEREAEET -BE_T
“MERZBE_=F=A=+—
RIEFE  TEREIDBETZ

RGEENAEELR AR 10%
A EZWA

DHREEER

(@ MHNATHEBEFAXEER

of segment results reviewed by the Chief Executive FRTEEHN D BES
Officer of the Group. FTE e
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
BB FEIR b |
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FE
Year ended 31 March 2024 BZ-2-ME
ZA=t-ALEE
Depreciation - right-of-use FE-RREEE-NZ%
assets — properties 694,302 111,274 805,576
Finance cost of lease liabilities HEAGERNHBRA 64,966 19,818 84,784
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-E_=F
ZA=t-ALEE
Depreciation - right-of-use & - EREEE - 0%
assets — properties 683,440 99,014 782,454
Finance cost of lease liabilities HEA BRI BRA 49,732 18,643 68,375
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 Z2¥&ERGE)
(i) Information of segment results (Continued) (i) DEEREEHE)
(b)  Recondiliation of total segment results to total profit (b) AADFEEEHLRTATR
before income tax is as follows: FEVERRAT -
2024 2023
—E-mEF —T=%F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Segment results Pak SE L 798,315 594,991
Depreciation and amortisation — H7& K& ## 4
(excluding depreciation of (ERREE-MEZFE
right-of-use assets — properties)  Br4h) (394,190) (394,774)
Fair value loss on investment wEME N THEEBIE
properties (31,900) (20,100)
Reversal of impairment loss of M - BERREZ
property, plant and equipment  JB{EEIE A 4,320 -
Impairment loss of property, Mm% - BEEREZ
plant and equipment RIEEE (6,223) (21,924)
Impairment loss of right-of-use  {EFA#EEE 2 MEFE
assets (2,290) (22,731)
Finance income BRI 45,304 38,847
Finance cost on bank borrowings R1TE R 2 ISR (23,808) (30,133)
Profit before income tax FR A5 A& A 389,528 144,176
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Segment Information (Continued)

5 28ERE)

Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
&8 R Bl At rEE
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET
As at 31 March 2024 R-ZE-_NE=A=+—H
Segment assets PEEE 5,231,695 1,140,804 6,372,499
Year ended 31 March 2024 HE-ZT_-NF
=A=+—HILFE
Segment assets include: DEEERR
Additions to non-current assets REFNDHEE(ERIAR
(other than financial instruments FEEF B EERRIN)
and deferred income tax assets) 670,187 271,151 941,338
As at 31 March 2023 R—_E-_=F=HA=+—H
Segment assets DIEEE 5,883,097 1,138,032 7,021,129
Year ended 31 March 2023 HE-_ZT_=fF
ZA=+—HILHFE
Segment assets include: DEEERE
Additions to non-current assets REFRDEE(EBIAK
(other than financial instruments FEIEFI B EERRIN)
and deferred income tax assets) 1,314,323 286,455 1,600,778
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5 Segment Information (Continued)

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s non-current assets (other
than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets) that
are located in Hong Kong and the Mainland China amounted
to HK$3,861,999,000 (2023: HK$4,117,381,000) and
HK$803,946,000 (2023: HK$780,659,000) respectively.

Reconciliation of total segment assets to total assets is provided as

DEER ()

R-ZE-_NME=A=+—H8  ~&H
EREAERTBEAMNERDEE
(EMIAREEHBEEERIN) 25l
#43,861,999,000/% ;t( = T = =
4,117,381,0007% 7T ) % 803,946,000 % 7T
(ZZ = =% : 780,659,000/ 7T) °

DREERBEEERROERNT

follows:

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
R-ZE-WEF RITZ=%F
=A=+—H —A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$000
FAETT FETL
Total segment assets DEREEMLTE 6,372,499 7,021,129
Deferred income tax assets FRIEFIAE = 66,214 62,955

Financial assets at fair value through BRATEIIAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ CRVEE 74,499 86,746
Current income tax recoverable BNER AT Ug B F1E 712 4,510
Total assets BELR 6,513,924 7,175,340
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6 ¥% BERKEUREH
Of-Use Assets EEE
Property, plant and equipment Right-of-use assets
W% - BERAE ERREE
Leasehold
Land and Furniture [and and
buildings and other land use
(Notec) Leasehold equipment  Plantand right
1H#REF improvements BAR  machinery | Subtotal | BEL#R  Properties | Subtotal Total
(Wi BERTEE ARG HERES M| LHERE % it i
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT 7L FAT 7EL 7L FET 7L 7ET 7L
Year ended 31 March 2024 HECEoRE
ZR=T-RLEE
Opening net book amount EEESE 506390 527,657 482642 101013 | 1617702 | 453103  1960,059 | 2413162 4,030,864
Additions hE - 146,004 152,645 19,454 318,103 - 588,310 588,310 906,413
Disposals it - (4337) (2,065) (131) (6,533) - - - (6,533)
Modification and termination of leases E&E R4 - - - - - - 102109 | 102109 102,109
Depreciation & (17.93)  (157,697)  (179,056) (18776) | (313452) (20,701)  (805,576) | (826,277)  (1,199,729)
Reversal of impairment loss HEERAE - 2,047 203 - 4320 - - - 4320
Impaiment e - (2,675) (3.548) - (6.223) - (2.29) (2.29) (85513)
Transfer from property, plantand ~ F¥1% « BERK(E
equipment and right-of-use assets ~ WRGFEELEER
toinvestment properties (Note 7).~ AEEME (M3t7) (6,000) - - - (6,000) 1 (42,000) - (42,0000 (48,000
Transfer from investment properties ~ &RENZERE
to property, plant and equipment 1% + BE Rk
and right-of-use assets (Note 7) REREBE () 16,000 - - - 16,000 | 119,000 - 119000 135000
Revaluation surplus of property E\RENERNE
plant and equipment and Fim R B R
right-of-use assets prior FREARERRS
to transferring to investment (Rist7)
properties (Note 7) 5,300 - - - 5,300 30,671 - 30,671 35971
Exchange differences ELEE (333 (9,849) (2483) Q1) (16,542) 811  (15778) | (16589)  (33131)
Closing net book amount EREREE 500,444 501,150 450,448 100,633 | 1,552,675 5392620 1826834 | 236609 3918771
At 31 March 2024 e 13
ZR=1-A
Cost BA 734129 1,632,088  2,014224 294967 | 4,675,408 7623718 7,693,190 | 8455568 13,130,976
Accumulated depreciation ZRENERHEER
and impairment losses (233,685  (1,130,938) (1,563,776)  (194,334) | (3.122,733) | (223116) (5,866,356) | (6,089,472) (9,212,205)
Closing net book amount ERERE 500,444 501,150 450,448 100,633 | 1,552,675 539262 1,826,834 | 236609 3918771
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6

M3 BERREAREH

Of-Use Assets (Continued) EEE(E)
Property, plant and equipment Right-of-use assets
0% BERRE feREE
Leasehold
Land and Furniture and and
buldings and other land use
(Notec) Leasehold  equipment  Plantand right
THRET improvements AR machinery | Subtotal | EELHR  Properties | Subtotal Total
(Wifc) HEBTRE  Ep}h HRRES 0G| HfERE Uk gt e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 FAT 2 FAT FAT FAT 7T AT FAT
At 1 April 2022 W-B-ZEmB-A
Cost BA 740505 1493105 1,815,500 298218 | 4347328 690569 6,407,675 | 7,098244 11445572
Accumulated depreciation ZRENERHEER
and impairment losses (210,355 (982,209)  (1375137)  (193557) | (2,761,258) | (208902)  (4730.868) | (4939.770) (7,701,028)
Closing net book amount ERGESE 530,150 510,8% 440,363 104,661 | 1,586,070 481667 1676807 | 2158474 3744544
Year ended 31 March 2023 HE-B-CE
ZA=T-BLEE
Opening net book amount ENSESE 530,150 510,8% 440,363 104,661 | 1,586,070 481667 1676807 | 2158474 3744544
Additions AE = 208,807 237,260 18639 464,706 - 1051476 | 1051476 1516,182
Disposals ik = (2623) (5527) (502) (8,052) - - - (8,652)
Modification and termination of leases FEZEIRA = - - - - - 58,292 58,292 58,292
Depreciation nE (17793 (164,283 (175,561) (20559) | (378,19) (16540)  (782454) | (798994)  (1,177,190)
Impairment fA = (11,769) (10,155) - (21,924) - (22731) (22731) (44,655)
Transfer from property, plantand &4+ EERREUR
equipment and right-of-use assets to  FEEEEEHRA
investment properties (Note 7) RENE (37) (1.821) - - - (1821) | (62679) - (679 (p4500)
Revaluation surplus of property EYCEUELER
plant and equipment and R R EAR
right-of-use assets prior to PREEEEMER
transferring to investment (Kist7)
properties (Note 7) 1,509 - - - 1,509 51938 - 51938 53,447
Exchange differences EiEE (5,655) (13371) (3738 (1,226) (23.990) (1,283) (21331) (22614) (46,604)
Closing net book amount EREREE 506,390 527,657 482,642 101,013 | 1,617,702 453103 1,90059 | 2413162 4030864
At 31 March 2023 kSt
Zpzt-8
Cost i 721330 1581418 1,955,087 305428 | 4,569,265 057,944 7491008 | 8149012 12718277
Accumulated depreciation BENERNIESE
and impairment losses (220942)  (1,053761) (1472445 (04.415) | (2.951,563) | (204,841) (5,531,009) | (5735850) (8,687413)
Closing net book amount EREREE 506,390 527,657 482,642 101,013 | 1,617,702 453103 19005 | 2413162 4030864
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-
Of-Use Assets (Continued)

@)

Depreciation expenses of HK$1,182,002,000 (2023:
HK$1,156,317,000) and HK$17,727,000 (2023:
HK$20,873,000) have been charged to cost of sales and
administrative expenses, respectively (Note 24), while
impairment losses of HK$8,513,000 (2023: HK$44,655,000)
and reversal of impairment loss of HK$4,320,000 (2023: Nil)
have been charged to other income and other (losses)/gains,
net (Note 23).

Impairment/reversal of impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group mainly operates restaurants, institutional catering
and casual dining chains on self-owned properties and leased
properties with lease terms ranging from 1 to 9 years (2023:
same). Management regards each individual restaurant as
a separately identifiable CGU and performs assessments
on each of the CGUs with impairment/reversal indicators
by considering the recoverable amount of such assets at
restaurant level. During the year ended 31 March 2024,
management identified those restaurants with impairment/
reversal indicators and performed assessments to estimate
the corresponding recoverable amounts of their property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
based on value-in-use basis which cover a period of the
useful life or the remaining lease term, whichever is shorter.
Impairment is recognised when the recoverable amount
was lower than the carrying amount of a CGU. Reversal of
impairment is recognised when the recoverable amount was
higher than the carrying amount of a CGU. Key inputs to
the determination of the recoverable amount includes the
annual revenue growth and pre-tax discount rate. The pre-tax
discount rate used to determine the recoverable amounts is
approximately 12.0% per annum (2023: 12.0%).
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(b)
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T — =% :1,156,317,0007% 7T )
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20,873,000 7T) E 2 AT AHE
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E5188,513,000 8L (=T =4 :
44,655,0007% 7T ) J Rk (B &5 18 7 |
4,320,000 (Z T == : &)
Bt AEMUA REAF (E518),/
A (fEE23) ©
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—=F: R  EEEREE
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-

i

Of-Use Assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment/reversal of impairment of property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

Based on the assessments performed, the Group recognised
an impairment charge of property, plant and equipment of
HK$6,223,000 (2023: HK$21,924,000) and right-of-use
assets of HK$2,290,000 (2023: HK$22,731,000) as well as
a reversal of impairment of property, plant and equipment
of HK$4,320,000 (2023: Nil) for the year ended 31 March

2024.

6 ME BERKEUREHR
EEE (&)

(b)

M - BB N REANERESR
EREREREE (F)

BEFT#ET 23S REEZT
“MEZA=+—HIEFE A%
EERYE  BERRBZRE
16,223,000 (=T == :
21,924,00087C) R{EAEEE 2
BEST 2,290,000 T(— T ==
22,731,000/ 70) LA R -
R = Ko 2848 2 B # 121 4,320,000
BL(ZE_=F &)

(©  The Group’s land and buildings are analysed as follows: © AEELHREFHOFTEAT
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
RoE—m&E RZTZ=%F
=A=t+—8H =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET FET

Net book value: BRTEDHE -

Freehold land KA FERE LM 14,811 14,811
Buildings ¥ 485,633 491,579
500,444 506,390
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6 ¥5% BERKREUREH

Of-Use Assets (Continued) EEE (&)
(d)  This note provides information for the leases where the (d) I REAEEAERBEAMNHE
Group is a lessee. &K -
() Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (i) REEFBIRRKFER
financial position o]
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
R-B-F R-ZF_=%F
=A=t+-—H EF=—F
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET

Right-of-use assets EREEE

Leasehold land and HEL &
land use right s AR 539,262 453,103
Properties ES 1,826,834 1,960,059
2,366,096 2,413,162
Lease liabilities HEEE
Non-current JEmED 1,289,060 1,508,455
Current R 774,067 760,629
2,063,127 2,269,084
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6 ¥5% BERKREUREH

Of-Use Assets (Continued) EEE (&)
(d)  This note provides information for the leases where the (d) I REAEEAERBEAMNHE
Group is a lessee. (Continued) &R - (8)
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (il REeEaxTPBERZE
statement #
2024 2023
—ENEFE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Depreciation of right-of-use FRAEEEZTE
assets
Leasehold land and land use right TS At Jo - R A 20,701 16,540
Properties LJES 805,576 782,454
826,277 798,994
Interest expenses (included in FEREZ (GTA
finance income and finance costs)  BAFSUR A I FSACA) 84,784 68,375

Expense relating to short-term leases fEHMAESE s BA
(included in cost of sales) (FFASEERKA) 37,302 24,700

Expenses relating to variable lease ~ T~EEEHAEREANND

payments not included in lease BRI EFHENFKEBHEL
liabilities (included in cost of sales) A (sF ASHERA) 60,442 47,686
Leases entered by the Group were generally with REEIUZHE—RE
lease term of one to nine years with renewal option. —ENFHEH - WAEE
B -
During the year ended 31 March 2024, total cash HE_T-_MFE=A=+—
outflows for leases were HK$933,062,000 (2023: BIEFER  BHERSRD
HK$899,672,000). #8758 /933,062,000870(=
= = = 4 : 899,672,000/%
TT) °
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7 Investment Properties 7 BEYx
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt s FET F&T
Beginning of the year FNEEER 559,200 514,800
Transfer from property, plant and Yz - BB RE&E
equipment and right-of-use A RFEREEE
assets to investment properties B RIREYE 6 48,000 64,500
Transfer from investment HEREMFEERRYE -
properties to property, plant and TR BE Fe stk A Fe
equipment and right-of-use assets EREEE 6 (135,000) =
Fair value loss NEEE 23 (31,900) (20,100)
End of the year FRER 440,300 559,200
Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment properties: MIEEMER BT RN
2024 2023
—E-IF ZT=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Rental income e A 13,403 19,884
Direct operating expenses from EEBESRAZHEZ
properties that generate rental income HEZEEH (1,419) (1,130)
11,984 18,754
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During the year, as a result of change in use, an investment property
of HK$135,000,000 located in Hong Kong was transferred to
owner-occupied property and right-of-use asset, and an owner-
occupied property and right-of-use asset located in Hong Kong

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

REW=E (&)

FRA ERENE UREAEN
135,000,000/ 8 TR EMFBHEEH
MEREREEE  MURBENE R
MEREREEENEREREDE

was transferred to investment property. Details of the transfer into BAREMEZFHIBAT
investment property is as follows:
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
I3 FET FET
On the date of transfer REREHR
— Fair value of properties and - BEBHNMER
right-of-use assets transferred FHEEEAFE 48,000 64,500
— Carrying amounts of properties - BEBHMER
and right-of-use assets transferred PAEEEREE (12,029) (11,053)
Revaluation surplus recognised in REMEERA
other comprehensive income R Eh &R 35,971 53,447

Independent valuation of the properties being transferred were
performed by CBRE Limited to determine the fair value of the
investment properties at the dates of transfer.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had no un-provided contractual
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2023: Nil).

An independent valuation of the Group's investment properties
was performed by CBRE Limited to determine the fair value of the
investment properties as at 31 March 2024 and 2023. Fair value loss
has been charged to other income and other (losses)/gains, net (Note
23).
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7 Investment Properties (Continued) 7 BEYx(E)
The following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair TRAABEERATHESITIREDE -

value, by valuation method.

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2024 using
R-BE-_NMF=A=+—HZAREFELFXEA
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets for other observable unobservable

identical assets inputs inputs
EEEEREER H AT EEH FERTEREEM
% EHRE ERWAE ERWAE
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
it (B—#%) (B=4) (B=4)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Recurring fair value measurements ~ &HEMEAFETE
Investment properties: wEME
- Shops — Hong Kong - - B - - 440,300
Fair value measurements at 31 March 2023 using
RZEBEZ=F=A=+—BzZATEFEANER
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets for  other observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
FREELER Hib [ EERN SERTEIERE
M5 LR RE BABAE BARBAE
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
it (F—4) (B=4) (B=%)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Recurring fair value measurements ~ &HMAFETE
Investment properties: EYE
— Shops — Hong Kong - - BB - - 559,200
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The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of

fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in

circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation

Fair value technique

A¥E fEERE
(HK$°000)
(F#x)

As at 31 March 2024
R-ZE-_WE=A=+—H

Direct Comparison
Method with
adjusting factors
FEHAAZRREN

440,300 BHERESE

Unobservable
inputs
FABENEH AR

Adjusted units’ rates
RABENER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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7 REWX(E)

AEEBRANEM BNz EREBH

EZBEREREBE  BRAATEER
B AR o
FRNF—F - F_ERE=FERE
=i -
Relationship of
Range of unobservable
unobservable inputs to
inputs fair value
FE A8 AT FERTER I A E
W AEREE B2 AP {E HBA R
The higher the
HK$13,000 to adjusted units’ rates,
HK$59,000 the higher the
per square feet fair value
BSEHR13,0008 LKABSBVERES
59,000 & 7T DR EBS

As at 31 March 2023
RZEZ=F=RA=+—H

Direct Comparison
Method with
adjusting factors
FERAEREEDN

559,200 HELBE

Adjusted units’ rates
AR EN B

HK$14,000 to
HK$63,000

per square feet
BTFHR14,000%
63,000 7T

The higher the
adjusted units’ rates,
the higher the

fair value
RAREAERYS
NEERR
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Investment Properties (Continued)

Valuation process of the Group

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March
2024 and 2023 were determined on the basis of a valuation by a
qualified valuer in accordance with the “HKIS Valuation Standards
2017" published by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, which is
also compliant with the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards of
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and the International
Valuation Standards (IVS).

Valuation technique

Fair value is defined as “the estimated amount for which an asset
or liability should exchange on the valuation date between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length transaction after proper
marketing and where the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion.”

Under the direct comparison method, fair value of the investment
property is derived from comparing the property to be valued directly
with other comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of the properties,
appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any
qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved
by the property under consideration. The most significant impact
into this valuation approach is price per square meter. The higher the
price per square meter, the higher the fair value of the investment
properties.

There was no change to the valuation technique with that of prior
year.

The Group’s management reviews the valuation performed by
independent valuer and holds discussion of the valuation processes
and results are held with the independent qualified valuer once a
year for financial reporting purpose.
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8 Intangible Assets 8 EEEE
Other
intangible
Goodwiill assets Total
BE HtEREE Mg
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2022 R-ZE-_—FmMA—H
Cost AR 1,350 57,794 59,144
Accumulated amortisation and 24 MR EEE
impairment losses (246) (57,707) (57,953)
Closing net book amount FIRAREDFE 1,104 87 1,191
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-ZE_=—F=A=1+—HILEE
Opening net book amount FREFEE 1,104 87 1,191
Amortisation expense (Note (a))  ##$4% A (M3 (a) - (38) (38)
Closing net book amount FERTEFE 1,104 49 1,153
At 31 March 2023 R-EBE-=F=H=+—H
Cost BN 1,350 57,794 59,144
Accumulated amortisation and ~ Zi&#E s MREERE
impairment losses (246) (57,745) (57,991)
Closing net book amount FARERTFE 1,104 49 1,153
Year ended 31 March 2024 BE-—ZE_NE=HA=1+—HILEE
Opening net book amount FHAREFE 1,104 49 1,153
Amortisation expense (Note (a))  #84E M (Kl (a)) - (37) (37)
Closing net book amount FIRAREDFE 1,104 12 1,116
At 31 March 2024 R-ZE_WE=HA=+—H
Cost A 1,350 57,794 59,144
Accumulated amortisation and ~ ZFE#E S MR EEE
impairment losses (246) (57,782) (58,028)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 1,104 12 1,116
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(a)

(b)

(@)

Intangible Assets (Continued)

Amortisation expense of HK$37,000 (2023: HK$38,000) has been
charged to costs of sales (Note 24).

Other intangible assets mainly represent franchise rights with useful
lives of five to twenty years.

Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according to
country of operation.

A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented
below:

Hong Kong BB

(a)

(b)

(@)

BREE (&)

37,0008 L (ZE = =4 : 38,0008 7T)
ZEBHEERD A ASHERA (HizE24) -

HtEPEETZERRENE  HEM
FHARE_THF -

AR E R
PR Ty AR bR AN S A 7 B 5K 7 3 )
MR SEEEMERSE -

BENEH D BEB2HRAT

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
R-ZE-WEF P ——
=A=+—H =A=+—~H
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET

1,104 1,104

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on the
higher of (i) fair value less costs to sell and (i) value in use determined
using the discounted cash flow method. The calculations of the
recoverable amounts of the CGUs in Hong Kong were determined
with reference to their fair value less costs to sell.
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9 Subsidiaries 9

B 8 2 =]

TREFIN-_ZF-_MF=A=+—HH

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March

2024: TZMBRAREHR -
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held" Principal
Name of subsidiary ML R L BRI/ FiE FriERM  activities
MEAR AR RS2 HEfRA  ROER B! EEXEK
Asia Pacific Catering Hong Kong HK$131,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Corporation Limited B 131,000,000/ &l R
REHBRBRAT
Barson Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
BHERARLA s 10,000/87T E&@ MERE
Bloomcheer Limited Hong Kong HK$71,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
WEBARLF s 71,000,000  E& R
Brilliantwin Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BEHBARAR s 1,000,000  E& R
Café de Coral Assets Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
HEERES 1%1  E@ REER
Café de Coral Central Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Food processing
Processing Limited B 208 L@ BMEE
Café de Coral (China) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$92,291,880  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
REE(HE) ARAQF s 92,291,880 Ll REER
Café de Coral (Denmark) ApS ~ Denmark DKK125,000  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
FHE 125,000 %= E& REER
Café de Coral Development British Virgin Islands Us$1  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Limited! HEERES 1%1  ER REER
Café de Coral Group Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$148,923,550  Ordinary 100%  Catering
REREELEBRAA N 148,923 550/  Ei@ R
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9

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
MWEARERE

Café de Coral (Guangzhou)
Catering Company Limited
ARE(BMN) RMABRAR

Café de Coral (Macau) Limited
AR (RPY) BRAF

City Energy Limited
Blat R A

Diners Court Management
Limited
ERMEBARAA

Dongguan Asia Pacific
Catering Company Limited

REZGHRERLF

Dongguan Continental
Foods Limited

REBERMARAQE

Eldoon Limited

Exo Enterprises Limited

Foshan Café de Coral Catering

Company Limited
FRILAKERRBR AT

Gateway City Limited

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FEM RS BR 3Z
RASE it 2

Mainland China
B A
Macau

SBFT

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong

s

Mainland China
B A

Mainland China
B A

Hong Kong

s

Hong Kong
BB

Mainland China

REAM

Hong Kong
B

Issued/
registered
capital
B#T/
s AR AR

HK$21,000,000
21,000,000 7C
MOP300,000

300,0003£F7T

HK$200,000
200,000 7T

HK$1,000,000

1,000,000 7T

HK$7,400,000
7,400,00078 7T

RMB39,186,061
AE#39,186,061 7T

HK$21,000,000
21,000,000 7T

HK$4,000,000
4,000,000 7T

HK$6,000,000
6,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 87T
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9 KEAR(E)

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held’
s Frs iz 4
bl BAL!
- 100%
Ordinary 70%
Eif
Ordinary 100%
Eif
Ordinary 100%
T8
- 100%
- 100%
Ordinary 100%
T8
Ordinary 100%
T8
- 100%
Ordinary 100%
¥

Principal
activities

Catering
#R
Catering
R

Property investment

MERE
Catering

R

Catering
#R

Food processing
RYEE

Catering
R

Catering
R

Catering

FR

Catering
#R
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9

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

MEARERE

Global Force Limited
BBEARAA

Glory Congee & Noodles
Food Limited
BRERmBRAR

Grand Seasons (Central)
Food and Beverages
Caterers Company Limited

Greatpower Kingdom Limited
ABEFERAA]

Greenwise Limited
HEBRAA

Guangzhou Asia Pacific
Catering Company Limited
BMNZEHRRERAR

Guangzhou Café de Coral
Foods Limited
BMNARLERmBEBR AR

Honour Congee & Noodles
Food Limited
ERERmARAF

Huizhou Asia Pacific Catering
Company Limited
BIMZEHRRAERRAR

Invol Resources Limited
BERERERERAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FEM RS BR 3Z
RASE it 2

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
s

Hong Kong
&R

Mainland China
B A

Mainland China
B At

Hong Kong
s

Mainland China
B A

Hong Kong
(incorporation)/
Mainland China
(operation)

B GaliiAvaye

B At (45 &

Issued/
registered
capital
B#T/
s AR AR

HK$92,466,446
92,466,446 78T

HK$2,500,000
2,500,000 % T

HK$11,000,000
11,000,000 % 7T

HK$22,000,000
22,000,000 7% 7T

HK$4,000,000
4,000,000 87T

HK$16,000,000
16,000,000 % 7T

US$23,500,000
23,500,000 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000/87C

HK$3,200,000
3,200,000 7% T

HK$6,125,000
6,125,000 % T
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9 KEAR(E)

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held'
s Frs iz 4
bl BAL!
Ordinary 100%
¥
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
=
Ordinary 100%
T
Ordinary 100%
¥
- 100%
- 100%
Ordinary 100%
3
- 100%
Ordinary 100%
=

Principal
activities
Catering
#BR
Catering

/920

Catering
R

Catering
#HR

Catering
#R
Catering

/90

Food processing
RYEE

Catering
#R

Catering
#R

Property investment

MEERE
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9

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

i) PN
Jiangmen Café de Coral
Catering Company Limited

TFIARFRERRBR AT

Kamstar International Limited
S EREBRBRAR

Kater International Limited
Iz BIPR B PR A A

Kolink Enterprises Limited
BlEt b EBR AR

Luckyview Enterprises Limited
FREEARRLT

Maradona Limited
Paramount Success Limited
REARAR]

Perfect Plan International
Limited

Real King Limited
EHBRAR]

Regal Universal Limited
BRREARAT

Scanfoods Limited
IBBEBERABERAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FEM RS BR 3Z
RASE it 2

Mainland China
HH B A3

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Islands
RBERES

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B

Issued/
registered
capital
B#T/
s AR AR

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000 % 7T
HK$1,000,000

1,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

HK$2
2787
HK$1
1787

HK$20
2087T

HK$24,000,000
24,000,000 7T

US$1
1%

HK$25,000,000
25,000,000/ 7T

HK$18,000,000
18,000,000 % 7T

HK$2,100,000
2,100,0007& 7T
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9 KEAR(E)

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held'
P P AR AR
i grigbl BAL!
- 100%
Ordinary 100%
T
Ordinary 100%
T
Ordinary 100%
T
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%

Principal
activities

Catering
#R

Catering
R

Catering
R

Leasing of premises
space
MEVRNLE

Leasing of properties
HEWMZE

Investment holding
REER

Catering
#R

Investment holding
REER

Catering
#R

Catering
#R

Food trading
BEmEH
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9

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
MWEARERE

Shenzhen Café de Coral
Catering Company Limited
AINARRERRER LA

Shenzhen Prime Deal Catering
Company Limited
RYIEBR R AR AR

Silver Weal Enterprises Limited
RMERERRAA

Sparango Limited
The Spaghetti House
Restaurants Limited

EREBRRAR

Very Nice Fast Food Limited
HEERMBR AR

Vogue Asia Limited
BN ERAR]

Weli Company Limited
AZBRAR

Winfast Holdings Limited
KEEEERAA

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FEM RS BR 3Z
RASE it 2

Mainland China
B A

Mainland China
B At

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
(incorporation)/
Mainland China
(operation)

B (EKSL)
R (%)

Issued/
registered
capital
B#T/
s AR AR

HK$12,000,000
12,000,000 % 7T

HK$32,000,000
32,000,000 & 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 87T

HK$18,500,000
18,500,000 7% 7T

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000 % 7T

HK$17,025,000
17,025,000 % 7T
HK$5,675,000
5,675,000 T

HK$1
1%87T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 87T

HK$10,000
10,0007 T
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9 KEAR(E)

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held’
s P AR AR
bl BAL!
- 100%
- 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Class A? 100%
AR
Class B?
BX&HII2
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%

Principal
activities
Catering

/9

Catering
R

Catering
#R

Catering
#R

Investment holding

RERR

Catering
#R

Investment holding
REER

Catering
#HR

Property investment

ESIE
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9

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Issued/

establishment registered

and operation capital
Name of subsidiary ML R B#17/
i) NG RASE it 2 AR A
Worldway Limited Macau MOP300,000
REBRAR Al 300,0002F97T
Yumi Yumi Caterers Limited Hong Kong HK$6,701,560
BEHRRERAT & 6,701,560 47T

HK$2,872,100
2,872,100/ 7T
Mainland China

Zhongshan Café de Coral HK$1,300,000

Catering Company Limited ~ FEIAtH 1,300,000 77T
RILARKERRBR AR
Zhuhai Café de Coral Mainland China HK$8,000,000
Catering Company Limited R E Al 8,000,000/ 7T

WEAFKERRBRAR

U Café de Coral Development Limited is held directly by the Company. All other
subsidiaries are held indirectly.

2 Holders of class A shares of this subsidiary have priority over those of class B shares
on certain shareholders’ rights.
g Holders of class A shares of this subsidiary have voting rights, while holders of class

B shares have no voting rights.

4 The official names of the companies incorporated in Mainland China are in Chinese.
English translation is for reference only.

> All of the companies incorporated in Mainland China are wholly foreign owned
enterprises.
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9

Class of

shares held

s

griE bl

Ordinary
e

Class A3
ASERI3
Class B?
BAERI3

BB~ =) (&)

Percentage
of shares
held'  Principal
FriEBR#HB  activities
B! EFEXEK

100%  Property investment

MERE

100%  Catering and property
investment

RREMERE

100%  Catering
R

100%  Catering
#R

Café de Coral Development Limited F3 2N A &)
HERE - IEEMIB AR RREESE -

HEHBAAAFBIRG 2 HEAZE TR
FAEFIERBERIR 2 5575 AFEEA 2 1B
7o

HEMBRARABNBROZHEAEETERR
T - T BIERIEAD 2158 ALMBFRE -

R B A EM AR SZH A B2 A E BB ER
X o BXGEREHSE -

FAERTEAMEMKINARRIIEEE
i
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10 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through 10

1"

Other Comprehensive Income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
include the following:

Listed investments denominated in HK$ FRE (ABTTEHE)
— Market value of listed equity securities* - FTRRERESTE*

BAFEIAHEMEZEEA
ZEREE
BAFEIAEMEZEBAZEREE
BIELATIAR -
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
R-ZB-mE A ——-
=A=+—*H —A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
74,499 86,746

*  Amount represented the equity investment in Tao Heung Holdings Limited.

Non-Current Prepayments and Deposits 11

Non-current prepayments and deposits include the following:

¥ ZEeBEENEEERARARNRBIRE -

FMBEANRERRS

FERBENFTIERREBE TS

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

R=Z-WF RITZ=%F

=B=+—8 =A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$000

FETT FET

Deposits by 282,646 286,580
Prepayments TR EIE 18,904 17,145
301,550 303,725
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1"

12

Non-Current Prepayments and Deposits 11
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-current deposits are
denominated in the following currencies:

FERBANRERRE (&)

AEBEZIFRBRENEEENTIE
BEHE

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
R=F-WEF RZZTE=—=F
=A=+—H —A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT 240,360 244,840
RMB AR 40,518 40,065
Macau pataca EFITT 1,768 1,675
282,646 286,580
Inventories 12 FE

Inventories mainly comprise food and consumable stores and are
stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost

of sales amounted to HK$2,384,637,000 during the year ended 31
March 2024 (2023: HK$2,307,332,000) (Note 24).
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B ERRBAILREFAHERR
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13 Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments

13 EXREMEWRKRE  BAF

and Deposits

MIAREE

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Ro-ZEB-—m&E NZTE-=F

=H=+—8 EF=T—E

Note HK$’000 HK$°000

B 5T FET FET

Trade receivables EEEIWARIR 89,513 75,944
Less: Loss allowance W ETEEE (83) (76)
Trade receivables, net & EREWFARIE (a) 89,430 75,868
Other receivables H b p U BRIE (b) 63,080 62,168
152,510 138,036

Prepayments TERTFRIE 62,363 43,190
Deposits ®e 445 1,642
215,318 182,868

(a) The Group’s sales to customers are mainly on a cash basis.
The Group also grants a credit period between 30 to 90
days to certain customers for the provision of the Group’s
institutional catering services, sales of merchandise for the
Group’s food manufacturing business and its franchisees.

(b) Other receivables primarily comprise value-added tax
recoverable and receivable from a security logistic company.
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13 Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments 13

EERHMEWRRE - B

and Deposits (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

MIERZEE (&)

ERBUCRIANREOITIAT

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

R-ZE-ME RZTB_=%F

=H=+—H =A=+—H”

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

0 - 30 days TE=1H 68,980 51,900
31 - 60 days =+—HEAXTH 12,262 14,409
61 —90 days AT—HEh+H 4,217 4,724
91 — 365 days n+—BZE=+hH 3,971 4,837
Over 365 days HE=m/1ThH 83 74
89,513 75,944

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
provision for loss allowance which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. Details on the calculation of loss
allowance is set out in Note 3.1(d). The creation and release of loss
allowance of trade receivables have been included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement. Amounts charged
to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash. The Directors are of the
opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible trade receivables
has been made in the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate
their fair values due to their short maturities.
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13 Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments 13 ZExRHAMEWRERE - AN

and Deposits (Continued) NERZRE (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are AN Y& N H A R W AR TE 2 BRTEE
denominated in the following currencies: RUATE®EEE
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
R-Z-QmEF R-B-=%F
=A=t+—8H =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BIT 108,907 95,600
RMB AR 43,579 42,423
Others EHAh, 24 13
152,510 138,036
The carrying amounts of the Group’s current deposits are AEENRBReHEABERKRUATER
denominated in the following currencies: FHE -
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
R-ZB-F i ——
=RA=+—H —A=+—-H
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT 201 252
RMB AR 244 1,390
445 1,642
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14 Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 RERBELEEIEHR

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

R-Z-mF R-B_=F

=A=+-—-H =RA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$000

FHET FET

Cash at banks and on hand RITEFHRE 527,040 567,012

Short-term bank deposits ROHASRITIE X 733,908 1,104,966

Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEER 1,260,948 1,671,978
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 4.9% REBRITERZERENER4.9% (=
(2023: 3.3%) per annum. As at 31 March 2024, these deposits have T _=F:33%) R-ZF-_WF=A
an average maturity of 59 days (2023: 69 days). =+—RH  ZEFHRZFHEEA RS9

A(ZEBE-=%:690) -

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following RekBHeFEEB A TIIEEE :
currencies:

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

R-ZE-WEF R-T—=F

=RA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

HK$ BT 1,039,513 1,455,215
RMB AR 157,892 158,116
Macau pataca SBPIIT 39,963 34,614
The U.S. dollar ETT 23,276 23,292
Canadian dollar mexT - 724
Others ) 304 17
1,260,948 1,671,978
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14 Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued) 14 BekBLEEER ()
The Group’s cash and bank balances amounting to HK$153,961,000 AEBUARESFENE 2 RIETT
(2023: HK$153,307,000) are denominated in RMB and were 4 $4£153,961,0008 T( =& = =
deposited with banks in the Mainland China. The conversion of 153,307,000 % 7T ) 17 AU P B A 3 3R
these RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and 17 BREAARBTHTENERLRR
remittance of these deposits out of the Mainland China is subject to SNEE B B P B A 3 R S PR EE AR $E
the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated ANE ([ B B A4 ) SN I AR 2
by The People’s Republic of China (“PRC") government. K A& -
15 Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision 15 RAEEMNEERRIRE
for Long Service Payments B
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
R i ——
=A=+—8 =A=+—H
Note HK$’000 HK$000
B FHET F&T
Retirement benefit liabilities RANSENAE
Defined contribution scheme REMRETE (a (15,974) (15,161)
Defined benefit scheme RERMTE (b) 4,208 3,098
Provision for long service payments REARGSBE (0) (68,398) (62,080)
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15

(a)

(b)

Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision
for Long Service Payments (Continued)

Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The scheme is administered by
an independent trustee.

Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group and the eligible
employees makes monthly mandatory contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory
contributions by each party are subject to a maximum of HK$1,500
per month. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately upon the
completion of service in the relevant service period.

The Group also operates defined contribution schemes for its
employees in the Mainland China. The Group is required to make
contributions to the schemes at various applicable rates of monthly
salary that are in accordance with the local practice and regulations.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group has defined contribution scheme
payable of HK$15,974,000 (2023: HK$15,161,000), which was
recorded in other creditors and accrued liabilities.

Defined benefit scheme

The Group also operates a defined benefit scheme for its employees
in Hong Kong. The benefit entitlement under the scheme is
calculated based on the final salary of the staff and the length of
service with the Group. The scheme assets are held independently of
the Group's assets in separate trustee-administered funds.

The scheme is funded by contributions from the Group and the
employees in accordance with qualified independent actuary’s
recommendation from time to time on the basis of periodic
valuations.
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(a)

(b)

RASEBANEER RIRS
=R (R)

SREEKETE
AEBZBFBRGIENBESFEGIR
REBERBERIREERAZ R ZE
BRERBIEAESFE([RESF
g]) - ZETEABUXFEAEE °

RiFBIESETE  ARERESERE
B985 RREE AW (Ex& Ria
MERATEER A BIERD]) 2 5% RET IR
EH MR EIMEHR ERAF A 1,500
TC ° At B2 AR FE AR A AR A% B
Z BRA5 1% BERN SRR o

AEB T AT E A E 8 R MR E #f %
FHE - NEBEAREMBED MRE
ARF O T REM L R A ZEFT 8

o
A °

R-ZE-_WE=A=+—0 A&EBEAH
FLTE HHhKET 81 FE 518 15,974,000 4 7T
(ZZT - =% :15,161,00087T) ' B3t
AHMEMRERETEANR ©

SERAETE
AEERAE RS R E R
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision
for Long Service Payments (Continued)

(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued)
Such defined benefit scheme obligation was valued by Mercer (Hong
Kong) Limited, an independent qualified actuary, using the projected
unit credit method.

The net assets/(liabilities) recognised in the consolidated statement of

15

(b)

RASEBANEER RIRS
= (&)

RERAFE (&)
HRERMNASETHBLABREBE
AhSEt (B8 AR A RBRATE EAE
BRmAETHE -

EG A BHRRRABRZEE, (B

financial position are determined as follows: &) FEETIAREE :
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
RNoEB-—m&E NZTE-_=F
=H=+—H =A=+—H”
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Present value of funded obligations FEEMEZRE (43,049) (45,723)
Fair value of plan assets SHEEEZATE 47,257 48,821
Net assets in the consolidated statement #R& B EARRER AN 2 BEFE
of financial position 4,208 3,098
Remeasurement on defined benefit BN ERATEEMNEE
obligation excluding interest expense (| EFXERIN) (3,529) 2,412
Remeasurement on return on plan assets Bzt 25t 21 &E 2 @R 4,314 (2,366)
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision
for Long Service Payments (Continued)

(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

15 RASEINEER RIRS

= (&)

(b) FRERHGE (&

The movements in the defined benefit obligation are as follows: REBNEENESAOT :
2024 2023
—S-NE —Eo=F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FYEERR (45,723) (61,382)
Current service cost IR R AR (859) (1,166)
Interest cost B (1,395) (1,042)
Employee contributions REHR (298) (354)
Remeasurement on defined B ERATEREEE
benefit scheme (3,529) 2,412
Benefits paid EENE =R 8,755 15,809
End of the year FRAERG (43,049) (45,723)
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: FFEIEENATEZEENT ¢
2024 2023
—ENE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FHEEER 48,821 64,260
Interest income B A 1,517 1,120
Employee contributions EEHK 298 354
Employer contributions EEHRK 1,072 1,274
Administrative expenses paid Mt EIEE N ZITHER
from plan assets (10) (12)
Remeasurement on return Bt ERTEIEE 2B
on plan assets 4,314 (2,366)
Benefits paid EREF (8,755) (15,809)
End of the year FERER 47,257 48,821
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision 15 REARESEFEER RHIRKE

for Long Service Payments (Continued) LRE ()
(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) REERFEI(E)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as E FEERRANERZ SBMT ¢
follows:
2024 2023
—E-mE ZT=F
Note HK$’000 HK$000
B EE FHT FET
Current service cost A R AR 859 1,166
Interest cost B A 1,395 1,042
Interest income on plan assets FTEIEE 2 A EWA (1,517) (1,120)
Administrative expenses T E A 10 12
Total (included in employee RE(BBETEREE
benefit expenses) BRIASZA) 29 747 1,100
Of the total amount debited to the consolidated income statement, TEETALR I:T *\EEEWE EBFR ¢ 49317,000
approximately HK$317,000 (2023: HK$519,000) and HK$430,000 BIT(=F = =4 :519,0008 ) Kk
(2023: HK$581,000) have been included in cost of sales and 430,000/ ;t( — T — = 4 : 581,000
administrative expenses, respectively. BT DRI BBEEER AR THERA °
The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows: FIERAZ FEREREROT -
2024 2023
—ECNEF —F=F
Discount rate BhIR = S%3.6% p.a. FF3.2% p.a.
Rate of salary increase g R X HF3.0% p.a. HF3.0% p.a.
The remeasurement of defined benefit obligation recognised in the EFea2ERARKERNRERAINE
consolidated statement of comprehensive income was a gain of 2z EMETE AKE 785,000 (=F
HK$785,000 (2023: HK$46,000). Z =% :46,00087T) °
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(b)

Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision 15 ENXKEREAEERRHBRE
for Long Service Payments (Continued) LRE ()
Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) REEAFEI(E)
The cumulative remeasurement of defined benefit obligation ERE 2 ERARKERNRERNE
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 2 R EFHEE RE1E21,902,0008
was a loss of HK$21,902,000 (2023: HK$22,687,000). TL(=F==% :22,687,000/&7T) °
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan FEHHEERBEATEEERSL
assets are as follows: o
2024 2023
—BNF —Eo=F
Equity instruments RETA 46.4% 41.0%
Debt instruments EIETA 48.6% 53.5%
Other assets Hth & E 5.0% 5.5%
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the FERMNEEERRESHGRER
assumption is:
Impact on defined benefit obligation
HAERANSENEE
Changes in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
Assumption BR& BRRZE BRI N BRER D
As at 31 March 2024 R-ZB-_MFE=A=+—H
Discount rate BRI = 0.5% Decreased by Increased by
B 1.3% #1n1.4%
Rate of salary increase FMIZR= 0.5% Increased by Decreased by
12101.4% W 1.4%
As at 31 March 2023 R-ZE_=F=A=+—H
Discount rate ARIR & 0.5% Decreased by Increased by
W 1.6% HIN1.6%
Rate of salary increase FE R = 0.5% Increased by Decreased by

#IN1.6%

B 1.6%
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(b)

Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision
for Long Service Payments (Continued)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

Expected contributions to the defined benefit scheme by the Group
for the year ending 31 March 2025 are approximately HK$ 1,036,000
(2023: HK$1,130,000).

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is
2.8 years (2023: 3.3 years).

Expected maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation in the next
ten years on 31 March 2024:

Less than
a year
—F LR
HK$°000
FET

Defined benefit obligation RERMEE 10,753

15 RASEINEER RIRS
= (&)

(b) SERAEE (&)
&ﬁ_z_ﬁi A=+—BI%E -
AEBE R ERAGENBHRERO S
1,036,00087T (ZE==% : 1,130,000
BIT) e

AERAETNMEFHEA28F (=
= :33%F)o

R-E-_NF=A=+—BHRTEEHN
EERARRTFHIBHREAR T ¢

Between Between
1-2 years 2-5years Next5 years
—EWF —EREF T-EEFH
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
7,281 17,037 10,621

Through its defined benefit obligations, the Group is exposed to a
number of risks. The defined benefit scheme offers a defined benefit
depending on members’ length of service and their salary at the
time of leaving the Group. Active members contribute 2.5% of their
salary to the scheme, while the Group bears the remainder cost of
funding the scheme. The scheme exposes the Group to actuarial
risks such as interest rate risk, salary risk, and investment risk.
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision

(@

for Long Service Payments (Continued)

Provision for long service payments

The Group provides long service payments for its employees in
respect of long service payments on cessation of employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

Such provision for long service payment obligation was valued by
Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent qualified actuary, using

the projected unit credit method.

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

15 RASEINEER RIRS
= (&)

(0 RUBKRBZSERE
AEBRERBRERDEE THERLT
RIEBRE TS RERBLTEL

HRAREERETEHBILSERE
HEnEt (F8) ER A RFARG B
EERPERETMHE -

EHRAMBIRARAER 2 BEEEN

position is determined as follows: N
2024 2023
—E-IMEF —T=F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET T

Liability in the consolidated statement  4R& B REAZ B fE

of financial position (68,398) (62,080)
Remeasurement on plan liabilities EaEzENE (3,294) (10,517)
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision 15 REARESEFEER RHIRKE

(0

for Long Service Payments (Continued) LRE ()
Provision for long service payments (Continued) (¢) RHEAFRKEEE (&)
Movements in the liability recognised in the consolidated statement FEREHBARRRAER B EZEHI
of financial position are as follows: N
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Beginning of the year FOEEH (62,080) (41,548)
Current service cost BB RBKA (8,134) (2,957)
Interest cost BB (1,897) (883)
Past service cost BT RIEA A - (17,076)
Remeasurement of provision REARG B EEHNTE
of long service payments (3,294) (10,517)
Benefits paid EASE A 7,007 10,901
End of the year FREEER (68,398) (62,080)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as TR ERRERZSEAT
follows:
2024 2023
—E-QmEF —F_=F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
B EE FHET FET
Current service cost A IR AR 8,134 2,957
Interest cost FLEAA 1,897 883
Past service cost* BIERRTERAS * - 17,076
Total (included in employee wE(EeEEER
benefit expenses) RBMFEA) 29 10,031 20,916
Of the total charge, HK$8,928,000 (2023: HK$18,615,000) and 47 8,928,000 Tt (ZE = =
HK$1,103,000 (2023: HK$2,301,000) have been included in cost of F :18,615,000,8%7T) & 1,103,000% 70
sales and administrative expenses respectively. —ZE =4 :2,301,000%8 L) D RE

REHENARITRERNA -
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(0

Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision
for Long Service Payments (Continued)

Provision for long service payments (Continued)

*In June 2022, the Hong Kong Government enacted the Employment and Retirement

Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022. The
amendment will come into effect prospectively from a date to be appointed by the
Hong Kong Government (“Transition Date”). The amendment results in:

a) Change in the offsetting arrangement, such that the accrued benefits attributable
to the employers’ mandatory contributions under the Mandatory Provident Fund
and certain employers’ contributions under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
would no longer be eligible to offset against the severance payment and long
service payment accrued from the Transition Date; and

b)  Change of the calculation basis of last monthly wages for the portion of the long
service payment accrued before the Transition Date.

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate 8530 =&
Rate of salary increase ZEH 18

15

(0)

RASEBANEER RIRS
= (&)

REIRBEE (&)

* RIZBZFNB BEARTEM TQ024E
B RBRIRETEVED GRS HE) (BT KH) - %I&
BN EERFEEN AR (BERRD &
R AL

a) EREELRY BEXERHEAES TR
B RRE TREEERF R E T AH#
FAEANREEDHETEEEREHEA
ENRRBSUCRE H st

b) EEEE AU ZEANRAREEHS K
®—{ER TEMTEEE -

IRz EERERBZOT
2024 2023
—EomEF ZT=F
8%3.7% p.a. BF3.2% p.a.

H%3.0% p.a. H43.0% p.a.

The remeasurement of provision of long service payments recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income was a loss
of HK$3,294,000 (2023: HK$10,517,000).

The cumulative remeasurement of provision of long service payments
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
was a loss of HK$61,418,000 (2023: HK$58,124,000).

Expected contributions to the long service payment obligation by the
Group for the year ending 31 March 2025 after the offset from the
accrued Mandatory Provident Fund account balance is approximately
HK$5,940,000 (2023: HK$5,573,000).
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BB BT E AE1E3,294,00075
TT(ZE =4 :10,517,000/&7T) °

HEFEA 2ABARERANERN R IR
S RHE 2 BetEHT= AE1861,418,000
BT (ZZE =4 : 58,124,000%7T) °
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision 15 REARESEFEER RHIRKE

for Long Service Payments (Continued) LRE ()

() Provision for long service payments (Continued) () REIRBEEE (&)
The sensitivity of provision for long service payments to changes in REBRB e BREHRIEHNHRM
the assumption is: =

Impact on provision
for long service payments

HRIIRBEESBRENSE

Changes in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
Assumption BR& R 28 REZIE N CE
As at 31 March 2024 R-ZB-WE=A=+—H
Discount rate REIR =R 0.5% Decreased by Increased by
W 3.6% ¥1h03.9%
Rate of salary increase g R = 0.5% Increased by Decreased by
#21n1.0% A 1.1%
As at 31 March 2023 RZTEZ=F=H=+—H
Discount rate AEIR & 0.5% Decreased by Increased by
W 5.0% HEIN5.4%
Rate of salary increase g R = 0.5% Increased by Decreased by
HEAN1.6% A 1.7%
The weighted average duration of the long service payment REBRBEEEZNETIFERRT.8F
obligation is 7.8 years (2023: 8.3 years). (ZEZ=%F :83%F) °
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(0

Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision
for Long Service Payments (Continued)

Provision for long service payments (Continued)
Expected maturity analysis of long service payment obligation in the
next ten years on 31 March 2024:

Less than
a year
—F LR
HK$°000
FET

Long service payment obligation RHIREEET 5,940

15 RASEINEER RIRS

= (&)

() RERBEEE(E)

RZZE_MF=A=+—H2ZEHR®E
SEERNKRRTF 2FEEAEIER DT

Between Between
1-2 years 2-5years Next5 years
—EmF —ERF T ERFH
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
FET FET FET
6,637 14,803 25,363

The long service payment obligation arises as per Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance to the extent that the long service payment
obligation exceeds the employer balance in the Hong Kong
mandatory defined contribution plan. It exposes the Group to
actuarial risks such as interest rate risk, salary risk and the investment
risk of the Company’s MPF scheme’s constituent funds.
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16

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown on the consolidated statement of financial

16 ELERHIE

BEAREHNITHENA SRR EE
EERARGEERERE  MEEHEY
KFA—H e AREHREEN A
RANAI AR - AR MBSO R AR
THFBR(EEHBEEHEERETE) W

position: I
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
R-B-WE R-T—=F
=B=+—H =A=+—H
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred income tax assets to be PR+ =18 A & U B f9 R E
recovered after twelve months HIBEE 66,214 62,955
Deferred income tax liabilities to be B+ =@ A& ERAERLE
settled after twelve months HIEAE (32,860) (32,946)
33,354 30,009
Movements in net deferred income tax assets are as follows: EEFIES EFEZEHMT ¢
2024 2023
—EE —T-=F
Note HK$’000 HK$000
5T FAETT FET
Beginning of the year FEEH 30,009 31,489
Deferred taxation debited to the FHEEERRFTAZ
consolidated income statement RIEFLIE 26 3,076 (1,924)
Exchange differences M ERR 269 444
End of the year FERER 33,354 30,009
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16

Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 16 EEBIE (F&)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities of the AEB s FRNEEREBEEERGE
Group (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation B) (R A — B AVE R 2 AR EAT)
jurisdiction) during the year are as follows: LU
Deferred income tax assets: EERIEE =
Decelerated Lease liabilities,
tax depreciation Tax losses provision and others Total
AR TE BBER HESE  BERHMW ok
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
—EoME —FT-=HF —E-NFE 2 —FT-=F ZB-WE —T-=F CZ—B-NE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET FET FET FET FET
Beginning of the year F#&# 19,441 19,295 68,668 64,870 76,351 81,615 164,460 165,780
Credited/(charged) to 47 AEBHERA
the consolidated A/ (k)
income statement (779) 146 (2,721) 3,798 5,608 (5,708) 2,108 (1,764)
Exchange differences [& ¥z - - - - 269 444 269 444
End of the year EREEH 18,662 19,441 65,947 68,668 82,228 76,351 166,837 164,460
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16 Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 16 EEBIIE (&)
Deferred income tax liabilities: EERIEEE
Accelerated
tax depreciation Provisions Right-of-use assets Total
PTG E B B EREEE @
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
“EBoNE —E-=fF CZB-mFE —ET-=F ZB-NE —T-=-F CZB-NF =—T-=f
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Beginning of the year F4&# 76,576 73,464 34 8 57,841 60,819 134,451 134,291
Charged/(credited) to 47 EBHERA
the consolidated Sl YAGIN)
income statement (7,048) 3,112 (18) 26 6,098 (2,978) (968) 160
Exchange differences [& ¥z - - - - - - - -
End of the year FREH 69,528 76,576 16 34 63,939 57,841 133,483 134,451

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carrying
forwards to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 March
2024, the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
in respect of losses of approximately HK$1,028,776,000 (2023:
HK$1,130,634,000). Unrecognised tax losses amounting to
approximately HK$205,697,000 (2023: HK$206,492,000) and
HK$124,501,000 (2023: HK$121,751,000) will be expired up to
year 2037 and 2028 respectively, while the remaining balance can
be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$16,660,000 (2023:
HK$14,169,000) have not been recognised for withholding tax that
would be payable on the undistributed retained profits amounting
to HK$274,072,000 (2023: HK$213,782,000) of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China earned after 1 January 2008. Such
amounts are not intended to be distributed in the foreseeable future
to the group companies outside of the Mainland China.
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ZHMBEERERR RS _MF
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REBEEES IR _E=LF R
ZNFEEm %Tmuﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&%:m% °
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—EENF-—A—BERITERE &R
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17 Trade Payables

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

17

LREMNERE

EEENRBENRESITNOT :

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

R=Z-MmF RZEZ=%F

=A=+—8H =A=+—H

HK$000 HK$°000

FET T

0 - 30 days TE=1H 206,387 223,573
31 - 60 days =+—&,"1+H 3,188 2,062
61 —90 days AtTt—Z=NTH 1,071 106
Over 90 days iy oy = 121 140
210,767 225,881

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in the

5 2 1 B I8 0 BR 7 18 BA T 51) S0 3t

following currencies: 18 :
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
R-FB-QNEF R-ZF_=%F
=A=1-~ =A=+-H
HK$000 HK$000
FHET FET
HK$ BT 159,197 174,141
RMB AR 51,570 51,740
210,767 225,881
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their fair values AREFBREE  EXERMNEENE

due to their short maturities.
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18 Other Creditors and Accrued Liabilities 18

Other creditors and accrued liabilities mainly comprise accrued
salaries and wages and other provisions. Substantially all of the other

creditors and accrued liabilities are denominated in HK$ and RMB.

HttEMNRERESER

HipERBERE ER T2 BREER
e TEREMEE - HEERIA
KIEHERET2RMABTRARKS

& o
19 Bank Borrowings 19 |ITERK
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
R-Z-mEF RZE_=%F
=A=+-8 =A=+-H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current IERE
Long-term bank borrowings RERITER 385,000 899,950
Less: Current portion included W ETARENBE 2 BNEIE
in current liabilities (80,000) (899,950)
305,000 -
Current TED
Short-term bank borrowings RERITER - 80,000

At 31 March 2024, the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable as

follows:

R_ZB_MF=RA=+—0 rx5EE

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

R-FB-NEF R-B_=%F

=HA=+—H =HA=+—H

HK$000 HK$'000

FET T

Within one year —F A 80,000 979,950
Between one and two years —EMFA 80,000 -
Between two and five years MERFA 225,000 -
385,000 979,950

200



ARLEEBFR AR 2023/24 F3#

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

19

Bank Borrowings (Continued)

The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by the corporate
guarantees provided by the Company. In addition, the Group
is required to comply with certain restrictive financial covenants
imposed by the banks.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their fair
values.

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings
by type and currency is as follows:

HK$ at floating rates BIT - F B

19

RITER ()
AEEZRTERAFAAR{ZAR

ERERER - 1o AEBAETIR
TTHEANZ 5 T BA T PR I 224

RITERZREERE A TERS -

REANEB OB AEBRITENRR
EEZDMT

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
R-Z-mEF RZTE_=%F
=HA=+—H —A=+—8H
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET

385,000 979,950

As at 31 March 2024, the effective interest rate of the bank
borrowings was 5.6% per annum (2023: 4.1% per annum).
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20 Share Capital 20 B
2024 2023
—ETomE ZE=F
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of share value of share value
RGEAR HE IR EE [Eifi=]
‘000 HK$°000 ‘000 HK$°000
TR FET Thz T
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares BRHEE
of HK$0.10 each 0.10 B TTHY I imR
Beginning and end FEFERE R
of the year 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHBE
Beginning and end FURFRER
of the year 585,704 58,570 585,704 58,570
During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, no shares were HE_Z_MFRER-_ZT_==H
issued pursuant to the Share Option Schemes of the Company. =+—BHIEFER  BERNOERAQF]

2 B dn BRRERT I3 AT -

The Group did not purchase any of its own shares from the open HE-_Z-_MEER-_ZT-_=F=A
market during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023. =T—HIEFEAR  AEBWEN AR
M5B EEREE ARG -
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21 Reserves 21 f#E
Shares
Share held for
Capital  Exchange based share  Statutory
Share  redemption translation Capital  Investment compensation award reserve  Contributed  Revaluation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve scheme (note ) surplus reserve earnings Total
&% % HRARN  REG%Mm:E ERRE
ksl RO fSRE B RERE  KNMERE  EECRH () LEE fBEE RERH ]

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
FET FEL FER FER FER 723 723 723 723 723 7ET AT

Asat 1 Aprl 203 R-E-=%RmA-A 621,122 152,034 31,905 1,019 (13,637) 21319 (98,979) 35,612 80,69 193,671 1,680,202 2,725,024
Fairvalue loss on financial RAVEIALNRE
assets at fair value though WAZEBEER

other comprehensive income ATEER - - - - (12,47 - - - - - - (12,247)
Remeasurement of efirement BN ERAERAER

benefitiabiites and provision ~~ REHRH2E(E

forlong senvice payments - - - - - - - - - - (2,509 (2,509)
Transfer to statutory eserves ERBTTHE - - - - - - - 17130 - - (1,130) -
Employee share option [ESRASE

scheme - value of employee it2l- EERABEE

senvices - - - - - 18823 - - - - - 18823
Employee share awerd ESRAER

scheme - value of employee it2l- EERABEE

senvices - - - - - 18077 - - - - - 18017
Vesting of shares of share R & ORAGE

award scheme - - - - - (15,408) 25,257 - - - (9,849 -
Eichange differences arsing EREHBATL

from translation of foreign EXZE

subsidlaries - - ) - - - - - - - - Q.23
Profit attrbutable to equity HAFRIERE AEEAR

holders of the Company - - - - - - - - - - 330,454 330,454
Revaluation surplus of property, ~ EAREMERNE -

plant and equipment and FERREREDE

rightof-use asets prior to EEE(RS

transferring to investment

properties - - - - - - - - - 35971 - 35971
Dividends e - - - - - - - - - - (250,09) (250,09)
Balanceasat 31 March 204 WZF=RE

ZR=t-BEH 621122 152,034 9,682 1,019 (25,884) 281 (B12) 31382 80,69 29682 1,746,476 2,841,278
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21 Reserves (Continued) 21 f#& (&)
Shares
Share held for
Capital Exchange based share Statutory
Share  redemption  translation Capital ~ Investment ~ compensation award resene  Contributed  Revaluation Retained
premium Tesenve Tesene Tesenve fesenve Tesenve scheme (note) surplus resenve eamings Total
B bk IWRRE  RiREEE iz

RiRE  WEGE  FRBR  ARBR  RABE  MMEBE  HEAD () EaE%  BEGE  REE i
HSOD  AKSO00 HSUD0 SO0 AKSOM WSO HKSOOD AU WSO AKSOOD HKSOMD AKSOWD
TR TR TEL TEL &L AT 7T 7T TET 7T 7T TET

Asat 1 Aprl 2022 R-E-—%¥mA-A 621122 152,034 67,615 1,019 (4452) 23681 (130939 34,324 80,69 140,24 1,754,787 2,760,111
Fair value loss on financil BRATEIAE SRR

asets at fair value through WAZERERN

other comprehensieincome ~~ ATERE - - = = (9,185) - - = = = - 9185)
Remeasurement of reiement BT ER{EET AR

benefit abiites and provision - RESRES B

forlong senvice payments - - - - - - - - - - (10471) (10471)
Transfer to statutory eserves By - - - - = = = 1,288 - = (1,289) =
Employee share option [ERRNDE

scheme - value of employee HEl- ERRBER

services - - - - - 499 - - - - - 4,99
Employee share award EaRA%R

scheme - value of employee 8- ERRBER

services - - - - - 14544 - - - - - 14,544
Vesting of shares of share R R EORAGE

award scheme - - - - - (21,8%) 31,960 - - - (10,062) -

Fichange differences arsing ERENHBLNL
from translation of foreign ENZE

subsidiaries - - (35,710) - - - - - - - - (35,710)
Profit attributable to equity HRARIEREAEEE
holders of the Company - - - - - - - - - - 110,353 110,353

Revaluation surplus of property, ~ EAREMERINE -

plant and equipment and KRR ERERE

right-of-use asets prior to HEERER

transferring to investment

properties = = = = = = = = = 53447 = 53447
Dividends RE - - - - - - - - - - (163,117) (163,117)

Balnceasat3I Mach 203 WZE==F
ZA=t-RER 621,122 152,034 31,905 2,019 (13,637) 1319 (98979) 35612 80,69 193,671 1,680,202 2,725,024
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21 Reserves (Continued)

(i) Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, Mainland China
companies are required to allocate 10% of the companies’
net profit to the fund until such fund reaches 50% of the
companies’ registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can
be utilised, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset
against accumulated losses or to increase registered capital
of the companies, provided that such fund is maintained at a
minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital.

21 & (1E)

(i) WREFRBEEZEZEERAHN - FEH
Wi A BIEGAEFRFZ 10%
PEE%FEES  BEE%REES
ERARAMELRZ50% AL -
EERBECCHBE B ERT
AREERETEBIIEMAR 2
AMER - ZREESREAL
BRARFMERZ 25% KF -

22 Revenue 22 WA
2024 2023
—EMF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Sales of food and beverages HERY R m 8,603,538 7,918,008
Rental income AU A 26,815 38,911
Management and service fee income BB MR E WA 5,569 6,135
Sundry income FHIBUA 55,527 60,990
8,691,449 8,024,044
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23 Other Income and Other (Losses)/Gains, 23 HiWAREAMF (FHE)
Net gl
2024 2023
—E-NE —T=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FHET
Dividend income from listed R AR B A
equity investments 6,123 6,123
Fair value loss on investment BEMEN N FEEIE
properties 7 (31,900) (20,100)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of other ~ HEEMWE - BE MREF
property, plant and (E518) /& F
equipment, net (4,608) 698
Reversal of impairment loss of mE - BEEREZ
property, plant and equipment  JB{EEEE D 6 4,320 =
Impairment loss of property, M - BE R REER
plant and equipment 6 (6,223) (21,924)
Impairment loss of right-of-use ~ {EAREE 2 REEE
assets 6 (2,290) (22,731)
Government subsidies* TR EL * 1,321 45,201
(33,257) (12,733)
* These primarily represented government subsidies in relation * RESHETEZREBERITERER
to the COVID-19 pandemic which included subsidies of HK$Nil FIEE TR B A S BFE AR
(2023: HK$40,943,000) granted under the Anti-Epidemic Fund TMREZBNEMASET(ZE
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative — =% : 40,943,000&7T) °
Region.
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24 Expenses by Nature 24 ZBEUMESENER
Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative expenses are BREHERARITRERNER S
analysed as follows: LU
2024 2023
“ECNE “EC=F
Note HK$000 HK$'000
i3 FET FAT
Cost of raw materials and packing FEMRRBERA 12 2,384,637 2,307,332
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 8 37 38
Depreciation expenses HERZ 6
— property, plant and equipment - 0% - BERE 373,452 378,196
~ leasehold land and land use rights - PREEREAENHE
classified as right-of-use assets Rt 20,701 16,540
- right-of-use assets — properties - EREEE - % 805,576 782,454
Expenses relating to leases of AHENTEREENRX
— short-term leases -RHHE 37,302 24,700
- variable lease payments not included - AIEBRENFTTRERESE
lease liabilities 60,442 47,686
Gain on modification and termination ~ FEZE R 2 I3 (@)
of leases (Note (a)) (28,758) (9,868)
Exchange losses, net 5 EES 4,339 1,332

Employee benefit expenses (excluding  EEEFIFES (T RIEMRH
share-based compensation expenses) TRE)

(Note (b)) (HizE (b)) 29 2,877,765 2,681,659
Share-based compensation expenses R Z e 29 36,900 19,536
Auditor's remuneration ZEM e
- audit services - Eit R 3,701 3,593
- non-audit services - IR 1,904 1,485
Electricity, water and gas BB KERERE 437,718 406,144
Advertising HELH 94,834 102,255
Provision/(reversal) of loss allowance on  5t2 / (#&[E) & ¥ el 1A .

trade receivables ERRH 13 7 3)
Sanitation BRE 128,440 126,476
Repairs & maintenance BERREE 136,066 132,848
Building management fee, BFERE THREW

air conditioning and rates 235,698 219,838
Delivery expense BYE 111,666 98,170
Insurance REE 37,968 39,274
Other expenses Ht &M 444,981 427,789

8,205,376 7,807,474
Representing: RE&
Cost of sales HEMA 7,702,163 7,321,395
Administrative expenses TRER 503,213 486,079
8,205,376 7,807,474
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24 Expenses by Nature (Continued)

25

26

Note:

(@) During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group recognised gain of
HK$28,758,000 (2023: HK$9,868,000) as a result of lease modifications, including
changes of lease terms, changes of lease payments or the assessment of options to
extend the leases, where applicable.

(b) Included in the employee benefit expenses, past service cost of HK$17,076,000

was recognised for the year ended 31 March 2023 for additional long service
payment obligations resulting from the amendment of Employment and Retirement
Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022
which the Hong Kong Government enacted in June 2022. Please refer to note 15(c)
for details.

No past service cost was recognised for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Finance Income and Finance Costs

24 EMESENEAR (H)

Bk -
(a)

(b)

BHE_T-_ME=ZA=+—HILEE A&
[ 3t A E S EHFE AU 28,758,0008 7T (=&
Z =1 :9,868,000/67T) ' B BEIEE KM
EER - BERAEENRSKTAERAEZE
B (ER) -

FAABBRERAAINBAERBE KX
17,076,000 TR EBEE T -_=4= 8
=+—HRIFERER  LTHERESBFER
ZE - ZF N ABEMEK2022 FIRERRIKGT
BLEGI (EEEZHE) (BET) RBIDMIETMEL
MEIINRERBSEM - BEFBBEL2HEM
FE15(0) °

BERBERERARBE-B-MF=A
=+—AILFEER -

25 BRI BA S AR

2024 2023

—E_EF —ETo=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Finance income B A 45,304 38,847
Finance cost of lease liabilities HEBENP KA (84,784) (68,375)
Finance cost on bank borrowings RITE RO A (23,808) (30,133)
Finance costs TSR AN (108,592) (98,508)
Finance costs, net SFEE KA (63,288) (59,661)

Income Tax Expense

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until year
2035. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate
of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

208

26 FISHEH

AR BREERSRHE T
% o BB GBI IR Pk 3R
Bk FI X B £ 16.5% (B == ;
16.5%) JERLER « BINETIZ BRI
F PfAit I R BRI A
BERZ B THEHE -



ARLEEBFR AR 2023/24 F3#

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

26 Income Tax Expense (Continued) 26 FrSHEAMA (&)
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income REFEBRRRANFTAZTIBRE -

statement represents:

2024 2023
—E-IMEF ZT=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Current income tax: BVEARRIE
- Hong Kong profits tax - BBFE 38,921 24,136
— PRC taxation - FRE A IE 19,052 7,936
Deferred income tax relating to the ERERELERED
origination and reversal of W M BIRIER IR
temporary differences (3,076) 1,924
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BTFERETR (BAE) 1,416 (1,007)
56,313 32,989
The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the N E A BRI AR T < BRI B A IR
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong REBZHEMAEZERTVIGELER
Kong as follows: N
2024 2023
—E-IMEF —EC=F
HK$000 HK$000
FET F&T
Profit before income tax FR At A& A 389,528 144,176
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% & E16.5% (ZF==4F : 16.5%)
(2023: 16.5%) FTEMTIIE 64,272 23,789
Effect of different taxation rates EH b [Em TR 2 52
in other territories 2,473 514
Income not subject to taxation EERB WA (17,623) (24,742)
Expenses not deductible for AR & A
taxation purposes 22,511 15,154
Recognition/utilisation of previously TR/ (E AR ATRTER
unrecognised temporary ZERER BIKEE
differences/tax losses (25,029) (29)
Tax losses not recognised KRR 2 BEE 8,467 19,391
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFERETR (BE) 1,416 (1,007)
Others Hith (174) (81)
Taxation charge RIS 56,313 32,989
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26

27

Income Tax Expense (Continued)

The Group is within the scope of the OECD Pillar Two model rules.
Since the Pillar Two legislation was not effective at the reporting
date, the Group has no related current tax exposure. The Group
applies the exception to recognising and disclosing information
about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income
taxes, as provided in the amendments to HKAS 12 issued in July
2023.

Under the legislation, the Group is liable to pay a top-up tax for the
difference between the Global Anti-Base Erosion Proposal (“GIoBE")
effective tax rate for each jurisdiction and the 15% minimum rate.
All entities within the Group have an effective tax rate that exceeds
15%.

Due to the complexities in applying the legislation and calculating
GloBE income, the quantitative impact of the enacted or
substantively enacted legislation is not yet reasonably estimable.
Therefore, even for those entities with an accounting effective tax

26 FISWER(E)

AEEBNEAEBSE_RERAZ
FER o AR HE B RIS HIR R
EEBEARER - WAKEL EEER
HRBEAR AREEAR_T_=F
Tt ARz BB EAERIE 125 2EFT
E’WIJ@I\’E‘)R » DAMERR R R FR B SO AE — PR
BHRAR BTN AEERBENER

BIEZ AN NEBBE XS AR
BZE2HRRHERMIERMERRRE
15% RIEME 2 EHZBHMNETH -

AEBAMBERBZERRXGEA
15% °
HRERZED R EE2 R RFE R

REWANERE - EES BT
BRACEMREE R M EPINE(LE
&Rt AEENEAERMEEER

rate above 15%, there may still be Pillar Two tax implications. 15% 2 BfemMs A geFE I T
%% /g; o
Dividends 27 KRE
2024 2023
—E-IMEF ZT=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Interim dividend paid: HK15 cents ERFEIIRE - GARE AR 15810
(2023: HK10 cents) T =4F 1081)
per ordinary share 87,856 58,570
Final dividend proposed: HK42 cents E#EEH;@H“ C BRE R 42 B
(2023: HK28 cents) TE =4 288
per ordinary share 245,996 163,997
333,852 222,567

A final dividend of HK42 cents (FY2022/23: HK28 cents) per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2024 was proposed.
Such final dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders at the
upcoming annual general meeting. These financial statements do
not reflect this dividend payable.
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28 Earnings Per Share 28 BR=F

(@) Basic (@) EXR
FRERGF TR AR RIRESE AL
IaEFMBRAFADBITEBR CIMRER
N H ERETEIEE 2 @R 2
W E 7 BERAE -

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year excluding
ordinary shares purchased by the Company for share award scheme.

2024 2023
—ECNEF —EC-=F
Profit attributable to equity holders NN RIRIEREE AR A
of the Company (HK$'000) (F%7T) 330,454 110,353
Weighted average number B EITE BRIk I5E
of ordinary shares in issue ('000) (FEf) 580,716 580,046
Basic earnings per share BRRER A HK$0.57 % T HK$0.19787T
(b) Diluted (b) 8

FREBENDIRREESTEITZE
BENEF B FAD BT EBK
(T EEARRBRERD ZESBED
BB Z B EHFEMmMEE -
2 RER A B Ko D 2R R At B A ik
MHEREETE -

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year (excluding
the ordinary shares purchased by the Company under the share
award scheme) with the weighted average number of ordinary
shares deemed to be issued assuming the dilutive impact on the
share options and shares under the share award scheme.

2024 2023
—E_NEF —E-=F
Profit attributable to equity holders KRR BIIRIEREE ARG R A
of the Company (HK$'000) (F%7T) 330,454 110,353
Weighted average number BRITERRZ T AR
of ordinary shares in issue ('000) (FEfL) 580,716 580,046
Adjustment for share award A1 SEBhET &l 2 AR
scheme (‘000) (FEf) 965 1,606
581,681 581,652
Diluted earnings per share BRRESE RN HK$0.57 & 7T HK$0.197%& T
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29 Employee Benefit Expenses 29 EEBAFEX
Employee benefit expenses during the year are as follows: FANEEBMFAZNAT -
2024 2023
—E-mE TEC=4F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt s FET FET
Wages, salaries and allowances TE& - &% N2, 2,630,015 2,452,707
Discretionary bonuses FEEETEAL 136,046 112,886
Pension costs BERAR T
— Defined contribution scheme - ATH-AEE 100,926 94,050
— Defined benefit scheme - RERAETE 15 747 1,100
- Long service payments - RERBE 15 10,031 20,916
Employee benefit expenses B E@AIFx<
(excluding share-based (B
compensation expenses) YA E) 24 2,877,765 2,681,659
Share-based compensation expenses LARR 9 2 A< B2
— Share award expenses - Rp SRR X 24 18,077 14,544
— Share option expenses - B B R ST 24 18,823 4,992
2,914,665 2,701,195
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30 Benefits and Interests of Directors

(a)

(Disclosures Required by Section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong

Listing Rules)

Directors’ emoluments

(a)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 March

2024 is set out below:

Fees
Name of director ESff e
HK$'000
77
Non-executive diectors — #H77EZ
MrLoHoiKwong, Sunny  BEEAE

Chairman E 1,180
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita BERLT 300
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael - g% 300
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel ~ 3FRERE 300
Independent non-executive BV HHTEE

directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael ~ ZEi% %

(Note b) (Hith) a8
MrLikwok Sing, Aubrey ~ FEERE 400
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Lary ~ SHiE %% 400
Mr AuSiu Cheung, Albert EBHIZE 400
Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine 7§l £ 400
Executie directors HiEZE
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter EEath

(Note ¢ (HiiEc) 50
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BEALE 50

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

¢ 2BR
By
HKS000
FAT

5,097
3,095

Discretionary
bonuses
FERLA
HKS'000
7

3333
500
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Employer's
contribution
to pension
scheme
EXmEme
[
HK$000
iz.23

30 ESWAEMNER (REBEEFE

CARMEBI) (58622 %) £ 383
(AR (HBEEENEE
BBAN(FE622GE) REB
EFHRBREER)

EEME
BE-_E-_mME=A=+—HILEEH
BEEEMEEIIOT

Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director's
other services
in connection
with the
management
of the
affairs of the
Company or
its subsidiary
undertaking
ARES
AEBALT
ER:0] S
ERMmRf
RARAES Total
gt (fida) SERzHE EE
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
F#T  tAr  TEn PER

Share-based
compensation

benefits

(Note a)

WRAZ A

Sub-total HeRd

1,180 - - 1,180
300 - - 300
300 - - 300
300 - - 300

48 - - 48
400 - - 400
400 - - 400
400 - - 400
400 - - 400

8,498 500 - 8,998

3,663 846 - 4,509
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30 Benefits and Interests of Directors 30

(a)

(Disclosures Required by Section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 March
2023 is set out below:

EENFZMER (KIEEB
(R EMEB) (58622 %) 56383
R (RBA(HEBEEEFNRE
BRAIN(5£622GE) REB
EFRRBREER) (&)

Salaries, Employer’s
allowances contribution
and benefits o pension
inkind  Discretionary scheme
Fees &4 ZHE bonuses  [EERIEME
Name of director ez ik Bl HERRA HEIR
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
T TEr T FEr
Non-executive directors FHITEE
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny BRfEE
Chairman E 1,180 = = =
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita BEENT 300 = = =
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael ~ BE#A 5t 300 = = =
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel SHREES 300 - - -
Independent non-executive BV EZE
directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael EEREL 400 = = =
Mr Li Kok Sing, Aubrey FHELE 400 - - -
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry — StESEE 400 - - -
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert BB 400 = = =
Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine ~ FiflE %t
(Note ) (Wita) % = = =
Executive directors HIEZ
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter BEAikh
Chief Executive Officer BEAITE 50 4,390 1,104 18
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BRALE 50 2,934 598 18
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EE5MWE (58)
BE - Z-_=ZF=ZA=1+—HIFERN
BEESMEEILT ¢
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director’s
other services
in connection
with the
management
of the
affairs of the
Company or
its subsidiary
Share-based undertaking
compensation ElEs
benefits  BLERALH
(Noteg) HENBLE
DRAE  SHmiEte
Sub-total Wemr EtREELl Total
5y (Wita) Bk MS ia%
HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FEr FEr FEr FEr
1,180 - - 1,180
300 - - 300
300 - - 300
300 - - 300
400 - - 400
400 - - 400
400 - - 400
400 - - 400
9% - - 9%
6,062 486 - 6,548
3,600 352 - 399
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30

(a)

(b)

(@

(d)

Benefits and Interests of Directors
(Disclosures Required by Section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
No director waived any emolument during the year.

Notes:

(@) The share-based compensation benefits represent the relevant expenses relating
to each of the directors apart from those relating to performance shares. Benefits
relating to the performance shares will be presented based on the market price of
the shares on the day of vesting.

(b) Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael passed away on 14 May 2023.

(a) Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter retired as Chief Executive Officer on 1 April 2024.

(d) Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine was appointed as Independent Non-executive

Director of the Company on 3 January 2023.

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any directors in
respect of their other services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking (2023:
Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
No payment was made to directors as compensation for the early
termination of the appointment during the year (2023: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of directors for
making available the services of them as a director of the Company
(2023: Nil).
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30

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

EENFEMER (KEEE
(R EMEB) (58622 %) 56383
R (RAI(HEESEFNRE
BRAIN(5£622GE) REB
EFRRBREER) (&)

=M< (&)
FABREFHNEUIEMHE

G

(@) AR TSR RS EERRNR
X TEREHEERNABMNMS - HEH
B BRENEMNBREROREEBOHE

7
(b) EEREAEN T -_=FR A +HBEE -
(© BEACER-_Z_NENA—BRIEE
BITE °

(d) FRELZTR-_ZE-_=6—A=0¥ZTh
RRRBILIEMITES -

ESREREER
MEEMEEHEEARASEMED
EEB MR E IR ST kU
ZEREEN(ZE_=F &) -

ESHBER
FAMERIRARLRERAEETNE

EBe(ZE=F : &) -

AENESREMBEFE=FX
NRE
BEAESER/AARESRERSM
AZEFWAEIFHNR(ZT ==
FE)
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30

(e)

(f)

(9)

Benefits and Interests of Directors
(Disclosures Required by Section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors during the year (2023: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2023: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include one (2023: two) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 30(a). The
emoluments payable to the remaining four (2023: three) individual
during the year are as follows:

30

(e)

()

(9)

EENFZMER (KIEEB
(R EMEB) (58622 %) 56383
R (RBA(HEBEEEFNRE
BRAIN(5£622GE) REB
EFRRBREER) (&)

BERUES 2SEEHNEE
FENRBEEERERAZTAZE
M EERREMR G 2ER

FAMENES  ZEFEETNZEEE
NMEABERATHRAZER EEZK
EMRG(ZE_=F : §) o

ESERRS ZHHEHNE
R
REERE B RFREMISRE - HiRE
ARRARESEARRSREEHZE
AR5 RFRANPERREES
EREARER (ZF_=F : @) -

hEEREHFMAL
AEERASEANRERSTHATEE
—Z(ZEZ=F - MB)EF ' Efe
EERHFE30@) - HpMBZ(ZTE-=
F:ZB)ATRAFERYK M2
T

2024 2023
—E-mEF —T=%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T

Basic salaries, gratuities and K% - A& R E 2Rk
other allowances 16,145 13,870
Discretionary bonuses JEEEAEAL 11,638 6,487
Contributions to pension schemes RN FHEIHR 72 54
Share-based compensation expenses LARR (9 2 A5 B2 5,795 1,641
33,650 22,052
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30

(9)

(h)

(i)

EENFENER (KBTS
(R EMEB) (58622 %) 56383
R (RBA(HEBEEEFNRE
BRAIN(5£622GE) REB
EFRRBREER) (&)

Benefits and Interests of Directors 30
(Disclosures required by Section 383 of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

REBBHMAL (H)
Bz BRI :

Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (9)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Number of individuals

A

2024 23
—E_UE —Eo=F

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000
HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000
HK$13,500,001 to HK$14,000,000

4,500,001 7T % 5,000,000 /& 7T
7,500,001 # 7T % 8,000,000 7 7T
9,000,001 # 7T % 9,500,000 7 7T
10,000,001 /7T % 10,500,000 /7T
13,500,001 /7T % 14,000,000 77T

| = = =

No incentive payment for joining the Group or compensation for loss (h)

of office was paid or payable to any director or the five highest paid

individuals during the year.

Senior management’s emoluments by band (i)
The senior management’s emoluments (excluding directors) fell

within the following bands:

FAREMNESFHIAEZRSFMALD
R EESERMARKRE 2 B
SKEER A H(E -

BREEAEHNEE
BRERAR(TREES) 2 HHEE

T -

Number of individuals

A
2024 23
—BopmE i
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 77T E 3,500,000 37T -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 77T 2 4,000,000 78 7T 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 77T % 5,000,000 7% T 2

HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000
HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000
HK$13,500,001 to HK$14,000,000

7,500,001 78 T 8,000,000 77T
9,000,001 77T E 9,500,000 % 7T
10,000,001 & 7T 10,500,000 77T
13,500,001 & T2 14,000,000 77T

-—

| = = | N =
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31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows

31 HRERERERME

(@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to  (a) KRWAVERIEEEELE 2 FH

net cash generated from operations THER
2024 2023
—E_NE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Profit before income tax BrE A A 389,528 144,176
Adjustments for: PHEE -
— Finance income - BrRsUR A (45,304) (38,847)
— Finance cost of lease liabilities - HEBEZHBEKA 84,784 68,375
— Finance cost on bank borrowings — RITE R Z AR A 23,808 30,133
— Depreciation of property, - BWERZRBETE
plant and equipment 373,452 378,196
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets - ERREEEZINE
— properties //E 805,576 782,454
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets -ERAEEEZITE
— leasehold land and land - HE TR TR AR
use rights 20,701 16,540
— Amortisation of intangible assets - BB EEH 37 38
— Fair value loss on investment -REWEZ A TEEBE

properties 31,900 20,100
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of other - HEHMYE - KE K&E

property, plant and equipment, net ZFER ) 4,608 (698)
— Gain on modification and - HEEH MK W
termination of leases (28,758) (9,868)

— Provision/(reversal) of loss allowance — — 5112/ ($#[8]) & 2 fE AR 18

on trade receivables 3t 7 3)
— Share-based compensation expenses - LAR% D i< 36,900 19,536
— Dividend income from listed - FiER BMA

investments (6,123) (6,123)

- W% - BB KER

— Reversal of impairment loss of

property, plant and equipment R EE R E (4,320) -
— Impairment loss of property, - W% - WEREERERER

plant and equipment 6,223 21,924
— Impairment loss of right-of-use assets - £ & E 2 REEE 2,290 22,731

Operating profit before working BE & F B2 2 E R

capital changes 1,695,309 1,448,664
Changes in working capital: RBEEE)

— Inventories -FE 37,955 35,299

— Prepayments and deposits - ENFRIEREZRS (17,546) (3,255)

— Trade and other receivables - EERE A EKERTE (14,481) 61,517

— Trade payables - EEENRE (15,114) 58,473

— Other creditors and accrued liabilities  — HAth fEBRIE L FEET & 5,475 116,072

— Retirement benefit assets and - RRERBHEER

provision for long service payments RERG B H 2,699 9,841

Net cash generated from operations EEEEZFRS 1,694,297 1,726,611
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31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31 HSREBRERERKE (&)
Cash Flows (Continued)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, (b) ZEBRETREXANNEEY

proceeds from disposal of property, plant and X BMERRBRERERE:
equipment comprise:
2024 2023
—E-IF —T=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET

Net book amounts BREDFE 6,533 8,652
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREREF

plant and equipment, net (E518) /& F (4,608) 698
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE RRESRE

plant and equipment 1,925 9,350

219



Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31 HSREBRERERKE (&)
Cash Flows (Continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from () BZ=Z-_MMF=/A=+—H

financing activities for the year ended 31 TFEFERETHEENEGY
March 2024 iR
Lease Bank

liabilities borrowings Total

HEaE RITERK st

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET FET

As at 1 April 2023 RZEZ_=FmMH—H 2,269,084 979,950 3,249,034
Additions = 588,310 400,000 988,310
Cash flows: WEmE
— Repayment of bank borrowings - BBRITEX - (995,000) (995,000)
— Payment of lease liabilities - NHEERE (933,062) - (933,062)
— Interest paid - BAIALE - (23,758) (23,758)
Finance cost BFTER AR 84,784 23,808 108,592
Modification and termination of leases ~ fAE& &) 4R E 73,351 - 73,351
Exchange difference M R (19,340) - (19,340)
As at 31 March 2024 RZZEZWMF=A=+—H 2,063,127 385,000 2,448,127
As at 1 April 2022 R-ZT-—FmA—H 2,023,411 1,079,690 3,103,101
Additions NE 1,051,475 - 1,051,475
Cash flows: REME -
— Repayment of bank borrowings - BBIRITER - (100,000) (100,000)
— Payment of lease liabilities -¥NHEAE (899,672) - (899,672)
— Interest paid - BfFE - (29,873) (29,873)
Finance cost BTSN 68,375 30,133 98,508
Modification and termination of leases ~ FAE&E) MR 1+ 48,424 - 48,424
Exchange difference [E 5 =58 (22,929) = (22,929)
As at 31 March 2023 RZZBE-_=F=A=+—H 2,269,084 979,950 3,249,034
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32

Share Option Scheme and Share Award
Schemes

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the Company on 8
September 2022 (the “2022 Share Option Scheme”), the Company
may grant options to the eligible participants to subscribe for
ordinary shares in the Company subject to the terms and conditions
stipulated therein. As at 31 March 2024, the Company had granted
options to certain employees of the Group (including an Executive
Director of the Company) pursuant to the 2022 Share Option
Scheme. The 2022 Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 7
September 2032 unless otherwise terminated under the terms of the
scheme.

For options granted under the 2022 Share Option Scheme, the
exercise price in relation to each option would not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant, which must be a business day or (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant or (iii) the nominal value
of a share of the Company. The exercisable period and the vesting
period of the options were determined by the Board of Directors,
provided that they shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant
of the relevant options.

As at 31 March 2024, the weighted average fair value of all
outstanding options granted under the 2022 Share Option Scheme
was HK$3.47 per option, which was determined using the Binomial
option pricing model. The significant inputs into the model were
weighted average share price of HK$14.9 at the grant date, exercise
price shown below, volatility of 24.5%, dividend yield of 2.84%, an
expected option life of eight years, and an annual risk-free interest
rate of 3.27%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation
of continuously compounded share returns is based on statistical
analysis of daily share prices over the last three years.
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32

R R 8 & IR0 R B ET

&

i 17 EAREET 2

BEAATR-_ZE-__FHNA/N\BEHER
BRI Bkt &) ([ T — — R ) Bt
P&l - ARRTIREGRREGRE
B2 EERLRMDPEUREARAF
TRk - RZZT-_MFE=A=+—H -
AATIERE - - —FR KT
MAEESE TIES (BEARR—BHT
EE)RERMDEE S FRMHHE
BB SRR EREE S =_F A
+ 8 - BRIFEBIRETBUEF T AL L o

SRIE =T = — S MR SR H A
B EEMS - SR ARNITEER
BERATHRSE  ()FDBH (BA
REXB)ERBBMIMERRERHM
2 AR AR W B 3k (i) B R
BHATAEERXATEHIAEHRE
e COR NG RS S R E B ()
Apw]— BB EE o B BENTT
FEHEEEBMREERET  EEHR
TEREAERERLE R TF -

R-ZE-_MF=A=+—H RBE-=
T oFRGO B AR E A M ARTT
ERR ) BRI MEF A FERENH R
MHARE3.47 8L - AR ZIHHEEE
BRETE - ZEANERGABLERRE
AR T IIARE 1498 7T » TX
FTREOTTIE(E - 18 24.5% « IR B Uzs
2.84% - NFHEFTAIEFHLERR
FFE3.27% ° AEEEFIRRD R
EEEZSSNFBEBABE=ZFEARE
MR DT BERE o
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32 Share Option Scheme and Share Award 32 R H#EsHEI KRG EBE

Schemes (Continued) (&)

Share Option Scheme (Continued) IR ERRERT &l (58)

Movements in share options during the year ended 31 March 2024 HE-Z-_NWE=A=+—HIEFER
are as follows: BIRR D BRRE Eh A T -

Number of share options

R EESE
Outstanding Outstanding
at at
Exercise 1 April 31 March
price per 2023 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2024
Exercise option R-Z==% during during during W-Z= ﬁ
Date of grant period SHlE mA—H the year the year theyear =A=1-—
B A i THEE M RATHE FREH FERITE FERAN B ﬁ
HK$
BT
30 December 2022 31 July 2025 to 14.9 23,970,000 - - (1,100,000) 22,870,000
5= 29 December 2032
+-A=1+H “E-RFtA=+-HE
“E=_£+ZHAZtAhR
23,970,000 - - (1,100,000) 22,870,000
None of the 22,870,000 outstanding options were exercisable as at R—_ZE-_WHF=H=+—8"
31 March 2024 (2023: Nil). No share options were exercised during 22,870,000 17 8 A& 171 B9 A% 1 Hi#E 5 K
the year so there was no related weighted average share price for AT (ZZ==F: &) - FAMER
exercise of the options during the year (2023: Nil). DEAREEITE - FtFAIFEITERG
MM MEENETIRE(ZE =5
B’) -
Share Award Schemes Iz 10 52 st &
On 27 August 2013, a share award scheme (the “2013 Share Award RZZE—=FNA=-++tH KRAE
Scheme” or the “Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the Board ERERFEMN—IER G ZEEE(T=
of Directors of the Company. The award period for shares granted T-=FRD BT =k [ZEtElD) o
under the 2013 Share Award Scheme ended on 26 August 2023. BRIE - T —=F & R 2R TR
The Scheme will remain valid and effective for 15 years from the ZEBBRER_TE_=FNAZ+
date of adoption. B4 - et 8l IMABRERM A H
RErTREL -
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32 Share Option Scheme and Share Award 32 R H#EsHEI KRG EBE
Schemes (Continued) £ (&)
Share Award Schemes (Continued) IR B2 EnEt &l (48)
On 27 August 2023, a new share award scheme (the “2023 Share RZZBZ=FN\AZ+tH  AREESF
Award Scheme”) was adopted by the Board of Directors of the %%f‘ﬂ IR (D BT &I ([ — T =%
Company. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2023 Share it 5EEhE & D) - BRIESTTEUESIEE]
Award Scheme will remain valid and effective for 10 years from the T =R RENEH B B ER AN B At
date of adoption. During the year ended 31 March 2024, no shares T FRERERREER S - BEZT
had been awarded under the 2023 Share Award Scheme. ZHE=A=+—HIFERN - BERE
—T - =FRIDERE SR RS
During the year ended 31 March 2024, 3,060,083 (2023: 777,738) E%Z‘E:;:@EZH =T—HIEFER -
shares were awarded to selected participants pursuant to the 2013 3,060,083/ ( =& = =4 : 777,738/% )
Share Award Scheme. Movement of the award shares under the RO BERE-T—=FRH ZE S
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2024 are as follows: TREEZ2MEE BE_T_NF=H
=T—HIEFER - RigZTE2 ZER
2 EBT -
Number of shares
Fair value LUl
per share As at Granted Vested Lapsed As at
(Notea) 1 April 2023 during during during 31 March 2024
Date of grant BRATE MW-B==f the year the year theyear HW=Z=MF  Vesting period (Note b)
RiES (Ha) mA-H QR EREE ER&Y ZA=t-8 SRS
HKS
AT
317712020 14.0 435,468 - (433,969) (1,499) - 3TJuly2021-31July 2023
S o ZEC-FtA=+-R%
i S o
2/8/2021 14.7 912,429 - (461,153) (23,805) 427471 31 July 2022 - 31 July 2024
“T--%\AZH “ECCEYA=T-RE
“E-NMELA=T-R
1182022 15 697,188 - (29958 (33164) 434066 31 Juy 202331 Juy 2025
“E__F)\A-H “E_CHEA=1-RE
“ZCREHA=T-B
3 /7/2023 9.7 - 3,060,083 (24,074) (152,824) 2,883,185 31 July 2024 -31 July 2026
“B-=E+A=T-R “R-MELA=1T-RZE
“E-EtA=T-R
2,045,085 3,060,083 (1,149,154) (211,29) 3,744,722
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32 Share Option Scheme and Share Award

Schemes (Continued)

Share Award Schemes (Continued)

Movement of the award shares under the 2013 Share Award

gl (&)

32 R{HESERKRDEBE

R in BT & (4)

BE_T_=—"F=-A=+—HILFE

Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2023 are as follows: N REBE_ZE-—=FRHREE 28
Bkt 2 #EIAT -
Number of shares
Fair value BipfiA
per share As at Granted Vested Lapsed As at
(Notea) 1 April 2022 during during during 31 March 2023
Date of grant BRATE RN-B-CfF the year the year theyear MWZZZ=F  Vesting period (Note b}
RhAH (Hita) MA—H EREH ENGE Eni® ZA=t-B  BESHWHL)
HKS
V-8
317712019 24.1 324,936 - (322,931) (2,005) - 31July2020-31 July 2022
=SSR “F-RELAZ1-AE
ZE-CEFA=T-H
317712020 14.0 950,099 - (474,286) (40,345) 435468 31 July 2021 - 31 July 2023
SRS FEASTE “g-—Ef=-AF
“E-EYA=T-R
2/812021 147 1,508,088 - (502,381) (93,278) 912,429 31 July 2022 - 31 July 2024
“F-_—FN\AzH Sk o o
“TCMELA=1-R
1/8/2022 15 - 777,738 (3,192) (77,358) 697,188 31 July 2023 -31 July 2025
—F A “F-=FLA=t-RE
“E-REtA=T-R
2,183,123 777,738 (1,302,790) (212,986) 2,045,085
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32 Share Option Scheme and Share Award
Schemes (Continued)

Share Award Schemes (Continued)
During the year, the Group did not purchase any of its own shares

through the trustee of the Scheme from the open market. The

shares previously purchased by the Group that are not yet vested

for the Scheme were recorded as treasury shares of the Group. As
at 31 March 2024, there were 4,066,279 treasury shares (2023:
5,211,937) held through the trustee of the Scheme.

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(©

The fair value of the award shares was based on the closing price per share at the
date of grant and adjusted by the fair value of the dividends during the vesting
periods as the grantees are not entitled to dividends during the vesting periods.

The award shares are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 33% of the award
shares respectively on the first and second anniversary dates of the grant date
and the balance of the remaining award shares on the third anniversary date of
the grant date. In case such anniversary date is not a business date, the date of
vesting shall be the business day immediately thereafter. Management has revised
its estimates of number of shares that are expected to vest based on the market
vesting conditions.

During the year, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, being Directors
of the Company, participated in the 2013 Share Award Scheme.
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33 Commitments 33 &
(@) Capital commitments (a) BERRAIE
As at 31 March 2024, the Group had the following capital RZFE_MF=A=+—H  x&BZ
commitments: BARAFENAT -
2024 2023
—E_NF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Acquisition of property, WEEMZE - BB A%
plant and equipment
Authorised and contracted for EHEREEL 37,136 61,578
Authorised but not contracted for EHEERERY) 478,916 469,850
516,052 531,428
(b) Committed leases not yet commenced (b) EIARBEBHIAERSE
As at 31 March 2024, the total future lease payments for leases R-Z-_NF=—A=+—8 HEXE
committed but not yet commenced were payable as follows: B AR R PR AR E R (M ) R B 46 ) FE 40
Te @
2024 2023
—ECNEF —EC-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Properties S
Within one year —FR 11,197 5,011
Between two and five years MERFA 40,155 15,932
Later than five years h & 2,232 -
53,584 20,943
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34 Financial Guarantees

35

As at 31 March 2024, the Company had given guarantees totaling
approximately HK$1,920,309,000 (2023: HK$2,225,525,000) to
financial institutions in connection with the banking facilities granted
to its subsidiaries.

The Group's bankers have given guarantee in lieu of deposits
amounting to approximately HK$161,783,000 to the landlords and
utility providers of the subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 March 2024
(2023: HK$163,460,000).

Future Operating Lease Arrangements

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

34

35

R R

NZEBE_MFE=A=+—8 ' A2 aMA
SR BEREEEENB AR 2 RITE
BEREERAS £41,920,309,0008 T (=
T~ =4 :2,225,525,0007C) °

R-ZZE-_NMF=A=+—H KEEZ
FRBITEMASEMBRARZEER
ANAZREHERERER  UREZS
2 R4 5161,783,0008 T (—Z B - =
% 1 163,460,000 7T) °

ARKEHE 2 ZHE
RZE-_NMFEF=A=+—H ' x&£ER

BARHEz REHEMNARRER 2
RIEHEFREBAT ¢

2024 2023

—EMF —ET=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 18,849 21,348
Between two and five years MERFA 9,745 15,377
28,594 36,725
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36 Related Party Transactions 36 BAHMARZ
(@) The Group has the following significant (a) FAXREEEEREBRLBUTZ
transactions with related party during the BARS !
year:
2024 2023
—EoMmE —T_=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Operating lease rentals paid MEAEE T T 2 EHER S ¢
to a related party:
— Tinway Investments Limited * - REIREBR AT > 2,536 2,151
* Tinway Investments Limited is a company jointly owned by Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, an ¥ ORBBEBRARIMBEBREL LT BB ELEY
associate of Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, and Victor Reach Investments Limited, a BMBAAR—HBHERALLERBEREBZRA
company wholly owned by Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny. Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr Chan Victor Reach Investments Limited 2[R #H - # X
Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny are Directors of the Company. BT BRREEEREREEEARKTRATNE
$ °
The above transactions were carried out in accordance with the FR G TR EE R S TR L2
terms of the contracts entered into by the Group and the related BHNRTRAETT ©
party.
(b) Key management compensation (b) TEEBAEME
2024 2023
—E-ME —E=F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and allowances M K Bh 26,698 25,855
Fees we 100 100
Discretionary bonuses FEREEAEAL 16,326 9,016
Contributions to pension schemes RS FT B 126 126
Share-based compensation expense VAR A7 32 A< Bl & 7,988 3,244
51,238 38,341
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(a)

37 Statement of Financial Position and 37 AARMBEMRRERRHFEESE
Reserve Movement of the Company g
Statement of financial position of the Company  (a) A2 R ARIREK
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
—EE —E-=F
=A=+—~ =A=1+—-A8
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
5T FET FEL
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R B ARRKRE 331,802 331,802
Amount due from subsidiaries R VNGIE ¢ 1,530,217 1,393,414
1,862,019 1,725,216
Current assets REEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBLEEIER 381 1,048
Total assets BEEHAKE 1,862,400 1,726,264
EQUITY RRE
Capital and reserves KATREREA
attributable to the equity B R R #E
holders of the Company
Share capital [N 58,570 58,570
Share premium EeSrapinti=] 37(b) 621,122 621,122
Shares held for share & 0 B2 BhET &1
award scheme B 2 & 37(b) (73,722) (98,979)
Other reserves E b fEE 37(b) 289,312 267,820
Retained earnings REB A 37(b) 967,178 877,119
Total equity RRE4a%E 1,862,460 1,725,652
LIABILITIES =0
Current liabilities REEE
Other creditors and accrued EmEfERIBERETER
liabilities (60) 612
Total equity and liabilities BREREEEEE 1,862,400 1,726,264

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved
by the Board of Directors on 17 June 2024 and was signed on its
behalf.

LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY
BB
Chairman
£
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Executive Director
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37 Statement of Financial Position and

(b)

37 ARRMIEARNR K S

Reserve Movement of the Company g (&)
(Continued)
Reserve movement of the Company (b) ARAFFEER
Capital Share-based  Shares held for Contributed
Share redemption  compensation share award Surplus Retained
premium reserve reserve scheme (note earnings Total
&% DEBxE  ROREHY Elizs
B RERE A1 BRZRG () RERA %
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
71 71 71 71 71 71 77
Balance as at 1 April 2023 RZZ-=¥MA-RAkH 621,122 152,034 1319 (98,979) 94,467 871,119 1,667,082
Employee share option scheme B R it El
- value of employee services -EERKERE - - 18,823 - - - 18,823
Employee share award scheme BB R %EE
- value of employee services -EERHkERE - - 18,077 - - - 18,077
Vesting shares of share R EE R NEE
award scheme - - (15,408) 25,257 - (9,849) -
Purchase of shares EARS - - - - - - -
Profit attrioutable to equity RRFRERE B
holders of the Company - - - - - 350,000 350,000
Dividends RE = = - - - (250,092) (250,092)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 RZE-ME=A=-A&H 621,122 152,034 42,81 (B312) 94,467 967,178 1,803,890
Balance as at 1 April 2022 RZZ-—¥MA-RAkH 621,12 152,034 23,681 (130,939) 94,467 749,715 1,510,080
Employee share option scheme B R (7 it El
- value of employee services -ESHRBEE = = 4,99 = = = 499
Employee share award scheme BB R %E:E
- value of employee services -EERHkERE = - 14,544 - - - 14,544
Vesting shares of share R EE RN EE
award scheme - - (21.89) 31,960 - (10,062) -
Purchase of shares EARS = = = = = = =
Profit attrioutable to equity RRFRERE AEREH
holders of the Company - - - - - 300,000 300,000
Dividends RE = = = = = (162,534) (162,534)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 R-E-=FZA=+-Bik 621,122 152,034 21319 (98979) 94,467 877,119 1,667,082
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37

(b)

Statement of Financial Position and
Reserve Movement of the Company
(Continued)

Reserve movement of the Company
(Continued)

(i)

Contributed surplus mainly arose from the group
reorganisation made in prior years and represented the
difference between the value of investment in a subsidiary
acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange thereon. Under
the Companies Act of Bermuda, contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that
the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after
the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due or (i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium account.
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REABRND ERTABAMB R
AIREMEEERRBFETH
BROEENEZEMN - RIEER
ZENRDE BRASBADE TK
R () D BECIRE D EE DI
B ()EEEM R ZREER
Hit MERE B EAREE T
PR R B s (B Rk < 4888 - AR
BRI RAI AR B A ST TRk
IR B HIEH DK



Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

Principal Investment Properties

TEREY=

Description
it

1. Portion A & C of Shop No. N95 on
the First Floor, Nos. 1-17 Mount Sterling
Mall and Nos. 10-16 Lai Wan Road,
Mei Foo Sun Chuen, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon
NEBRAEFHNGZE 10-165%
BEEES1-1TH—ENSHARCED

2. Rear Portion of Shop No. 3 on
the Ground Floor, Cheong Yiu Building,
Nos. 167, 171 and 173 Castle Peak Road
and Nos. 47-51 Shiu Wo Street,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
FASESILE167 171 RIT3HK
KT 47-51 5% EIRAE 18 3REBE D

3. 2/F, Cheong Yiu Building,
Nos. 167, 171 & 173 Castle Peak Road and
Nos. 47-51 Shiu Wo Street,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
FREESILE 167 1T RITBHR
KA 47-51 R ERAE_#

4. Shop A of Portion B on the Basement,
Argyle Centre, Phase |,
No. 688 Nathan Road and
No. 65 Argyle Street, Mongkok, Kowloon
JURERT AR08 688 5t L i B & 65 5%
A0 E— Bt E B E D AR

Lot number
b ER 4R 5%

New Kowloon Inland Lot

No. 5086
FTVEE AR 5086 5%

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot No. 223
BT 22357

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot No. 223
ZEMHER 2235

Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 1262
BEUIER 1262 5%
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Approximate
internal floor
area size
(sqft)
AR
BHEE
(FER)

2,608

392

4,720

1,946

Type
B/

Shop
[k

Shop
Bk

Shop
[k

Shop
Bk

Lease term
HAH

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

i

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

i



Principal Investment Properties

FTEREYR

Approximate
internal floor

area size
(saft)
B RE
Description Lot number BEHES Type
it 15 B} 4R 51% (FER) EE
5. Shop C of Portion B on the Basement, Kowloon Inland 3,378 Shop
Argyle Centre, Phase |, Lot No. 1262 [k
No. 688 Nathan Road and FUBEAMLER 1262 5%
No. 65 Argyle Street, Mongkok, Kowloon
FLRERE A0S 688 5 R Ip & £ 6765 5%
WE A0 5 — BB B 300 C 48
6. Shop B on the Ground Floor of the Podium, Inland Lot No. 8423 1,313 Shop
Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Harcourt Road, M ER 8423 5% Bk
Hong Kong
BRERBE 18REED LM T B
7. The entire 1/F., Metropole Building, Kowloon Inland 2,306 Shop
Nos. 53-63 Peking Road and Lot No. 7728 [k

Nos. 12 & 12A-C Hankow Road, JUBEHIER 7728 5%
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

BEADRILRIES3-63 R RENE12 &

NRA-CREHAE1182E
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Lease term
HAH

Medium-term

R

Long-term
=i

Medium-term
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Principal Self-Used Properties
FTEBRAY=E

Approximate

internal floor

area size

(saft)

A WA
Description Lot number BEHES Type
fi ot 1o ER AR (FRR) BE

1. Shop Nos. A10 (Portion), A11, G13 Shau Kei Wan Inland 3,959 Shop

(Portion) & G14, G/F,, and

Shop Nos. 157-159, 1/F,

Tai On Building,

Nos. 57/87 Shau Kei Wan Road,

Shau Kei Wan, Hong Kong
BAGEEGEEE57/87 5

RLIEH T A10(32),

A11, G13(H5) & G145 K%

118 157-159 5% 48

Shops H and I, G/F,, King's House,
Nos. 969 & 971 King’s Road,
Nos. 1, 3 & 5 Tong Chong Street,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

BRGIRBREE69 & 9715 R
WEM, 3855
HEREMTHRI4H

Shop Nos. 13-13A, 15-18, 53, 53A and
55-59, 1/F., Kwai Chung Plaza,
Nos. 7-11 Kwai Foo Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories
MRZBEERT-115%
FEEIS 118 13-13A, 15-18,
53, 53A K 55-59 94

Portion B of Shop N95, 1/F,
Nos. 1-11, 15-17 Mount Sterling Mall &
Nos. 10-16 Lai Wan Road,
Mei Foo Sun Chuen,
Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon
NEHRAZFHINZEE10-165
BEEES1-11, 15-175% 1#N95 B 217

Shop B of Portion B, Basement,
including floor space under
the escalators, Argyle Centre,
Phase I, No. 688 Nathan Road and
No. 65 Argyle Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon

JURERE A E 688 5 IR B E A 65 5%
HEARLE 1 B EB I
(BEBH THEEZERH)

Store B, M/F & 1/F., Cheong Yiu Building,
Nos. 167, 171 & 173 Castle Peak Road
and No. 47-51 Shiu Wo Street,

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

HREEESIE167, 171 & 1735
KM 47-51 HERREMEBH R 118

Lot No. 738
L I ER 738 5%

Marine Lot No. 703
TG HER 703 5%

Kwai Chung Town
Lot No. 398
ZRBTIHER 398 5%

New Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 5086
¥ BENIER 5086 5%

Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 1262
JUBEAIHBER 1262 5%

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot No. 223
ZEMHER 2235
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4,370

3,423

3,860

4,677

5,202

Gk

Shop
L]

Shop
EL]

Shop
EL]

Shop
EL]

Shop
ik

Lease term
A

Medium-term

R

Long-term
=31

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

]
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Principal Self-Used Properties
FTEBRAY=E

Description Lot number
fi ot 1o ER 4R

7. Shop A, G/F., including Cockloft,
Offices A, B & C, 1/F, and
Offices A, B, C & D, 2/F,
Lee Kiu Building, No. 51 Jordan Road,
Yau Ma Tei, Kowloon
TR AT B 51 557
FEREH T AS (BIERE)
THEA BRCHRMER2IEA, B, CR DA

Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 9894
BEHLER 9894 5%

Inland Lot No. 8423
RIHEER: 8423 57

8. Shop A on the Ground Floor of the Podium,
Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong
BERERBIBHEET UM TAM

Inland Lot No. 8423
RIHEER 8423 5%

9. Shop C on the Ground Floor of the Podium,
Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong
EBERB18HEER UM T CH

Inland Lot No. 8423
P ER 8423 5%

10. Shop D on the Ground Floor of the Podium,
Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong
EEERE18FEEP LM T DA

Inland Lot No. 8423
M ER 8423 4%

11. Shop E on the Ground Floor of the Podium,
Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong
BBERE 18HBER LM TEHR

12. Shop Nos. 1,2, 3,5, 6,7
(including the corresponding part of
yard adjacent thereto), 8, 21 and
22, G/F, Orion Court,
No. 23 Mau Tan Street, Yuen Long,
New Territories

FRUTRAR T 23 5%

FEEMT1,2,3,56,7
(BAREREARAS < FERT 2 AEFE SR ),
8, 21 ] 22 54

Lot No. 3798 in D.D. 120
D.D. 120 B 3798 5%

13. Factory Unit G, 11/F, Kwai Chung Town
City Industrial Complex, Lot No. 339
Nos. 71-77 Yau Ma Hom Road and ORTHLER 33957

Nos. 116-122 Kwok Shui Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories
¥R S 71-77 57 &%

BIEmRE 116-122 5%

W TEFRL 11 EEAG
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Approximate
internal floor
area size
(saft)
A
BHEHEE
(FFR)

4,769

5,650

2,273

578

179

3,180

3,388

Type

Office
e

Shop
ik

Shop
Gl

Shop
EL

Shop
L]

Shop
ik

Factory

Bt

Lease term
HAH

Medium-term

R

Long-term
=3t

Long-term
=31

Long-term
=31

Long-term
=21

Medium-term

]

Medium-term

R
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FTEBRAY=E

Description
fi ot
14. Unit 13, 4/F, Sun Fung Centre,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

No. 88 Kwok Shui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories

TR B IR B% 88 5F
HLANAE135REN

Unit 15, 4/F, Sun Fung Centre,
No. 88 Kwok Shui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories

RSB IR IE 88 9%
e L4557

Factory Unit 5 and 5A, G/F,

Tak Lee Industrial Centre,

No. 8 Tsing Yeung Circuit,

Tuen Mun, New Territories
MRS HESR

BRI HEAH O TS5 & 5ATREN

Unit AT on G/F,
Tuen Mun Industrial Centre,
No. 2 San Ping Circuit,
Tuen Mun, New Territories
AP 425
FEPI T T A1 SREERL

Café de Coral Centre,
5-13 Wo Shui Street, Fo Tan, Sha Tin,
New Territories

AP B AR ARIEAT 5-13 AR &R L

No. 17 Dai Fu Street,

Tai Po Industrial Estate,

Tai Po, New Territories
MAKRBAEIERREHEI7H

No. 19 Dai Fu Street,
Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories

MARBABIEBRER 195

Lot number
b R 4 5%

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot No. 344
SETTIER 34455

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot No. 344
ZETHIER 3445

Tuen Mun Town
Lot No. 163
FEPTTHIER 163 5%

Tuen Mun Town
Lot No. 76
HPITHbER 76 57

Sha Tin Town
Lot No. 2
Y HRTHER 2 57

Tai Po Town
Lot No. 1 and
the Extension thereto
AIETIHIER 157 &
EEHH

Tai Po Town
Lot No. 1 and
the Extension thereto
RIFETHER 157 &%
D

236

Approximate
internal floor
area size
(saft)
A
BHEHEE
(FFR)

1,219

1,384

4,355

9,244

160,503

108,517

209,674

Type

Factory

Bt

Factory

BB

Warehouse
BE

Factory

Office and
Factory
WRERKEE

Office and
Factory
MAERHFE

Office and
Factory

Lease term
HAH

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

i

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

i

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

i
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Principal Self-Used Properties
FTEBRAYE

Approximate

gross floor area

(sqm)
Description BAEEEEE Type Lease term
iR (FFHK) B HAH

21.  Units 2, 3 & 4, Basement and 1,794 Shop Medium-term
2-1, 3-1 & 4-1, Level 1, &kl HHA
Dexing Building, Jianshe Road,
Luohu District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, China
rh B B BR A R 24 (R R AR R
BmEAEF2, 3, ABEMTER—E

22.  Unit A3, Level 1 and Unit B3, 1,144 Shop Medium-term
Level 2, Fushan Garden, &kl HHA
Yingbin Avenue, Gongbei District,
Zhuhai, Guangdong Province, China
FRERARGHILRDERE
EHEEES —E AR X —[E B35

23.  Shop A, G/F, Edificios Lei Ka, Lei Nin, 517 Shop Medium-term
Lei Va, Nos. 48B-48C &k A
Avenida de Horta e Costa, Macau
SR A S 48B-48C SR T A4

24.  No. 10 Chunfen Road, Yonghe Zone, 34,155 Factory Medium-term
Guangzhou Economic and B HHA
Technological Development District,

Guangzhou, China
Fh I N A 7 4 A ) B [ Sk AT
KEREDE 105

25.  No.44 West Shangxing Road, 5,400 Factory Medium-term
Shangjiao District, Changan Town, = HHf
Dongguan City, Guangdong Province,

China
PRIERERmREE AR FEPEEL 44 5%
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A FEHBESE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
For the five years ended 31 March 2024

mEEER
BE-_T-ME=A=+-BILEAFE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
“ECME —BC=F - St - S 3 —T_TF
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7 FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 8,691,449 8,024,044 7,508,753 6,714,255 7,963,097
Cost of sales HEA (7,702,163) (7,321,395) (6,961,032) (6,339,067) (7,232,445)
Gross profit E7 989,286 702,649 547,721 375,188 730,652
Other income and other Hep A R H A
(losses)/gains, net F(B18)/&H (33,257) (12,733) 42,296 561,011 (40,540)
Administrative expenses THER (503,213) (486,079) (458,843) (462,619) (481,414)
Operating profit EE G 452,816 203,837 131,174 473,580 208,698
Finance income BB 45,304 38,847 7,659 8,125 16,098
Finance costs SRR (108,592) (98,508) (88,044) (91,159) (110,538)
Profit before income tax BREL AR A 389,528 144,176 50,789 390,546 114,258
Income tax expense FEH B R (56,313) (32,989) (27,939) (29,996) (39,872)
Profit for the year AEZRF 333,215 111,187 22,850 360,550 74,386
Profit attributable to: SR -
Equity holders of the Company RRARRERE A 330,454 110,353 21,214 359,130 73,634
Non-controlling interests IR 2,761 834 1,636 1,420 752
333,215 111,187 22,850 360,550 74,386
Dividends RE 333,852 222,567 163,997 222,567 111,284
Dividend per share BRERS HK57 cents HK38 cents HK28 cents HK38 cents HK19 cents
57 4l 3871l 287%4l 38l 19784l
Basic earnings per share BREART HK$0.57 HK$0.19 HK$0.04 HK$0.62 HK$0.13
05787 01947 0.0457T 0.62 /87T 01387
Diluted earnings per share BREERT HK$0.57 HK$0.19 HK$0.04 HK$0.62 HK$0.13
05787 01947 0.0457T 0.62 87T 01387
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A FEHBESE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

e PIARRR

As at 31 March 2024

R-E-WFE=A=+—H

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
“ECmE ZTZ=F —F- - —T-fF “T-FF
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FAT FHET FHET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FnBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB NERE 1,552,675 1,617,702 1,586,070 1,518,982 1,608,831
Right-of-use assets FREEE 2,366,096 2,413,162 2,158,474 2,124,383 2,705,239
Investment properties BEME 440,300 559,200 514,800 542,700 585,600
Intangible assets B EE 1,116 1,153 1,191 1,229 1,421
Deferred income tax assets BERBEE 66,214 62,955 67,714 70,733 66,294
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFIAEMZE
through other comprehensive income WAZEREE 74,499 86,746 95,931 96,951 101,033
Retirement benefit assets RINGEHNEE 4,208 3,098 2,878 542 =
Non-current prepayments and deposits ~ 3ERBITEMFIE LS 301,550 303,725 293,263 283,622 277,820
4,806,658 5,047,741 4,720,321 4,639,142 5,346,238
Current assets MENEE
Inventories RrE 230,288 268,243 303,542 234,924 260,626
Trade and other receivables EERHMREMERE 152,510 138,036 199,550 102,539 166,518
Prepayments and deposits BRTERRS 62,808 44,832 55,074 51,490 60,920
Current income tax recoverable EDER R e eI IR 712 4,510 7,773 32,844 39,743
Bank deposits with maturity over BE=EAZHEN
three months PITIER - - = 21,222 1,641
Cash and cash equivalents RekHe%EEE 1,260,948 1,671,978 1,585,586 2,072,512 345,072
1,707,266 2,127,599 2,151,525 2,515,531 874,520
Total assets EEAE 6,513,924 7,175,340 6,871,846 7,154,673 6,220,758
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A FEHBESE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

As at 31 March 2024

ma M EIR &R ()

R-E-WFE=A=+—H

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
“E-ME i i S —5=— “T%F
HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Equity i
Capital and reserves attributable to KRRAIRRERE ARG
equity holders of the Company AR G
Share capital FRA 58,570 58,570 58,570 58,570 58,570
Other reserves HibfE 1,094,802 1,044,822 1,005,384 988,630 943,621
Retained earnings REBRF 1,746,476 1,680,202 1,754,787 1,981,637 1,664,542
2,899,848 2,783,594 2,818,741 3,028,837 2,666,733
Non-controlling interests SRR 10,665 8,469 7,635 5,999 4,579
Total equity ] 2,910,513 2,792,063 2,826,376 3,034,836 2,671,312
Liabilities 8%
Non-current liabilities e L
Deferred income tax liabilities ERHARE 32,860 32,946 36,225 33,424 29,410
Provision for long service payments RARBEE 68,398 62,080 41,548 30,629 48,778
Retirement benefit liabilities BireEHEE - - - - 10,346
Lease liabilities HEARE 1,289,060 1,508,455 1,341,995 1,368,550 1,845,279
Long-term borrowings =HAER 305,000 - 899,690 999,433 -
1,695,318 1,603,431 2,319,458 2,432,036 1,933,813
Current liabilities TEAE
Trade payables EEENRIE 210,767 225,881 167,408 178,183 172,161
Other creditors and accrued liabilities Hi R BRIB KB AT
BH 804,370 798,895 682,823 640,378 675,200
Current income tax liabilities HERIEAE 38,889 14,441 14,365 7,719 13,487
Lease liabilities HEERE 774,067 760,629 681,416 681,521 754,785
Current portion of long-term RASFRHAESS
borrowings 80,000 899,950 100,000 100,000 -
Short-term borrowings BEET - 80,000 80,000 80,000 =
1,908,093 2,779,796 1,726,012 1,687,801 1,615,633
Total liabilities BERE 3,603,411 4,383,277 4,045,470 4,119,837 3,549,446
Total equity and liabilities REREEARE 6,513,924 7,175,340 6,871,846 7,154,673 6,220,758
Net assets per share BREEFE HK$4.97 HK$4.77 HK$4.83 HK$5.18 HK$4.56
49787 4778 4838 5187 45637T
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